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Andres Sammul
Director

Finance Department

June l7,20Il

Citizens of the City of Rocldord, Illinois,
Honorable Mayor and
Honorable Members of Council

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Rocldord, Illinois for the fiscal year

ended December 31,2010, is hereby submitted. This report is prepared by the Finance Director's Office of
the City of Rockford, trlinois. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; is
presented in a manner designed to failly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City
as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necess¿uy to enable the

reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with the management of the City. To provide a reasonable basis for making these

representations, the City of RocKord management has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed to both protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or rnisuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City of Rockford's financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Because

the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Rockford's comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that

the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best

of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The independent auditing firm of Lauterbach & Amen, LLP has audited the City of RocKord's financial
statements. The purpose of the independent audit conducted by Lauterbach & Amen was to review and

provide reasonable assurance that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,

201,0 ue free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the government-wide and fund financial statements; assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a

reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Roclford's financial statements for the

fiscal year ended December 31,2010, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.

In addition to the independent audit of the financial statements, a separate, federally mandated "Single
Audit" was performed to meet the needs of specific grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit

425 East State Street Bockford, lllinois 61104-1068 USA
(815) 987-5643 (815) 961-3154 fax www.rockfordil.gov
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engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial

statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls over compliance and compliance with
legal requirements applicable to certain federal awards. These reports are available in the City of Rockford's
separately issued Single Audit Report,

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the

basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis. This letter of transmittal is

designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Rockford's

MD&A can be found in the Financial Section, immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City

The City of Rockford is a non-home rule city, incorporated in 1839 as a town and became a city in 1852.

Located in North Central Illinois approximately 17 miles south of the Wisconsin border and 80 miles

northwest of downtown Chicago, Rockford is the third largest city in Illinois with approximately 150,115

residents encompassing approximately 61.86 square miles and seryes as the county seat for Winnebago

County. The City is empowered to levy property taxes (subject to the Property Tax Extension Limitation
Law provisions, which limits the annual growth in property tax extensions for the City to the lessor of 5%o or

the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during the preceding calendar year plus full credit for
new construction and annexations) on both real and personal property located within its boundaries and has

the authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation, when deemed appropriate and as approved by

City Council.

The City has operated under the Mayor-Alderman form of government since April 1852. Policy-making and

legislative authority are vested in the City Council consisting of the mayor and fourteen aldermen. The City

Cõuncil is responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions and regulations governing the City, adopting the

budget, as well as appointing the members of various statutory and ordinance boards, and for approving the

appõint ents by the Mayor for the City Administrator and the heads of the various departments. The Mayor

and Alderman (one from each ward) are elected and serve four year terms.

The City of Rockford provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, emergency

communication center, public works services, water distribution services, public library services and general

administrative services. The City also operates the Rockford Mass Transit District and the Rockford

Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building Authority, all of which are accounted for in the

financial statements as component units.

The Rockford School District 205 and the Greater Rockford Airport do not meet the criteria for inclusion in

the financial reporting entity and, accordingly, are not presented in this report.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Cþ of Rockford's financial planning and control.

During the budget preparation process, each department and agency of the reporting entity provides detailed

estimites of revenue and expenditures for evaluation by the City Finance Director. The Finance Director

also reviews estimates of all pendin g capital projects and those recommended for approval in the next budget

year and within the succeeding five years. The Finance Director, in conjunction with the department heads,

may revise these estimates prior to submitting the budget to the City Council for approval. The budget is

prepared by fund, function (e.g. public safety) and department (e.g. police). The budget must be approved by

Òþ Council prior to the end of the first quarter of the budget year. Neither transfers within a department nor

transfers between departments are made once the budget is approved. Budget-to-actual comparisons for the

General and Special Revenue Funds are provided in this report,
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Local economy. The City of Rockford continues to expand and diversiff its industrial base and employment

opportunities. Rockford's economy is diversified with manufacturing and medical as its primary base, while

call center/offrce operations, distribution centers and educational institutions become more important to the

economy. The 2010 average unemployment rate for the metropolitan area was 15.3% as compared to the

state average of 10.3% and the national average of 9.6%.

Rockford is home to the operations of several large companies such as: Rockford Health System, Swedish

American Health System, Hamilton Sundstrand Company, United Parcel Service, OSF St. Anthony's
Medical Center, Chrysler, NCO Group, Woodward Governor, Invensys, Quebecor Printing, Lowe's
Distribution Center, Cadbury/Adams Division, and Anderson Packaging. Rockford is proud of its qualþ of
life, skilled workforce and low cost of living. The City and private interests are aggressively pursuing the

expansion and diversification of the work force. The City has created tax increment districts, an enterprise

zone, ùsmall business loan progrcm and administers the Community Development Block Grant Program.

One of Rockford's assets is the quality of higher education in and around the community. Rockford is home

to: Rock Valley College - a two year community college with a state of the art Technology Center that is

used by area manufacturers and businesses; Rockford College - a fully accredited independent institution

that awards bachelor degrees in thirty one majors in arts and science as well as gtaduate programs in business

and education; Northern Illinois University Rockford Branch - offers courses in business, education,

engineering and engineering technology, health and human sciences, and liberal arts and sciences, as well as

a cooperative effort with Rock Valley College to award bachelor degrees in Nursing, General Studies,

Computer Science, Industrial Technology, Community Health and Elementary Education; University of
Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford - provides education to second, third and fourth year medical

students in the fields of primary care, family practice, internal medicine, pediatrics and other medical

specialties; Rasmussen College Rockford - a two year community college that works in harmony with
Rockford's business community and employer demands.

Long-term financial planning. The City of Rockford utilizes a five-year capital improvement program to

prioritize public projects which will be scheduled over a number of years as ftnancial resources are available.

The City utilizes a variety of methods to fund these projects such as: public-private cooperative efforts,

special purpose taxes, cost sharing with other governmental agencies and issuing general obligation bonds.

Capital Imptou"-ent projects are selected if they: 1) eliminate conditions detrimental to health, safety and

general welfare of the community;2) improve the City's existing infrastructure; 3) encourage private capital

investment to improve job opportunities and the City's tax base; and 4) benefit the greatest number of City

residents or contribute to an equitable distribution of service throughout the City.

The yearly capital improvement pïog¡am generally consists of projects designed to repair and improve both

arterial and neighborhood streets, bridges, pedestrian safety, and water service expansion and replacement.

The City provides leadership and encourages the private sector in the development of the Riverfront,

Downtown and other areas of the City.

Cash management policies and practices. The primary objective of the City investment policy is to
provide for ihe safety of principal, liquidity and a reasonable rate of return. The City complies with the

illinois State Statute requirements in purchasing securities for investment of the City's idle cash. The

investment maturities range from daily, for money markets, to 15 years, for US Treasury and Agency bonds,

with a 2.79 year average maturity for the portfolio. The average yield as of year end was 1.325% and will
fluctuate on a daily basis. The City currently looks at a shorter time horizon when investing the City's funds.
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Risk management. The Cþ of Rockford is self-insured for certain general liability, workmen's

compensation, unemployment, property damage and bodily (automobile accidents) claims. Liabilities are

recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred as of the balance sheet date and the amount of
the liability can be reasonably estimated. Both the current and non-current portions of any liability are

reported in the Internal Service Funds. The City will continue to evaluate loss potential, risk retention and

insurance coverage to achieve optimum levels of risk management.

The City's health plan lifetime maximum is $1,500,000. Excess coverage was purchased to the maximum

with a $225,000 retention, Risk control techniques include pre-certification and utilization review process,

pre-employment drug testing, an employee assistance program, voluntary second opinion for surgery

progfam and alcohol and substance abuse training. These initiatives were implemented to enhance employee

life while controlling total City risk.

Employee Retirement Plans. The State of Illinois statutes provide for three pension funds for municipal

employees: the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, the Police Pension Fund, and the Firefighter's Pension

Fund. Each plan has retirement, disability and death benefits for eligible employees. The Rockford Mass

Transit District provides its employees a single-employer retirement system.

The Police and Firefighter's Pension Funds are each administered by separate local boards. The Police

Pension Board and the Firefighter's Pension Board are composed of five members each. The Mayor

appoints two members to each board;two members are elected from the regular active members of the police

fõice and firefighters, and one member is elected to each board by and from the beneficiaries of the fund.

Illinois State Statutes determine the amount of contribution that each police officer and firefighter makes to

their respective fund. The City each year engages an independent actuary to calculate the amount of the

annual côntribution that the City of Rockford must make to each pension fund to ensure that the plan will be

able to meet it obligations on a timely basis. The City of Rockford fully funds each year's annual required

contribution to the pension plan as determined by the actuary'

The Cþ of Rockford contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ("IMRF"¡, an agent for multiple-

employèr, public employee retirement systems, acting as a common investment and administrative agent for

locàl governments and school districts in lllinois. The City's contribution is determined each year by IMRF

and foi 2010 the amount was I2.53Yo of covered payroll. Additional information on the City of Rockford's

pension arrangements and post-employment benefits can be found on pages 63-70 in the notes to the

financial statements.

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employees for Post

Employmeni Benefit Plans Other than Pensions. Since the City does not contribute towards the cost of the

retiiee;s health insurance, the City is reporting only the implicit liability that is created when the retiree (by

State Statute) is charged the group rate for the insurance as opposed to the true rate that would have been

charged based on the risk.

,{wards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Offrcers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting to the City of Rockford, Illinois, for its comprehensive

annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 3I,2009. This was the thirty first consecutive

year the Cþ of Rockford has received this award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently

organized comprehensive annual financial report, the contents ofwhich conform to program standards. Such

reports must satisff both generally accepted accounting principals and applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues
to conform to Certihcate of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the Cþ of Rockford received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for it
annual budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1,2010. In order to receive this award, a governmental
unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an operations
guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device.

The preparation of this report has been accomplished through the diligent efforts of the staff of the Finance
Department. I should like to express my appreciation to members of this department who assisted and

contributed to its preparation.

I also thank the Mayor and members of the City Council for their interest and support in planning and

conducting the financial operations of the City.

Andres Sammul
Finance Director

V



Franklin C. Beach

John C. Beck

Veoita Hervey
Bill Robertson

Patrick Cunan

TimDurkeo
Ann Thompson-Kelly

CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
OFFICIALS AND OFFICERS
Y,ear Ended Decemþer 31. 2010

Lawrence J. Monissey

CITY COT]NCIL MEMBERS

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

KarenEþea
Leonard J. Jaeobson

Carl Wasco

Nancy L. Johnson

Douglas Mæk
LindaMcNeely
William Timm

Pahick Hayes

LEGAL DIRECTOR

Julia Valdez
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

Timothy Hanso¡

PUBLIC ÍWORKS DIRECTOR

Reid Montgomery

COMMUNITY DEVBLOPMENT DIRECTOR

Andres Sammul

FINANCE DIRECTOR

George Davis

HUMAN SERVICES DIRECTOR

VI



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS ORGANIZATION CHART

FIRE

FINANCE

OpeEtloß
FiÌe Prererliory'TEining

911 Cffiun¡cat¡oß

centEls?ryi6
Aæoqil¡ng
Rweru

FINANCEA¡\¡D PERSOTINEL- Ald. Pat CurÐ
PLANNING AND DF/ELOPMENT - Ald. Mcfory Bell

CODË AND REGULATION - Ad. froug Mårft

COMMUNITY
DEVELOFi'IENT

POLICE

Pliln¡ng
Code Enforæmmt

CGtruc{ion & Dddoprent S€ryi€
SÐ¡fåtiú

BE¡lræGrclp

Det€ctive
Special Operãt¡oE

CITY ADMINISTRATOR
JÀMES RYAN

ROCKFORD CITIZE¡¡S

MAYOR LAVMENCE J. MORRISSEY
AND

CITY COUNCIL

LEGAl-

HUMAN
SERVtCES

H€d SfeÉ
Wdhs¡ãiff

Legd
ProFÊrty Acqu¡s¡t¡o

BOARDS
AND

coMMlsslol.ls

HUMAN RESOURCES

INFORMATION¡
TEC¡INOLOGY

PUBLIC WORKS

CØpeEat¡ ory'Fmpl oyment

Engiærir€
C4¡tal Prciocts

Pqbl¡c Wal€ Operrt¡æ
Watã

Board of Election Commission
Building Board of Appeals
Community Action Program Board
Comm unity Development Citizens Partici pation Committee
Electrical Commissions
Fair Housing Board
Fire and Police Commission
91 1 Communication Board

Greater RocKord Airport Authority
Historical Preservation Commission
Homestead Board
Liquor Commission
Mechanical Board
Metro Authority
Personnel Appeals Board

Rockford Housing Authority
RocKord Library Board
Rockford Local Development Corporation
Rockford Mass Transit District
Traffic Commission
Zoning Board of Appeals

VII



Certificate of
Achie\rement
for Excellence

in Financial
Reporting

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence inFinancial
Reporting is presented by the Govemment Finance Ofñcers

Association of the United States and Canada to
governmønt units and public employee reti¡amsnt

systçms whose comp'reherxive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
staûdårds in government accounting

and financial reporting.

President

City of Rockford

Illinois

WrVÊtu

Presented to

Executive Dilector

VIII



FINANCIAL SECTION



THECITYOF

{

ILLINOIS, USA



Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
27W457 WARRENVILLE ROAD . WARRENVILLE, ILLINOIS 60555-3902

PHONE (630) 393-1483 / FAX (630) 393-2s16

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

IND ENT AUDITORS I RT:,PORT

June 28, 201 I

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Rockford, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the City of Rockford,

Illinois as of and for the year ended December 3I,2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic

financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the

responsibilrty of the City of Rockford, Illinois'management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on

theie financial statements based on our audit. V/e did not audit the financial statements of the Rockford

Mass Transit District or the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building

Authority discretely presented component units. Those f,rnancial statements were audited by other auditors

whose reports thereon have been fumished to us; and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounting

included for the Rockford Mass Transit District and the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium

and Offrce Building Authority, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

'We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respectivè financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely

presented .o-po.r"rrf unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Îìockford, Illinìis as of December 3 I,2010, and the respective changes in financial position and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28,2011,

on our consideration of the City of Rockford, Illinois' internal control over financial reporting and on our

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and

other matters. The pu{pose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal

control orr.i frtru*ial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integralpart of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our

audit.
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City of Rockford, Illinois
June 28, 201 1

Page2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with

auditing standards general accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
mattugã-ent about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for

consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
'We 

do not express an opinion

or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the City of Rockford, Illinois' financial statements as a whole. The introductory section,

ro-Ûining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for

purposes óf udditiotral analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements, The accompanying

ictrè¿ute of federal expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as

required by the U.S. Ofhce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local

Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has

Ueen subþcted to thã auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain

additionai procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial

statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on them.

-f il*-^ , tn*^Lc?CA'A'

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUS SION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

This section ofthe City ofRockford ("City") annual fÌnancial report presents our discussion and analysis of
the City's financial performance for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report
and the Cþ's financial statements, which follow this section.

F'INAIICIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the City of Rockford exceeded its liabilities at year-end December 31, 2010 by
8620,869,442 (net assets). Of this amount, the City's unrestricted net assets which may be used to
meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors was a negative ($30,036,860).
Governmental activities accounted for $479,098,055 and business-type activities accounted for
5141,771,387. The City's total net assets increased by $8,209,205 of which $2,536,840 was related to
governmental activities and I 5,67 2,365 to business-type activities.

During the year, the City's primary government-wide expenses were 5214,728,408, which was less

than the 9222,937,613 generated in primary government-wide taxes and other revenues for
govemmental functions.

In the City's business-type activities, program revenues increased 15 percent to $28,007,574,whi(e
expenses increased 7 percent to $22,579,590.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Rockford's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $59,509,975. Approximately 69 percent of this total amount,

540,959,414, is available for spending at the City's discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was 922,516,220,
or 20 percent oftotal General Fund expenditures.

During the current fiscal year the City's total long-term obligations increased by less than 1 percent or
$1,808,825, to $203,580,573. The key factors in this increase were the issuance of $11.6 million in
IEPA loans, the issuance of $3.4 million in General Obligation Bonds for water system upgrades, $1

million increase in the net OPEB obligation and principle payments of $15.9 million.

The General Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $608,889 during fiscal year 2010 to
s22,615,712.

The City's Governmental Funds capital outlays were $15,672,024 tn20l0, a decrease from last year of
s7,074,695.

a

a

a

a

a
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

OVERVIEW OF THE FINA¡ICIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City's annual report consists of three components: l) the basic government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
required and nonrequired supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The governmental-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole, and are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, using accounting methods in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories

Governmental activities (Primary government) - The governmental activities of the City include general
government (general administration), public safety (police, fire, building inspection, street lighting), streets,
alleys and bridges (public works administration, engineering, street, traffic), sanitation (public works -
sewer, garbage and refuse) community development (planning & zontng), culture and recreation (public
library) and public health and welfare (human services). Property taxes, State shared revenues, and
operating grants from Federal and State agencies finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities (Primary government) - The City charges fees to customers to help cover the
costs of certain services it provides. The water utility and parking systems are reported here.

Component units - The City includes two other entities in its report: the Rockford Mass Transit District
and the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building Authority. Although legally
separated, these component units are important because the City is financially accountable for them.

The two government-wide statements are as follows:

Statement of net assets - The statement of nets assets presents f,rnancial information on all of the City's
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as one indicator of whether the financial position of the Cþ of Rockford
is improving or deteriorating.

Statement of activities - The statement of activities presents financial information on how the City's net
assets changed during the current fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flow. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of these statements assist assessing the overall condition of the City, but one also needs to consider
additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the
City's capital assets (roads and bridge, buildings, and water).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages I 7- I 8 of this report.
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGE,MENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 3I,2010

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Cþ's most significant funds,

but not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required to be established by
State law and bond covenants. The Cþ also establishes many other funds to help it control and manage

resources for particular purposes (e.g., like capital improvement projects, or to show that it is properly
using certain taxes (Library), or grants (Communþ Development and Human Services).

The City has three types of funds

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end of the fiscal year.

Consequently, the govemmental fund statements provide a short-term view and help determine whether

there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Cþ's
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-

wide statements, a reconciliation is provided that explains the relationship or differences between the
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 46 individual governmental funds of which six are considered major funds.

Information is presented separately for the City's major funds in the governmental fund balance sheet and

in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The General

Fund, Public Library Fund, Community Development Fund, Human Services Fund, Debt Service Fund,

and Capital Projects Fund are considered the City's major funds. Financial data from the other 40

governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund financial data for
each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and its three major special revenue

funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund, Public Library Fund,

Community Development Fund, and Human Services Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 24.

Proprietary funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented adhoc business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Water Utility Fund and its
Parking System Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds of the City. Internal service funds

are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various

functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles, building maintenance,

management information system, health system, 911 communications, and services for the City's other
programs and services. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-

type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 - 29 of this report.

5



City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 3I,2010

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit ofparties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmental-wide financial statements because

those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City has two fiduciary funds, the police pension and
firefighter's pension funds. The City is the trustee for these pensions and it is also responsible for ensuring
that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 3l of this report.

Notes to the fïnancial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
fìnancial statements can be found on pages 32 - 74 of this report.

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Cþ of Rockford's progress in funding
its obligation to provide benefits to its employees.

Required supplementary information can be found on pages Al -47 of this report.
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUS SION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Government-wide

FINANCIAL ÄNALYSIS

Net assets - As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $620,869 ,442 at the close of the
fiscal year ended December 3 l, 2010.

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (over 100 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets
(land, buildings, equipment, other improvements and infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses this capital to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is
reported net ofrelated debt, it should be noted that the resources to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Rockford Net Assets

Govemmental Governmental Business-type
activities activities activities
2010 2009 20to

Business-type
activities

2009
Total
2010

Total
2009

Ctrrent and otrer assets

Capital assets
Total assets

Long-term liabilities
Curent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assetq net of

related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

$ 146,3 s9,490
542.467.030

$ r3s,864,704
ss0.164.842

s 32,191,s74
193.540.586

$ 33,703,616 $ 178,551,064
181.151,339 736.007,616

$ 169,568,320
73 1,3 l 6,18 l

688,826,520 686,029,546 225,732,160 214,854,955 914,558,680 900,884,501

98,736,807 t05,42t,459 76,735,209
I10.991,658 104.046,872 7,225.564

175,472,016 174,052,442
118.2t7.222 114.171.822

68,630,983
10,124,950

209,728,465 209,468,331 83,960,773 78,755,933 293,689,238 288,224,264

614,801,453
36,104,850

7

The Cþ's combined net assets increased by $8,209,205 (from 5612.7 to $620.9 million) during 2010. This
change is the result of a S2.5 million increase and a $5.6 million increase in the net assets of the
governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively. The decline of $8.2 million in
unresfricted net assets of the governmental activities was primarily attributable to; an increase in the City's
net pension and net post-employment benefits obligations; an increase in net assets restricted for capital
projects (CIP sales tax), highways and streets (motor fuel tax), and culture and recreation (library
operations).

The $5,672,365, increase to net assets and $3,539,665 increase to unrestricted net assets ofthe business-
type activities is attributable to operating activities of the water fund.

481,780,204
30,062,927

477,852,551
23,227,534

t33,021,249
6,041,923

131,269,066
5,661,406

609,121,617
28,888,940
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUS SION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Governmental activities - Net assets for the City's governmental activities increased $2,536,840. This
increase may be attributed to the economic environment beginning to stabilize; cost cutting measures taken
across all departments, as well as reduction in force and the elimination of vacant positions; and a reduction
in reimbursements to developers for redevelopment projects.

Changes in Net Assets

Govemmental Governmental Business-type Brsiness-type
activities activities activities activities Total Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009Revenues

Program revenues:
Charges for sewices
Operating grants and

cont¡ibutions
Capital granS and

contributions
General revenrps:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales tax
Franchise taxes
Inconre tax
Replacement tax
Other taxes

Interest eamings
Other

Total revenues

E4enses
General goverffrent
Public safety
Streets, alleys and bridges
Community development
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Public health and welfare
Interest and fiscal charges
Water
Parking

Total expenses
Increase in net ass€ts

before transfers
Transfers
Increase in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

s 29,306,408 $

29.807.880

2,837,398

27,167,967 S 24,s09,042

29.288.2t9

2,000,666 3,498.532

s 23,465,165 $ 53,815,450 $

- 29.807.880

749;t67 6.33s.930

50,633,132

29.288.2t9

2,750,433

58,784,8 l5
36,380,336
2,6t9,091

11.736.930
7,555,032

1 3.62 1.004
478,887

58.784.815
36.380.336

2-619-091
I 1-736_930
7.555.032

t3.621.004
723.268

58,379,104
35,756,77s

t,624,690
12,201,422
7,212,783

13.820.072
226,143

58,379,104
3s,756,77s

1,624,690
12,201,422
7,212,783

13.820.072
228,557244,381 2,414

877 29

13,297,890 14,561,840 13,297,890 14,561,840
89,109,641 84,813,690 89,t09,641 84,813,690
35,079,905 34,557,692 35,079,905 34,557,692
13,694,212 17,901,167 13,694,212 17,901,t67

7 ,072,936 7 ,s44,392 7,072,936 7 ,544,392
7 ,373,399 9,490,086 7,373,399 9,490,086

2t,230,764 t9,723,022 21,230,764 19,723,022
s'2e0'071- 4'716'887- 

20.402.s4; r8.s65.es; ,ó'.'rïi:.äi tä.íå!.8ål
- - 2.177.041 2.202.193 2.t77.04t 2.202.193

2,s36,840 (3,215,806) 5,672,365 3,149,170 8,209,20s (66,636',)

t29

2,s36,840 (3,21s,806) 5,672,365 3,149,170 8,209,20s (66,636)

Total governmental activities' revenue for the current year was $194,685,658 compared to $190,092,970 in
2009,an increase of 2.4Yo. The leading factors are as follows:

The City's largest single revenue source, property taxes amounted to $58.8 million. Properly taxes
increased by approximately $.4 million (.6 percent) during the current year compared to 4.5 percent
and3.7 percent for 2009 and 2008, respectively due to an increase in equalized assessed value and new
growth. The City's propefy tax rate remained nearly unchanged at about $2.56 per $100 of EAV.

8
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Shared revenue from the State increased approximately $.5 million (.6 percent) from 2009. This
modest increase follows two years of sharp declines, 2010 levels remain $6.2 million (10 percent)

below 2008.

. Operating grants, capital grants, and capital contributions increased almost $1.4 million (4.5 percent),

mostly as a result of federal grants administered by the City's community development and human

services departments. While these grants increase revenues they also increase expenditures, generally
on a one to one basis at best, resulting in little change to net assets.

o Charges for services increased 7.9 perceft due to significant increases to water rates and charges for
services provided to other local governments and agencies.

TotaÌ govemmental activities' expense for the cunent yealwas $192,148,818 compared to $193,308,776 in
2009 , a decrease of 7 .}Vo. This decrease was primarily the result of cost cutting measures taken across all
departrnents, as well as force reductions and the elimination of vacant positions.

The graph below shows a comparison between the expenditures by governmental activity type and the

revenues generated that are specific to those activities.

Expense and Program Revenue - Governmental Activities
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Revenues by Source - Government Activities

Charges for
Servbes

Operâting grants
and

contribúions
l57a

C¿pital gr¿nts

contibìrtioDs
I7o

a

a

Other

UffesÍicted
iûterest eamings

0lo

15Vo

Otlpr Taxes
lSlo

Sales Taxes
l97o

Prcpeíy Taxes
3O7o

Revenues by Source' Government Activities

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $192,148,818. However, the amount that taxpayers
paid for these activities through City and State taxes was orìly $130,697,208. Some of the cost was paid by:

o Those who directly benefited from the programs ($29,306,408), or

o Other governments and organizations that subsidized cefiain programs with grants ($32,645,278).

Business-type Àctivities - Business-type activities net assets increased by $5,672,365 in 2010, compared
to an increase of $3,149,170 in 2010. Revenues from business type activities increased more than 16

percent to $28,251,955 and expenses increased 7.1 percent to $22,579,590. Key elements contributing to
these results included:

Charges for services for business-type activities increased by 4.4 percent. The Water Utility accounts
for a significant portion of this increase. An increase of 3 percent in gallons of water supplied coupled
with a 3 percent rate increase on January 1't, provided $1.0 million more revenue. Although water sales

were up in 2010 they remain well below the ten year average. Higher than average rainfall and

conservation efforts have impacted water usage.

The Water Utility received capital grants and contributions from developers of $3,498,532 in 2010
compared to $749,76'7 in2009. Certain non-recurring (or one-time) grants and contributions are often
not predictable and distorting in their impact on year-to-year comparisons.
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Expenses and ProgramRevenues - Business-type Activlties
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUS SION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S MAJORFUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term

inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a

government's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

As the City completed the year 2010, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$59,509,975, an increase of $5,323,137 (9.8 percent) in comparison with last year. Unreserved fund
balance was $40,959,414, and is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder

$18,550,561 is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed to 1) liquidate purchase orders of the prior period ($9,359,281),2) pay debt service
($8,317,681), 3) for long-term notes receivable ($134,496), 4) for intergovernmental agreements,
($705,000), and 5) for endowments which are restricted to principal ($34,103).

The General Fund is the chiefoperating fund ofthe City. At the end ofthe current fiscal year, unreserved

fund balance of the General Fund is $22,516,220, while total fund balance reached 522,615,112. As a

measure of the General Fund's liability, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total
fund balance to total expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 20 percent of total General Fund
expenditures.

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased $608,889 during the current fiscal year compared to
a decrease of 52,346,275 for 2009 and a decrease of $8,853,984 for 2008. The increase is primarily the

result of stabilizing elastic revenues which finished the year 51,427,943 above the budgetary estimate.
Elastic revenues are those revenues that tend to change with economic conditions such as, sales tax, use

tax, state income tax, and personal property replacement tax.

The Public Library fund balance at year-end was $5,302,738 of which $19,103 is reserved for endowments.
The net increase in fund balance during the current fiscal year in the Library Fund was $1,274,781. This
increase is primarily the result of a complete restructuring; which included a reduction of staff and reduced
hours of service.

The Community Development fund balance at year-end was $ 1,346,875 of which $705,000 is reserved for
intergovernmental agreements and $58,192 reserved for encumbrances. There was a decrease in fund
balance of $198,556. This decrease was the result of an increase in non-reimbursable operating
expenditures.

The Human Services fund balance at year-end was $161,949 of which 5134,496 is reserved for long-term
notes receivable. The net decrease in fund balance during the current frscal year in the Human Service
Fund was fi29,166. This decrease was due to an increase in non-reimbursable operating expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund total fund balance at year-end was $8,3 17,681, all of which is reserved for the
payment of debt service. The net increase in the fund balance during the current year was $328,399. This
increase corresponds with the increase oftransfers into the Debt Service Fund during the current fiscal year
needed for principal and interest payments during following fiscal year.

Capital Projects Fund total fund balance at year-end was S13,610,820 of which 59,782,696 is reserved for
encumbrances. The net increase in fund balance during the current fiscal year to the Capital Project Fund

was 51,536,129. This increase was the result of holding $1.5 million in sales tax revenues earned in 2010

for future construction projects.
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Proprietary funds - The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Budgetary Highlights

The City Council passed a supplemental budget appropriation increasing estimated revenues by $.8 million
(less than I percent) and expenditures by $1.7 million (1.6 percent) in the General Fund. The City is legally
authorized by State statutes to amend the budget after June 30. Budgetary results for the General Fund
departments are as follows:

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
[Negative)

Revenues
Expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources and uses
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Net change in fund balance

(1,699,965) (2,613,965) (991,882) 7,622,083

4,717,570 4,717,570 2,781,746 (1,335,824)

9I l8 1l

5 0,1 38 (787,862) 608,889 7,396,751

105,644,402
t07.344.367

106,478,602
109.092.s67

109,408,917
t10.400.799

2,930,315
fl^308.232)

During the year the City spent 101 .2 percent of the f,rnal amount appropriated in the General Fund. Actual
General Fund revenues were more than budgetary estimates by 2.7 percent. As discussed previously,
although revenues have stabilized they remain below 2007 levels due to the national economic downturn.
In response to the diminished revenues the Cþ; implemented a wage freeze for all exempt employees;
closely scrutinized requests to fill vacant staff positions; and reduced total staffing levels by about 8%
through lay-offs, attrition, and an early retirement program.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - The Cþ's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as

of December 31,2010 amounts to $736,007,616 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, equipment, improvements, roads and bridges, and water and sewer
lines. The City's investment in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation \ryas relatively unchanged for
governmental activities during the current fiscal year (a 1.4 percent decrease). However, net capital assets

increased 6.6Yo for business-type activities. This increase is the result of a $75 million capital improvement
program to improve water quality and modernize Rockford's water utility.

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

Capital additions for the general fund were suspended due to the budget shortfall. However, a few
minor purchases were made with grant funds; the police department purchased two new squad cars;
and the fire department purchased two used pumper trucks and two used ambulances. Total general
fund additions were less than $500,000.

a
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

A variety of street construction projects in both new residential and business developments, along with
widening and expansion projects for existing streets and bridges were completed during the year.

Capital street and bridge projects totaled $14.6 million during the current year. Significant projects in
2010 included - Cþ-wide Residential Resurfacing program ($2.2 million), Morgan Street Bridge
($1.9 million), Kishwaukee Street Improvements ($1.6 million), Sandy Hollow Road Improvements
($1.2 million), Downtown Streetscape, ($824,000), Harrison Avenue Improvements, ($704,000), West
State Street Corridor ($622,000) and the Riverwalk ($355,000).

Various system additions and improvements were completed in the Water Utility Fund at a cost of
$34.7 million; construction in progress as of the end of the current year had reached $14 million.

a

a

Land
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Improvemenß other than building
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Total

General obligation bonds
General obligation revenue bonds
Total bonded debt

Primary Government Capital Ässets (net of depreciation)

Governmental Governmental Business Business-type
activities activities acti

6,899.241
254,791

27,768,256

7,443,573
500,101,t 69

8,134,212
505,4t4,287

6, r 53,8 01
468,814

24,914,244
145:187,865

2,105,712

6,1
2 I 8,386

18,940,609
122,549,682

l ,886,5 l4

723,605
52,682,500

145,787,86s
9,549,285

500,1 0l,l 69

Total
2009

493,263
48,382,834

122,549,682
10,020,726

505,4t4,287

Total
2010

246,899,
274,877

29,442,225

1l
30 550 842 t93

Additional information on the City of Rockford's capital assets can be found in Note III, C on pages 47 - 48
of this report.

Long-term Debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rockford had total bonded debt
outstanding of $143,775,000. This debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. Total debt
decreased by $8,720,000 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease were; $3.4 million
series 20104 issued for the final phase of the $75 million water system rehabilitation and principal
payments of $12.1 million.

Primary Government Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmenhl Governmental Business-type Business-type
T

150 3r 7l

Total

8 0,000 32,235,000
000 7 J 33 39 $l

The City of Rockford's bond rating is Aa2 from Moody's Investors Services.

The State imposes a legal limit of 8.625% of total equalized assessed valuation on the amount of general

bond indebtedness. The City further limits their indebtedness, by ordinance, to 80.0%o of the State limit.
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City of Rockford, Illinois

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUS SION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

As of December 31, 2010 the City's indebtedness was $80,940,682 less than the City limit and
Sl15,595,853 less than the State limit.

Additional information on the Cþ of Rockford's long-term debt can be found on Note III, G on pages 52 -
60 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AIID RATES

The City of Rockford is the industrial and business hub of the Rock River Valley and northwestern Illinois.
Rockford's economy is diversified with manufacturing and medical as its primary base, while call
center/office operations, distribution centers and educational institutions are becoming more irnportant to
the economy. The City of Rockford economic conditions are as follows:

The average unemployment rate for the Cþ of Rockford for the current year was 15.3 percent.
However, the actual rate at year end was 12.9 percent, which is 3.4 percent less than a year ago. This
is higher than the State's average unemployment rate of 10.25 percent and the national aveÍage rate of
9.7 percent.

a

a

Rockford
State of Illinois
United States
Total Employment

Inflation in the metropolitan area compares to the national consumer price index.

City of Rockford MSA Non-Agricultural Wage and Salary Employment
(Annual Averages)

Unemployment rates
2007 2006

t5.30%
10.2s%
9.70%

146,392

15.00%
10.10%
9.30%

144,956

9.10%
6.s0%
5.80%

160,400

6.30%
5.00%
4.60%

166,000

530%
4.50%
4.60%

172,400

All of these economic factors were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2010

The City's goal in developing the 2010 budget was to continue offering citizens basic services, economic
development efforts, and fiscal stability. Development and adoption of the 2010 budget was premised on
maintaining a level of service equivalent to 2009, and continue the capital equipment program.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are $109,092,567, a decrease of 1 percent over the final 2009
budget of $110,148,816. Employee contracts, pensions and other benefit costs make up the largest
increases in the budget, while staff reductions and a temporary suspension of the City's capital
improvement program accounts for the overall reduction.

In December 2010, the City Council approved the proposed budget after numerous revisions from the
original proposed budget. Staff reviewed all revenues and expenditures, changes were made as necessary,
and a balanced General Fund GAAP budget was adopted. This budget allows the City to maintain the
necessary fund and cash balances, as well as allowing fhe 2012 budget process to begin on a sound
financial footing.
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crrY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31,2010

Component Units

Primary Government Rockford
Mass Transit

District

Rockford
Metropolitan
Exposition,

Auditorium and
Oflice Building

AuthoritvASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net

Intemal balances

Due from other govemments

Inventories

Prepaid items

Other assets

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Net pension asset

Capital assets not depreciated

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

Accrued payroll and benefits

Due to other govemments

Unearned revenue

Other liabilities
Deposits and advances

Noncunent liabilities:
Due or payable within one year

Due or payable in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net ofrslated debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects

Debt service

Culture and recreation

Community development

Public health and welfare

Highways a¡d streets

Employee and public liability trusts

Other purposes - Grants

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 58,084,950 $

64,788,281

(144,143)

22,826,054

274,820

s20,619

1,575,300

4,254,2r4

144,143

602,477

276,440

25,339,000

$ 59,660,250 $

69,042,495

22,826,054

87',1,297

520,619

276,440

25,339,000

8,909

27,t63,192

2,426,157 $

1,012,718

274,18t
r62,688

881,909

2,444,039

rs.988.67 I

64,677
'739,241

ttt,829
4,350,763

2,597,014

24.937.601

8,909

6,899,241

s3s.s67.789

20,263,951

t'73.276.63s

688.826.s20 22s.732.160 914-558.680 23.1 561 32.801.125

10,0s2
t0,129,453

1,487,084

173,37r
65,05 1,820

10,194,827

23,945,0s1

2,785,963

tt3,t64

27,78r
135, I 50

10,052

t2,91s,416
1,600,248

r73,371
65,05 1,820

10,222,608

I 35,1 50

28, I 08,557

746,290
s64,302

I,1 88,1 52

627,3t2

754 52R

1,499,868

169,191

798,661

200,000

2 757 .402sR 7i6 807

4,163,506
76.735.209 l'.l5.4 '1) O 6

209,728,465 83.960_773 293.689.238 s.42s.r22

481,780,204 t33,021,249 614,801,453 t8,432,7r0 27,534,615

7,840,349

s,7 r7 ,798
s,302,738
1,346,875

r6t,949
9,647,399

1,000,000

5,04r,923
8,840,349

10,759,721

5,302,738

1,346,87s

16r,949
9,647,399

255,376

45,819

ß2.'t45.0'15\

45,8 l9

$ 479.098.0ss $ r4l-7'n.387 s620.869.442 $ 19 919 S 27.376.003

).70&).15 l?0 036 R60) s8l Rq? sR 612ì

The accompanying notes lo the/ìnancial statements are qn integral part ofthis slalement.
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CITY OF' ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Functions/orograms

Net (Expenses) Revenues ard
Changes in Net Assets

Component Units
Rockford Metropolitan

Charges for
ServicesExDenses

13,297,890 $
89. I 09,ó4 I
35,079,905
13,694,212
7,0't2,936
7373,399

21,230,764
5-290.071

).177 041

7.?.579 590

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

290,000
2,271,739

275,659

Governmental
Activities

$ (7,s23.680) $
(77,308,386)
(2',1,517,0r7)

(7,492,194')
t,49s,131

(6,5 l 5,44s)
(4s,4'70)

(5.290.07 1)

Primarv Government
Business-Type

Activities

Rockford
Mass Transit

District

$ 3,806,732 $

3.806.732

3,008
2.327

5 i35
3,812,067

15 4\7 91?.

Exposition, Auditorium
¡nd Oflice

Buildine Authority

û.578.130)

ll_578-130r

(49,s 1 s)
70 967

21.452
(1,ss6,678)
28 932 681

Total
Primarv government:

Govemmental activities :

General govemment
Public safety
St¡eets, alleys and bridges
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Culture and recreation
Public health and welfa¡e
Interest and fiscal charges

Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities :

'Water

Parking
Total business-type activities
Total primary govemment

Component units:
Bus transportation
Metro Centre - coliseum-arena

Total component unts

$ s,774,210 $
9,130,719
5,291,t49

337,749
8,568,067

204,514

2,380,536

5,864,269

6s3,440
20.909,635

s $ (7,s23,ó80)
(77.308.386)

Q7,517,0t7)
(7,492,194)
r,49s,t3r

(6,5r5,445')
(4s,4'70)

(5.290.071)

s 214.

1 92- I 48_81 8 ?q ?nÁ 401 29.807.880 2.837-398 (130.197.132\

20,402,549 22,715,297 3,r68,300
1 797 745 130232

).4 505 OD. 3 498 532

s 53Rrs4s0 s 29807880 S 633s930 ( l30- r97 -1321

58,784,8r5
36,380,336
3,626,556
t,541,577
2,030,5s4

rr,736,930
7,555,032
5,363,60s
1,058,712
2.6t9.091

130,697,208
478,887

1 55? R7?

132.733.9'72

2,536,840 5,672,365
476.561.215 r ?6 oqq n??

ll'ì0 ls7 132ì

5,481,048 5,481,048
t53_064) 1s3.064)

5.427.984 s.427.984
\ 4)1 q9,4 (1)4164 14R\

58,784,815
36,380,336
3,626,556
1,54t,577
2,030,554

rr,736,930
'1,555,032

5,363,60s
r,058,7t2
2.6t9.09r

244,38r
t30,697,208

723,268
1.557 .87'1

).441R1 t32 S7R 353

8,209,205
6t2.660.23'l

s 14,160,4'19 $ 1,50ó,278 $ 11,419,835 $ s,041,098
t0 016 R68 7 218 738 I 200 000

s 24-t77-347 $ 8.745.016 S 12.619.83s $ 5.041.098

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Metro Cent¡e sales tax
Motel and hotel tourism tax
Local use tax
Income tax
Replacement tax
Telecommunications tax
Utility tax
Franchise taxes

Total taxes
Unrestricted interest eamings
Miscellaneous

Total general revsnues

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending s 47S 098 Oss s 141 771 187 S 620.869.M2 s t9.269.9'19 s

The accompanying notes to thefinancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
BALAITCE SIIEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31,2010

General
tr'rnd

Public
Librarv

tr'und

Communitv
Development

Human
Services

Fund

Debt
Service
['rnrì

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Property taxes receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Notes receivable, net

Accrued interest receivable

Due from the Federal Govemment

Due f¡om the State of lllinois
Due from other govemmental units

Due Íìom other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FTJND BALANCES
Liabilitites:

Bank overdraft

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and benefits

Due to other govemments

Due to other funds

Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for debt service

Reserved for long-term notes receivable

Reserved for intergovemmental agreement

Reserved for endowments

Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 710,s58 $
40,215,668

3,624,431

1s9,855

14,798

12,5s7,455

772,840

8.812.733

5,292,660 s
7,088,459

t5s,279

I I .106

924 $ 953 $ 8,317,681

- 6276,986

1,280,802

28

600,386

2s2,212

9,452

1,4t3,2s3

t,526,670

s 66_868-338 s 12.s47 -504 s 1 8ß2 140 s 1202s40 s 14594.667

$ 10,052 $

1,846,955

1,179,653

168,s09

t38,032
40,2t5,668

694.357

7,088,459

3-091

177,s99

9,243

4,862
3t8,694

).4 R67

707,576
85,703

983,537

1,263,684
sl

6,276,986

$ $ $

91,395

61,821

44.253.226 7.244.766 575 265 3 040 591 6.276.986

98,892 s8,192
8,3 17,681

134,496

705,000

1 9,1 03

22,516,220

5,283,635 583,683 27,4s3

22.61s.112 5.302.738 I 146 R75 161 549 R lr7 681

$ 66-868.338 s 12.547.504 $ I 882 140 s 3.202j40 s 14.594.667

The accompanying notes lo thefinancial stalements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERIIMENTAL FTJNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31,2010

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement ofnet assets is
different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the ÍÌmds. Those assets consist of:

Land
Construction in propgess
Improvements other than buildings, net of $3 16,980 accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements, net of 527,903,7'71 accumulated depreciation
Equipment, net of 524,494,830 accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure, net of $344,933,1 I 7 accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (See Note III - C.)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are defered
in the funds.

Intemal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of fleet management, building maintenance,
inventories, auditing, 9l I communications, risk management, information systems, and employee
benefits for Illinois municipal retirement, unemployment, workers' compensation, and health insurance.
The assets and liabilities of the intemal service fund are included in governmental activities in the
statement ofnet assets. lnternal sewice fund net assets are:

Long-term assets and liabilities applicable to the Citv govemmental activities are not due and payable
in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Inte¡est on long-term debt is
not accrued in sovernmental funds. but rather is recoenized as an exnenditure when due. AII liabilities-
both current and lone-term-are reoorted in the statement of net assets. Also. durine the vear the Citv
issued additional bonds. The amount borrowed is received in the governmental funds and increases
fund balance. Deferred charges for issuance costs and discounts will also be amortized as an
adiustment ofinterest expense over the remaining life ofthe debt.

Pension benefit obligation
Pension benefit asset
Other post employment beneht liability
Prepaid items
Bonds payable
Accrued interest on bonds
Compensated absences
Other liabilities
EPA Water Pollution Obligations
Development agreement
Term note
Section 108 guaranteed loans
Deferred charge for issuance costs
Deferred amount on refunding

Total long-term assets and liabilities (See Note III - G.)

s 6,899,241

229,366
26,905,2sr

5,327,743
500.101 ,r69

$ 59,509,975

539,462,770

455,985

I,507,83 I

(121,838,506)

$ 479.098.055

s (291,921)
8,909

(2,13s,480)
520,619

(95,720,000)
(176,01 1)

(s,277,825)
(9,469,008)

(497,s76)
(9,1s0,967)
(1,7e9,ee6)
(1,4ss,000)

226,650
3.379.100

Total net assets of govemmental activities

The accompanying notes to thefinancial stqtements qre qn integral part of this statement.
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLTNOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AI\[D
CHANGES IN FT]ND BALANCES
GOVERIIMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

General
Fund

Public
Library

Fund

Comrnunity
Development

Fund

Human
Services

Fund

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govemment
Public safety
Streets, alleys and bridges
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Culture and recreation
Public health and welfare

Debt service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay:
Public safety
Streets, alleys and bridges
Community development
Culture and recreation
Public health and welfare

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
lssuance of promissory term note
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 69,691,411
4,495,706

25,705,017
8,112,091
1,507,353

152,823
344.5t6

998,988
64,626

139,888
24,678
30.633

$

4,805,866 27,185,294

6,870,920 $

39,365
75-878

7,873
77 -270

1o9.408.917 8.129.733 4.921,109 21,270,437

17,731,062
84,181,223
17,377,609
2,158,028

490,078
3,993,976

21,126,402

100,000
79,858 37,252

447,500
15,299

58,388
2

r10.400.799 6.610.308 4163-834 2t-439-314

(991.882\ t.st9,42s 7s7.27s (168.877)

,9205l6,5

.66075

2,781,746
( 1.180.97s)

t39,771
Q44.644\ 195.5-831I

1.600-771 (244.644\ (9s -835 119.711

608,889

22.006.223

1,274,781

4.027.957

(198,556)

1,545.43t

(29,166)

191,1 l5

$ 22,6ts,112 $ 5,302,738 $ 1.346.875 S 161.949

The accompanying notes to thefinancial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Debt
Service
Fund

Capital
Pro.iects

Fund

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

s 7,034,032 $

460,000

75,771,378 $

3,412,550

10,018,414 $
99,019

6,091,334
8,s68,067

61,813

108,786,155
4,594,725

62,059,049
16,744,784
1,647,247

431,036
1.s57.877

144,484
197.796 83 1-784

7,494,032 18,926,208 25,670,43t 195.820,867

9,776,764
3,850,765

575,663

3,984,218
269,625

205,891

14,640,579

598,400
387,969

7,792,277
6,591,156

131,459

200,004
109,998

202,972

31,626

12,905,125
84,569,792
15,361,827
13,603,906
7,081,234
6,551,920

21,257,867

9,416,769
4,283,764

650,472
14,655,878

31,626
58,388

27s.660

t2-967.529 19.675.976 s.445.R6 190.703.621

ß-473-497\ (749.768]. o.224.570 5.117.246

5,801 ,896
205,891

2,346,s38 1,260,046
205,891

12,329,937
2.729.917\(9. 948 4R7)

5.801.896 2.552,429 (8,688,441) 20s,897

328,399

7.989^282

1,802,661

11.808.159

1,536,129

6.618.671

5,323,137

s4-186-838

$ 8.3r7,681 $ 13,610.820 $ 8,154,800 $ 59,s09,975

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEI\DITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAIICES OF GOVERNMENTAL FT]NDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total govemmental funds

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental frmds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated
useful life and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation (522,555,985) exceeded capital outlays (515,672,024) in the current
period. (See Note III - C.)

In the statement of activities, the amount by which the carrying value of capital assets

disposed ofexceed the proceeds from the sale ofthose assets is reported as a loss.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in govemmental funds and thus
contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of
activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the govemmental
funds, but reduces the liability in thç statement of net assets. (See Note III - G.)

Debt issued:
Refunding general obligation bonds issued
Proceeds from general obligation bonds issued
Proceeds from development agreement
Proceeds from term note
Less: Discounts on bonds issued and issuance costs
Add: Premiums on bonds issued and issuance costs

Repayments:
Principal payment on bonds and other long-term obligations

and amounts paid to escrow agent

Net adiustment

Under the modifìed accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial recources. In the statement of activities, however,
which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported
regardless ofwhen Iinancial resources are available. In addition, interest on long-
term debt is not recognized under the modihed accrual basis of accounting
until due, rather than as it accrues.
This adjustment combines the net changes of the following balances. (See Note III - G.)

Other liabilities
Net OPEB obligation
Net pension obligation
Compensated absences
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest on bonds
Amortization of deferred amount from refunding and bond discounts
Amortization of bond issue costs

Combined adiustment

Internal Service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of Central Garage,
Building Maintenance, Central Stores, Auditing, 9l I Communications, Risk Management,
Data Processing and employee benefits for Illinois Municipal Retirement, Unemployment,

Workmen's Compensation, and Health Insurance to individual funds. The net revenue
(expenses) ofthe above lnternal Service funds is reported within governmental activities.

Change in net assets ofgovernmental activities

$

(205,891)

9,4 t6-768

s (2,2s4,228\
(9s4,1s7\
(882,976)
621,t33
(84,101)

(1,012)
(846,7t6)

(74,478\

$ 5,323,137

(6,883,e61)

(940,920)

(e4e,860)

9,210,87',l

(4,476,s3s\

r.2s4,102

$ 2,536,840

The accompønying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKFORI), ILINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31,2010

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Parking
Svstem Total

$ 1,070,370 $ 504,930 $ 1,575.300 $ 10,796,834

Water
Utilitv

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable:
Water
Estimated unbilled water usage

Other

Total accounts receivable

Less allowance for uncollectible accounts
Total accounts recsivable, net

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories

Current restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Bond construction account
Revenue bond renewal and replacement account
Altemate bond current debt service account

Total current restricted assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Other assets - unamortized bond issue costs

Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Improvements other than land and buildings

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

4,153,941 100,273 4,254,214

1,945,091
2,754,000

20.365 t00.273

1,945,091
2,754,000

r20.638 42.999

4,719,456

(s6s,s l 5)

100,273 4,819,729

(565.5 r5)

42,999

t43,077

602,477

19,297,077
I,000,000
5.041.923

r,066 r44,143

602,477

19,297,077
1,000,000
5.041.923

42,999

22,703
224,425
274,820

25,339,000 25,339,000

3 r.308,865 606.269 3t.9r5.134 I1,361,781

276.440 276.440

548,635
14,110,150

722,9t3
I 5,788,046
4,923,818

190,167,954

6,153,801
14,1 10,150

722,913
36,231,s94

5,262,888
194,482,74r

20,000
1,490,006
6,437,604

194,234

5,605,166

20,443,548
339,070

4,3t4,787

175.237.955 18.579.071 t93.817.026 3.004,260

s 206.s46,820 $ 19,185,340 $ 225.732.160 $ 14,366,041

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemenL
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Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water
Utilitv

Parking
Svstem Total

Governmental
Activities-
lnternal

Service Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to other funds
Other liabilities
Deposits and advances

Compensated absences
lnstalllment puchase agreement
General obligation alternate bonds payable (net

of unamortized deferred refundins benefit)
IEPA loan
Refundable water main extension advances
Claims and,ludgments payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Compensated absences
Defered revenue
Refundable water main extension advances
Customer water deposits
Installlment puchase agreement
General obligation alternate bonds payable (net

of unamortized deferred refunding beneftt)
IEPA loan
Claims and iudgments payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted:

Capital pro.iects
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net assets

7,045,917 158.602 7.204,sr9

$ 2,528,013 $
225,663
t03,709

27,781
46,226
59,763

2,878,389
1,112,t73

64,200

28,622 $
3,665
9,455

88,924
4,876

2,s56,635 $
229,328
t13,t64

27,781
135,1 50
64,639

2,901,449
1,112,173

64,200

1,340,75t

t2t,936
491,299

76,541
90,922

5.630.784

23,060

7.752.233

3s6,t23 33,966 390,089

338,781
224,592

14,000,000

36,005,685
25,797,107

242,033
945J82

461,09s

33 8,78 l
224,592

14,000,000

34,223,078
25,797,107

1,782,607

3.457.467

74.939.68t 1.816.573 't6.756.254 s,10s_977

81.985.598 1.975.175 81.960.7',|3 12.8s8-210

116,247,84s 16,773,404 133,021,249 2,452,243

1,000,000
5,041,923
2.2'71.454

1,000,000
5,041,923
2.70R.215 (944-412\

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

436.761

s 124.561.222 S r7.2t0.t6s st4t_'771.387 s l-507.831
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crTY oF ROCKX'ORD, TLLTNOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Business-type Activities-
Enterprise Funds

Water
Utilitv

Parking
Svstem Totals

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Parking frnes
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Services
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Charges from General Fund
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATTNG REVEI\IUES @XPENSES)
Interest revenue
Loss on disposal ofcapital assets

Interest expense and service fees

Amortization expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income before capital contributions

Contributions from the State of Illinois
Contributions from developers

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

5982,256
4,604,743
7,029,115
4,360,966
2,036,247

7,367,218
34,310,166
2,235,401

593,209
798,300

583

$ 22,586,801 $

t28.496

1,233,375
53s,1 30

2s.240

s 23,920,176 $
535,1 30
153.736

45,808,384
11,263

691.481

24 511 r28

483,700
430,325
27,959

122,615
410,710

6,465,956
5,035,068
1,057,074
5,083,5 8l
2,446,957

753 '753

78-013-327 2.077.062 20 090 389 45_304.877

4.701.970 (283,317',) 4.418.653 1.206.2s1

242,523
(6, I 38)

(2,272,839)
(r10.24s\

(98,01 5)
(1.964)

244,381
(6,138)

Q,370,854)
(112.209\

67,790

(19,939)

1,858

(2.146.699\ (98,121) o.244-820\ 47.851

2.555.271 1381.438) 2 7? 873 1_254-102

3,073,800
94.500

330,232 3,404,032
94.500

s.723.s71 (5r,206\ 5.672.365 1.254,102

253 729

sr24.561.222 s t7^210.16s s r41-771.387 S 1.507.831

7t 13

The accompanying notes to thefinancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

\üater
Utilitv

Parking
Svstem Totals

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service Funds

CASH FLO}YS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Other receipts
Payment to suppliers
Payment to employees
Payments for interfund services used
Payments to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CÄSH FLO\üS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATEI)
FINANCING ACTryITIES

Proceeds from capital grants

Proceeds from sale of general obligation altemate bonds
Proceeds from installlment puchase agreement
Proceeds from IEPA loan
Proceeds from sale ofcapital assests
Bond issue costs
Interest paid on general obligation alternate bonds
lnterest paid on installlment puchase agreement
Principal payment on general obligation alternate bonds
Principal paid on installlment puchase agreement
Principal refunding on general obligation altemate bonds
Principal payment on loans from IEPA
Repayment to contractors for water mains
Capital asset acquisitions

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLO\ilS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Displayed as:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

/l1.282.072], 1L66.63 r 448 70Sl

s 22,4s4,72s S

128,496
(4,016,158)
(s,965,326)
(1,255,185)
(2.036.247)

$24,222,016
128,496

(4,461,433)
(6,449,409)
(1,665,895)
o_036-247\

s 46,7s3,977

(36,465,s73)
(7,380,287)

(798,300)
(323.576)

1,767,291

(445,27s\
(484,083)
(410,710)

9-3 t 0-305 427.223 g 737 528 1.',186.241

3,073,800
3,400,000

8,277,200
3,351

(71,308)
(r,s44,613)

(204,s38)
(l 50,923)

330,232

(98,688)

(25,000)

3,404,032
3,400,000

8,277,200
3,351

(71,308)
(1,643,301)

(204,538)
(t7s,923)

6t7,617

(9,600)

(65,600)

(720.278\

(3,080,000)
(237,404)
(76,t76)

(20.67t.461) (373.1 8 I

(3,080,000)
(237,404)
(76,176)

(21.044_642l.

(177.861\

284.210 1.688 2R5 RgR 68.487

(1,687,557)

28.096.927

262,274

242.656

(1,42s,283)

28_339.s83

1,676,867

9.119.967

$ r,070,370 $ 504,930 $ 1,575,300 $ 10,796,834

The accompanyingnotes to the/ìnancial statements are an integral part of this statement

s 26.409.370 $ 504,930 s 26.914.300 s 10.796.834

(Continued)
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASrr FLOWS (CONTTNUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31,2010

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

ÌYater
Utilitv

Parking
System

Governmental
Activities-
Internal

Service FundsTotals

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adlustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Increase (decrease) from changes in:

Accounts receivable
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Due from other govemmental units
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Deposits and advances

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

Loss on disposal ofassets
Distribution main contributed from developers
Accrued interest from IEPA loans converted to loan principle
Amortization of issue and discount costs paid

in prior years
Amortization of revenue and general obligation bond refundings
Capital asset additions in accounts payable at year-end

Total noncash capital and related financing activities

$ 4.701.970 $ Q83.3tT $ 4.418.653 $ 1,206,251

4,360,966 722,6t5 5,083,581 593,209

( 107,833)
(4,162)

107,214
s,404

(28,188) (136,021) 73,102
- (4,162)

107,214 64,281
- 5,404 -

117,969
- 72,733 (r,577)

14,762 t9s,tt9 (404,748)
2,604 22,883 10,878
(2,987) (6,336) (23,947)

(323,s76)
1,734 1,734 105,466

- (3,193) 368,933
- (20.081) -

72,733
180,357
20,279
(3,34e)

(3, l 93)
(20,081)

4,608.335 710,540 5,318,875 579,990

s 9.310,30s s 427,223 g 9,737.528 S 1,786.241

$ (6,138)
94,500

(280,969)

$ (6,138) $
94,500

(280,969)

( 101,035)
(9,21t)

2.015.623

(99,071)
(9,2t1)

2.O15.623

1,964

s 1.712.770 s t-964 R 7l4 '134 s

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are qn integral part of this statemenL
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOIS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31,2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments - retkement plans

U.S. Treasury Strips

U.S. Treasury Bills
U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Treasury Bonds

Governrnent National Mortgage Association

Government Backed Corporate Bonds

Federal National Mortgage Association

Federal Farm Credit Bonds

Small Cap Equity Common Stocks

Large Cap Equity Common Stocks

NTGI Collective Trust

ABN AMRO Stable Value Funds

Domestic Mutual Funds

International Mutual Funds

Total investments

Accrued interest receivable

Contributions receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

Pension Trust
Funds

$ 3,325,938

3,376,057

5,360,686
1,226,540

3l2,3ll
6,144,798

2,062,477

7,620,392

1,805,047

24,302,778

79,669,731

121,459,995

13,911,560

44,818,204

39,833,555

29t,904.131

194,558

9,469,008

304.893.635

147 787

$ 304,745,848

The accompanying notes to the financial statements qre an integral part of this statemenL
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Pension Trust
Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer
Plan member

Total contributions

Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of invesfments
Interest and dividend income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expense

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

$ 11,621,909
3,773,225

15,39s,133

23,344,276
4,034,796

27,379,072
(7s0.334)

26,628,738

42.023.871

24,545,522
24,325

283.4s8

24,8s3.305

77,r70,566

287.575.282

$ 304.745,848

The accompanying notes to the Jìnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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crTY oF ROCKF'ORD, TLLTNOTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF' SIGITIF'ICA¡IT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES

Ä. REPORTING ENTITY

The Cþ of Rockford, Illinois (the "City") is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and a fourteen-
member Council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the goveÍìment is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from
the government.

Discretely presented component units

The City's component units consist of the following:

Rockford Mass Transit District (the "Districf') - The District is a public service bus company organized to
provide mass transit services to Rockford.

Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and OfFrce Building Authority (the "Authority") - The Authorþ
operates the Metro Centre with its responsibility to arrange, f,rnance and maintain industrial, cultural, theatrical,
sports, trade, and other activities that meet the needs of the citizens of Rockford.

The governing boards of both the District and Authority are appointed by the City's Mayor and substantial funding is
provided by the Cþ for their operations. The City also guarantees certain debt of the District. Both are reported on a
June 30 fiscal year. Separately issued financial statements may be obtained from their respective administrative
offices located in Rockford, Illinois.

In June 1999,the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Locql Governments. Significant
changes in the Statement include the following:

A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the Cþ's overall
financial position and results ofoperations;

Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the City's activities, including
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.);

A change in fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to the financial
statements). During frscal 2002, the City elected to implement the general provisions of the Statement and have
retroactively reported infrastructure (assets acquired prior to December 31, 2002) in the hscal year ending
December 31,2006.

o

a

o

o

o
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CITY OF ROCKFORI), ILINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND X'IIND FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide furancial statements report information about the primary govemment and its component units.

These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the City's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities with the difference reported in three

categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists ofcapital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and reduced

by outstanding balances for bonds and other debi that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement
ofthose assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either extemally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the criteria of the two preceding categories.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are

those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular

function or segment. Program revenues include l) fees, fines, and charges paid by recipients of goods or services

offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are

reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported

as separate columns in the fund furancial statements. Additionally, the City reports columns for nonmajor
governmental funds and internal service funds in its financial statements.

c. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASrS OF ACCOTINTTNG, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the

accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded

when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are

recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cwrent hnancial resources measurement focus and

modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.

Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues from federal, state and local
reimbursement type grants to be available if they are collected within one year of the end of the current fiscal period.

The City considers all other revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal
period, except for property taxes for which the availability period is 60 days. Expenditures are recorded when the

related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims, and

compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset

acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues,

franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
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crTY ox' RocKFoRn, [LrNors
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current hscal year to the extent they are available. All other

revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement

grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, they are both restricted and unrestricted net

assets available to hnance the program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such

programs followed by general revenues.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the

Enterprise Funds apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins as

issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The City has elected not to apply FASB Statements or Interpretations issued after November 30,

1989.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the governmental-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are pal,rnents-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's

water and parking function. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported

for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary

fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Cþ's Water Utility and Parking System

enterprise funds and of the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for services. The City also

recognizes as operating revenues fines, rents and miscellaneous for the above enterprise funds. Operating expenses for
the enterprise funds and internal service funds include salaries and benefits, services, supplies and materials, and

depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and

expenses.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate

statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund
hnancial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are reported as non-major funds.

The City reports the following major govemmental frrnds and fund types:

General X'und

The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the general operations ofCþ
government which are not more properly accounted for in another fund. The revenues of the General Fund are

primarily derived from general property taxes, charges for serVices, fines, licenses and permits, and certain

revenues from State and Federal sources. The expenditures of the General Fund primarily relate to general

administration, police and fire protection, street inspection and maintenance, building inspection, and planning and

zonrng.

Special Revenue Funds

Public Library - This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the main downtown library and five
branch libraries. Financing is mainly provided by a specific propefty tax levy. Other sources of revenue include
replacement taxes, rental of books and films, etc.
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crrY oF RocKFoRD, TLLTNOTS
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

Community Development - This fund accounts for community rehabilitation projects, including certain community
loans, financed primarily by communþ grants from the Federal government. Projects include public and private

rehabilitation.

Human Services - This fund accounts for services provided by the City's Human Services Department, including
certain community loans. Services include Head Start program for children, weatherization of homes, payment of
heat and electrical bills on behalf of persons in need and services related to intervention and correction programs

for youths involved in anti-social behavior and gang activity. Financing is primarily provided by grants from the

Federal govemment and the State of lllinois-Social Services and the General Fund.

Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of principal and interest on general

obligation bonds. Debt service resources are principally from property taxes levied by the City and transfers from
other funds.

Capital Projects X'und

This fund is used to account for resources designated to construct or acquire general capital assets and major
improvements. Such resources are provided principally from proceeds of general obligation bonds, Federal and

State grants, interest earned on such funds and transfers from other funds.

The Cþ reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Utility X'und

This fund is used to account for the provision of water services to the residents of the City and some residents of
Winnebago County. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but
not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service and billing and

collection.

Parking System F'und

This fund is used to account for the activities to provide ample parking for the business districts within the City.
Activities include, but are not limited to, the collection of parking revenue from reserved spaces, the issuance and

collection of parking fines, administration, operations, and maintenance.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds

These funds account for central gatage, building maintenance, central stores, Illinois Municipal Retirement,

unemployment, workrnen's compensation, auditing, health insurance, 911 communications, risk management and

information services provided to other departments and outside agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Pension Trust Funds

These funds account for Police and Firefighter's retirement systems, which accumulate resources for pension

benefit payments to qualified employees.
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CITY OF ROCKF'ORI), ILINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

D. ASSETS, LIABTLITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

(I)CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

Cash received by the City is deposited in various bank accounts. The major account is the conìmon pool account.

The majority ofthe other bank accounts are for Special Revenue Funds, which are required by State statutes, and

for Debt Service Funds which are required by bond ordinances. Miscellaneous accounts include petty cash and

special donations. Cash accounts with a deficit balance are shown in the financial statements as bank overdrafts.

The Cþ considers all cash accounts and all highly liquid investment instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The City also considers investments held by the common
pool account to be cash equivalents because the common pool is used essentially as a demand deposit account by
the various funds of the Cþ.

Total cash and cash equivalents for the City's governmental and business-type activities at December 31,2010 is

884,999,250, of which 575,615,609 is in the cornmon pool account.

(2) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Investment activity is carried on by the City in an investment pool, except for those funds required to maintain their
investments separately. The funds included in the pool participate in the earnings of the pool in proportion to their
average balance therein. Should any ofthese funds have an average def,rcit in the pool, they are charged interest

accordingly.

State statutes authorize the City and its component units to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial
paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, and the Illinois Funds Investment Pool.

The City's (including its component units) investments are carried at fair value. Securities traded on national
exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments in mutual funds are reported at their cash

redemption value. Unallocated insurance contracts are reported at contract value. Investments that do not have an

established market value are reported at estimated fair values.

(3) RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Propefy taxes receivable are recognized at the time they are levied. The current year's levy was adopted
December 12,2010. Properly taxes are an enforceable lien on property on January I and are payable in two
installments in June and September subsequent to the year of the levy. The 2010 levy is deferred as it is intended

to finance hscal year 20 1 I .

The Property Tax Extension Limitation Law imposes mandatory property tax limitations on the ability of taxing
districts in Illinois to raise revenues through unlimited property tax increases. The increase in property tax
extensions is limited to the lesser of 5Yo or the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for all urban
consumers. Even taxes levied for tort immunþ, for prevention and safety, municipal retirement and social security
purposes are subject to the limitation provisions. The amount of the limitation may be adjusted for new properfy
added or annexed to the tax base and due to voter approved increase.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectibles. The property tax receivable

allowance is equal to I percent of outstanding property taxes at December 31,2010.

Notes receivable in the governmental funds consist primarily of rehabilitation and redevelopment loans that are

generally not expected or scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year.
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crrY oF RocKFoRD, TLLTNOTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' Continued

(4) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The Cþ has the following types of transactions between funds:

Loans and Advances - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. In the fund fuilancial statements,

interfund loans are reported as due from other funds in lender funds and due to other funds in borrower funds. Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-þpe activities are reported as

internal balances in the government-wide statement of net assets.

Services provided and used - sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price approximating
their external exchange value. Interfund serVices provided and used are reported as revenues in seller funds and

expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as due to/from other funds in the fund
balance sheets or fund statements of net assets.

Reimbursements - repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures oÍ expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Transfers - flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a

requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds

making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers

in/out are reported as a separate category after non-operating revenues and expenses.

(5) INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Inventories of Proprietary Fund Types and Component Units are carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than

when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items

in the government-wide financial statements.

(6)RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain proceeds of Water Utility Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment,

are classified as restricted cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable
bond covenants. The "bond construction accounf' (919,297,077) is used to report those proceeds ofbond issuance

that are restricted for use in construction. The "revenue bond renewal and replacement accounf'($1,000,000) is

used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

The'oalternate bond current debt service account" ($5,041,923) is used to segregate resources accumulated for
alternate bond debt service payments over thç next twelve months.

These accounts are all presented in the restricted asset accounts in both government-wide and fund furancial
statements.

It is the City's policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLINOTS
NOTES TO THE FINAITCIAL STA,TEMENTS, Continued

(7) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,

sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the

government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost ifpurchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estirnated fair
market value at the date of donation. In accordance with the prospective reporting of infrastructure assets allowed
under GASB Statement No. 34, infrastructure assets acquired prior to January 1,2002, have been recorded on the
government wide frnancial statements as of January 7,2006.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset

lives are not capitalized.

Property, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are

depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Property and Equipment Years
Infrastructure 20-99
Buildings 20-50
Building Improvements 20
Equipment 2-15
Improvements Oûrer Than Buildings 2-15
Land Improvements 1540

(8)DEFERRED / I.INEARNED REVENUBS

Deferred and unearned revenues are those amounts under the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting for
which asset recognition criteria have been met, but which revenue recognition have not yet been met because such

amounts have not yet been earned.

(9) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements consists

of unpaid, accumulated vacation and sick leave balances. The liability has been calculated using the vesting

method, which means amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and

other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are

included. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example,

as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

( 1 O)LONG-TERM OBLTGATTONS

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements of net assets, long-term debt and other

long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance cost, are

deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond

issuance cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other furancing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are

reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,

are reported as debt service expenditures.
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(11)FUND EQUTTY

In the fund financial statements, govemmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not

available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specihc purpose. Designations

of fund balance, if any, represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

rr. STEWARDSHTP, COMPLTANCE AltD ACCOUNTABTLTTY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for the general fund and special revenue frurds except for the Veteran's Scholarship, Flex Care and Justice

Assistance Grant funds. In addition, annual budgets are not adopted for the City's Debt Service, Capital Projects

enterprise, internal service or pension funds. The budget represents departmental appropriations, expenditures and

other uses, as authorized by the City's appropriation ordinance, and includes revisions authorized by the City Council

to reflect changes in departmental programs. All appropriations of the budgetary fund (General and Special Revenue

funds) automatically lapse at year-end. There is no difference between GAAP and budgetary basis of accounting.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. Transfers of appropriations between departments within
the General Fund require the approval of the City Council. The level of budgetary control is the department level
(fund level for Special Revenue funds). The Cþ Council may amend the budget in total by a supplemental

appropriation ordinance after June 30, per State statutes. Management may amend the budget during the year within a

department, without seeking the approval of the governing body.

Encumbrances, which represent purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for goods and services not yet

received, are reported as reservations offund balances in the governmental firnds. Encumbrances are not recorded as

expenditures or liabilities in the financial statements. Actual expenditures are recognized when the goods or services

are received.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITI]RES AND OTHER USES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The City's budget consists of appropriations for both expenditures and other financing uses. The following funds have

exceeded their departmental appropriations for the year by the amount shown:

MAJOR FT.JNDS:

General Fund
Finance office
Workforc e inve stment board

Board of election
Personnel department

Police Department
Fire Deparünent

Public works - Administration
Public works - Street lighting

Community Development Fund

Human Services Fund

I Q95,347)
(1,590)

(21,705)
(34,359)

Q76,772)
(1,578,959)

(22,456)

(94,239)

(196,744)

(8,144,733)
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NONMAJOR FUTIDS:

Tourism Fund
Special Projects Fund

RKFD Metro Agency for Planning Fund
Tax Increment Financing Area - Springfield Conrners Fund
Tax Increment Financing Area - Hope Six Fund
Tax Increment Financing Area - PrestorVCental Fund
Tax Increment Financing Area - West State & Central Fund
Tax Increment Financing Area - River North Fund

c. DEX'rCrT FII\I) EQUTY

The following funds have deficit fund balances/net assets as of December 31,2010

$ (1,149)
(34,090)

(17,898)
(l,l 55,138)

(12,102)
(1,ó38)

Q36)
(241,826)

Special Revenue Funds:

Redevelopment

Special Projects

RKFD Metro Agency for Planning

Tax Increment Financing Area - Springfield Corners Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Rockford Global Trade Park Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Noúh Main Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - River Oaks Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Garrison Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Hope Six Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Preston / Central Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - West State & Central Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Vy'est State & Kilburn Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - West Side II Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - North Main and Whitman Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Midtown Fund

Tax Increment Financing Area - Broadway Fund

Internal Service Funds:

Worlanan's Compensation Fund

Unemployment Fund

Risk Management Fund

g(2,914,537)

Q2,490)
(l I 1,989)

(17 6,656)
(83,879)

Q}eA6s)
Q60227)
Q89,922)
(129,600)

(1,160,593)

(50,619)

(1,'t76)

(7,356)
(219,090)

(45,891)

(4l,l8l )

$(1,398,819)
(134,925)

(3,607,904)

Special Revenue tax increment lurancing area fund's deficits will be alleviated by future property tax revenues. The
Redevelopment fund's deficit will be alleviated with future sales tax revenues and a debt restructuring. The Special
Projects fund's deficit will be alleviated by future license and permit revenues. The Internal Services fund's dehcits
will be alleviated from increased rate charges to participating funds.
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III.DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FI]I\I)S

A. DEPOSITS AND IT\TVESTMENTS

The carrying values of deposits in furancial institutions and investments at December 31,2010 are as follows

Primary
Government

Pension Component
UnißTrust Funds

Deposits in financial institutions
Overdrafts

Investments
Investments-pension trust funds

Cash and cash equivalents:

Unrestricted

Restricted

Pension funds

s 4,573,768 S

(10,052)

80,425,482

425,402

804.667

3,372,943$

294,

s 84989J98 929s230.069 $

These amounts are reported in the accompanying Statements ofNet Assets at December 31,2010 as follows:

Primary

Government

Pension

Trust Funds

Component

IInits

$ 59660,250

25,339,000

$ s 2,491,034

881,909

3,325,938

InveSments:

Unrestricted

Resticted

291,W4,131

Bank overdraft ll 0-052)

s 84.989.ß8 s 29s230.069 s 3

The primary government of the City (excluding the pension trust funds), the City's component units, and each pension

trust fund have adopted separate investment policies.

Prìmary Government (excluding the pension truslfunds):

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City's
deposits may not be returned to it. The primary government's (excluding the pension trust funds) policy with respect

to custodial credit risk on deposits requires collateralization on all certificates ofdeposit purchased after January l,
1999. The amount of collateral should be at least 1 10% of the total investment less the amount insured by the FDIC or

the FSLIC. As of December 31,2010, all of the City's deposits were insured or collateralized.

Interest Rate Risk - Investments. As of December 3I, 2010, the primary government (excluding the pension trust

funds) had the following investments and maturities:
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Investment ll[aturities (in Yean)

Investment TVne
Fair

Value
Less

Than 1 6-10
I\tbre

Than 101-5

Illinois Furds*
U.S. Treasuy Bonds and Notes
Federal Farm Credit
Federal Home I¡an Bank
Federal Home l¡an l\4ortgage
Federul National Mmtgaæ Associdion
Total

$ 36,535,548
18,591,947
6,9p6,280
2,968,290
4,428,426

$ 36,535,548 $
799,712 6502,550

1995,160
2968,D0
1p00,410

11,289,679
5,001,120

Standard
& Poor's

tuA.r{
tuA'r{
A\rd{
A'rÁ!{
Aird{

$ $

3,428,016

*The Illinois Funds Investment Pool (Pool) is not registered with the SEC. The Pool is administered by the Illinois
State Treasury and oversight is provided by the Auditor General's OfÏice of the State of Illinois. The fair value of the
positions in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares. Because the Pool had a weighted average maturþ of
less than one year as of December 31, 2070, it has been presented as an investment with a maturþ of less than one

year.

The primary government (excluding the pension trust funds) has adopted a policy in regards to interest rate risk that
states that the maximum maturity for its investments shall be under 15 years. The average maturþ of the total
portfolioshallnotexceed5years. AsofDecember3l,2010,T3YooftheCity'sportfoliowillmaturein5orfewer
years.

Credit Risk - Investments. Statutes authorize the primary government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and

U.S. Government Agencies, obligations of states and their political subdivisions, savings accounts, credit union shares,

repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating
services, and the Illinois Funds Investment Pool. The primary govemment's investment policy does not further limit
the allowed investments.

Credit Ratings
I)ecember 31,2010

Credit Rating

482

Illinois Funds
Federal Farm Credit Obligations
Federal Home Loan Bank Obligations
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Obligations
Federal National Mortgage Associdion

NR - not rated.
NA - not available.

Total Fair
Value

36,535,548
6,996,2go
2,96g,2go
4,428,426

10,9M,997

NR
Aaz
Aaa
Aaa
Aaz

Fitch
NA
A'r^v{
NA
Au{r{
êrAA

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterpafiy, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investrnents or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The City's investment policy does not address custodial credit risk. As of
December 31,2010, the Cþ's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk. All investments were held by the
City's agent in the name of the City.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Investments. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magrritude

of a government's investment in a single issuer. The primary government has adopted a policy addressing
concentrations of credit risk. The policy states that U.S. Treasury Securities cannot exceed 50% of the portfolio, U.S.
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Government Agencies and Instrumentalities of Government Sponsored Corporations cannot exceed 50% of the

portfolio, total certificates of deposits cannot exceed 50% of the portfolio, certificates of deposit of any one hnancial
institution can not exceed 20Yo of the portfolio, commercial paper cannot exceed 15% of the portfolio, Illinois Funds

cannot exceed 50% ofthe portfolio, and securities purchased for interest rate play cannot exceed 25o/o ofthe portfolio.

At December 31, 2010, the primary government had the following investments (excluding securities explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. Govemment and investments in mutual firnds, external investment pools and other pooled

investrnents) which exceed 5% of the total investment portfolio:

%o of
Portfolio

Federal Farm Credit
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Obligations

8.7%
13.6%
5.5%

Fírefighter's Pension Fund:

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Firefighter's
Pension Fund deposits may not be returned to it. The Firefighter's Pension Fund does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of December 31,2010, the Firefighter's Pension Fund bank balances were not exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk - Investments. As of December 31, 2010, the Firefighter's Pension Fund had the following
investments and maturities:

lnvestment Mdurities (in Years)

Investment Type

Fair Less More

Value Thanl l-5 6-10 Thanl0
U.S. Treasury Stip Bonds S 8,736,743 S 5,360,687

U.S. Tieazury Billg Notes andBonds 1,538,851 1,538,851

Govemment National Mortgage Association 6,144,798

Federal Farm Credit 1,805,047

Federal National Mortgage Association 7,620,392

National Archives Authority 1,248,909

$ 3,376,056

6,144,798

7,620,392

New Valley Authority
Total

1,805,047

8l 3,568

1,248,909

8l 3,5 68

s 27_908_308 S 5.360.687 S 1 ?8 Rs 1 $ ? R67 524 S 11 141 ).46

The Firefighter's Pension Fund does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means

ofmanaging its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credít Risk - Investments. State statutes authorize the Firefrghter's Pension Fund to invest in obligations of the U.S.

Treasury and U.S. Govemment Agencies, obligations of states and their political subdivisions, savings accounts, credit
union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, the Illinois Funds Investment Pool, certain non-U.S. Government obligations, mortgages,

veteran's loans, common and preferred stocks, mutual funds and life insurance company contracts, subject to
limitations. The Firefighter's Pension Fund does not have a formal policy beyond State statute authorizations.
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Credit Ratings

December 3l 2010
Credit Rating

Total Fair
Value Moody's

Standard
& Poor's Fitch

Feder¿l agency bonds:
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Farm Credit
Ndional Archives Facility Trus
New ValleyAuûrority

s 7,620,391
I,805,047
7,248,909

813,568

Aaa
Aaa
NR

AAA

AAA
AJAA

tuq.A
AAA

AAA
NR
NR
NR

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparly, the Firefighter's Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Firefighter's Pension Fund's investment policy does not

address custodial credit risk. As of December 31,2010, the Firefighter's Pension Fund investments were not exposed

to custodial credit risk. All investments were held by the Firefighter's Pension Fund's agent in the name of the

Firefighter's Pension Fund.

Concentration of Credit Risk_ Investments. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude

of a government's investment in a single issuer. The Firefighter's Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the fund
may invest in any one issuer.

At December 31,2010, the Firehghter's Pension Fund has the following investments (excluding securities explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. Government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools and other pooled

investments) which exceed 5Vo of Iotal plan net assets:

Vo of Pløn
Net Assets

Federal National Mortgage As sociation 5.5

Police Pension Fund:

Custodiql Credit Risk , Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Police
Pension Fund's deposits may not be returned to it. The Police Pension Fund does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of December 31,2010, the Police Pension Fund investments were not exposed to custodial

credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk_ Investments. As of December 31,2010, the Police Pension Fund had the following weighted
average maturities on their fixed income investments.
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Fair
Fair Value

Weighted Average
M InY

Mutr¡,al Funds:
ABN AMRO Stable Value Fund

Daily Collective Fund
Northern Trust Global Investments - I - l0 Year

Daily Collective Fund

$ 13,91 1,560

72.240.809

2.08

4.01

s 86-ts2-369 3.70

The Police Pension Fund does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk - Investments. State statutes authorize the Police Pension Fund to invest in obligations of the U.S.

Treasury and U.S. Government Agencies, obligations of states and their political subdivisions, savings accounts, credit
union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, the Illinois Funds Investment Pool, certain non-U.S. Government obligations, mortgages,

veteran's loans, common and preferred stocks, mutual funds and life insurance company contracts, subject to
limitations. The Police Pension Fund does not have a formal policy beyond State statute authorizations.

The credit ratings of the Police Pension Fund's fixed income securities are as follows:

December 3l 2010

Total Fair
Value Moodv's

Standard
& Poods

Mutual Funds:
ABN AMRO Stable Value Fund
Northern Trust Global Investments - I - l0 Year

Daily Collective Fund

$ 13,911,560

72,240,809

A..A'r{

AA1 AAA

AA

Custodial Credit Risk- Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession ofan outside party. The Police Pension Fund's investment policy does not address

custodial credit risk. As of Decemb er 31, 2010, the Police Pension Fund's investments were not exposed to custodial

credit risk. All investments \ryere held by the Police Pension Fund's agent in the name of the Police Pension Fund.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Investments. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the maglitude
of a government's investment in a single issuer. The Police Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the fund may
invest in any one issuer.

At December 31,2010, the Police Pension Fund had no investments (excluding securities explicitly guaranteed by the

U.S. Government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools and other pooled investments) which
exceed 5Vo oftotal plan net assets.

Component Units:

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Component

Units' deposits may not be returned to them. The Component Units do not have deposit policies for custodial credit
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risk. As of December 31,2010, the Component Units had bank balances totaling 53,372,943. All of this amount was

collateralized, but not by securities held in the Component Units' name.

Interest Rate Risk - Investments. As of December 3 I , 201 0, the Component Units had no investrnents and no formal
policies with regards to managing interest rate risk.

Credit Risk - Investments. Statutes authorize the Component Units to invest in securities issued or guaranteed by the

U.S. Government, interest-bearing accounts in federally insured financial institutions, short-term obligations (less than

280 days) of U.S. corporations with assets over $500 million rated in the three highest classifications by at least two
rating agencies, insured accounts of an Illinois credit union chartered under Federal or Illinois law, money market

mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or agreements to repurchase

these same types of obligations, Illinois Funds and repurchase agreement which meet instrument transaction

requirements of lllinois law. There is no credit quality rating available for the Component Units' investments at

December 31,2010.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the Component Units will not be able to recover the value of their investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Component Units' investrnent policy does not address

custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2010, the Component Units' investments were uncollateralized.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Investments. Concenfration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude

of a government's investment in a single issuer. The Component Units place no limit on the amount the entity may

invest in any one issuer.

At December 31, 2010, the Component Units had no investments which exceed 5%o of total net assets of the

component units.

B. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables and payables as of December 31, 2010 for the Cþ's individual major funds and non-major, internal
service and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:

Gneral
Furd

Public
Library

Cormrmity
Ibdopnuú

Iltrd

Hümn
Senices
fìlnd

Service

Câfital
Pmject
Fi¡ld

Norurnjcr
Gorrrnnmtal

Frmds

hd{ißg
SysEm
Fund

Iûtemal
Sewice

FUnù

Deh

FundFrd

Wa&r
Utility
Ilmd

Rooeivables:

TÐ€s
Accorrils
Notes
Intere$

Grms receir¿bles
l,ess: Allowancefor

t¡:collectibles
Nettotal receivables

Ilæ fn¡moùlcr
gow¡nnEtål E¡ts:
Fedenl

g 42224:rs7 $ 7,201,371 $
s,644920

ls0p00
159.855

- $ 6,382,478 $

óÁ9,824

9,49

$ -$
21,6n

4,941,s06
13ß,732
2,725,596

$ -$ -$
4,719,4s6 1n,273 42,999

1,761,Ílr'2
28

48,t79532 7}01371 1,761,890 e9,276 6,382,478 21,6û 8,975,834 4,719,456 1n,273 42,999

$ 14J98 S

12.ss7 4ss ß5,n9
$ 600,386 $ 1,413,2s3 $

- 1,96,6n
- s æ1,3õ $
- 4,44,285

$ $ $

State ss8,4l1

Ottrer

Pa¡aHes:
Vendcrs

Ottrer goremnrsrß
Accrued interesl

3s1 2

s 1,84695s $
168J09

91,39s $ 177,99 S n7,s76 $
- 4:tß2
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C. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2010 was as follows

Primary Government
Beginning

Balance
Govern mental activities:

Increases
Decreases

and Adiustments
Ending
Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, notbeing depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equþment
Infrastucture

Total capital assets. being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Iand improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastucture

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Govemmental activities capital assets, net

B usiness-type activities:
Capital assets, not being deprrciated:

I¿nd
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Iand improvements
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being deprcciated, net

s 6-899-241 S s 6 899 241

6.899.241 6-899.241

760,580
56,299,028
35,879,879

5l 133 I
1,751 ,723

(20,086)
(1,673,969)
(2A00288)

54

(t,37t,42s)
t2t

1,329,351

760,580
56,299,028
36,260,177

I

(505,789)
(28,530,772)
(28,816,604)

77

(485,703)
(26,856,803)
(27,745,667)

578 44 11J

s43.26s.601 6.756.892) (940 Ð.O\ 535 56 7 89

$ 550,164.842 $ (6.756,892) $ (940.920) $ 542.467,030

Beginning
Balance

Decreases Ending
BalanceIncreases and Adiustments

$ 6,153,801 $
3l

148 I

457,179
29,776,623

167,971,163

274,172
6,864,442

27,130,705
073

(23,744)
(877,444)

Q,887,463)

(8,378)
(409,471)
(619,127)

88

8,37 8
396,109
614,068

70

$ 6,153,801
ll 150

722,973
36,231,594

194,482,741
5 88

23 136

(254,099)
(1 1,317,350)
(48,694,876)

r57

$
7l

131 5l

(238,733)
(10,836,015)
(45,421,481)

6l I

143.595.191 29.703.811 (22.367\ 173.276.635

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 181.151.339 $44.596.097 $ (32206.850) $ 193.540.586
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Construction commitments

The Cityhas active constructionprojects as of December3l,2010. Theprojects include streetresurfacing, widening
and construction of existing streets and bridges, drainage projects, sidewalks, and water system improvements. At year-

end, the City's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Govemmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Streeß, alleys and bridges
Community development
Culture and recreation
Public health and welfare
Internal service

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business - type activities:
Water
Parking

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

Proiect
Base Well Rehab
Keith Creek Watenhed Feasibilþ
Harrison Impr I lth-2Otr
W ater Main Construction
Riverwalk Museum Campus
Kishwaukee St Bridge Over Keith Crk
Kent Creek Trunk
Water Rehab Plan
C-W Alley Recon - Phase I
West State Street Corridor
Central Avenue Bridge
Morsay Drive Over Keith Creek
Perrycreek Interchange/Sp Crk Partn
6th Ward Drainage
Main & Aubum Roundabout
Whitewater Engineering

Total

No future financing is required as a result of these commitments.

s 714,825
1,299,325

19,456,425
14,041

894,593
t77,774
s93 209

s 23.149.192

s 4,360,966
722.61s

$ 5,083,581

Commitment
$ 9,952,320

736,000
734,882
539,593
455.000
429,287
398,205
387,539
366,019
365,463
346,154
314,348
258,925
25 l,100
234,441
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Discretely presented component units

Activity for the District for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciaÞd

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being deprcciated, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

$ 1,965,838 $ 13,046 S - $ 1,978,884
- a65,155 - 465,155

9,356,827 61,830 9,418,657
ts -033.081 4.501.067 (256.541\ 19.277.607
24-389.908 4.562.897 (256.541\ 28.696.264

(3,263,767) 869,564) (3,533,33 l)
I t7

707

72.926.826 3.061.845 15.988.671

$ 14,892.664 $3,540.046 $ - $18.432.710

1

District capital assets, net

Activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows

Beginning
Bala nce

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
I¿nd
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

s 2,597,014

786

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets, being deprcciated

32,239,226 540,079

Increases Decreases
Ending
Balance

t4

4

02,597$ $
5

32,779,305
8.471.711 41.561 - 8.s13.272

40.710.937 s87.640 - 41.292.577

(10,157,352) (827,289) (t0,984,641)
407

25.590.922 ß53.321\ 24 937 .601

$ 28.243.708 $ (199.7031 s (509.3901 $ 27.534.61sAuthority capital assets, net
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D. TNTERFUND RECETVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2010 is as follows:

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to fmance operations, provide

services, construct assets and service debt. To the extent that payments related to certain transactions between funds

have not been paid or received as of December 31, 2010, they are reflected below and reported in the financial
statements as due from or due to other funds.

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Purnose .A.mount

General

Public Library

Capital Projects

Nonmajor
governmental

Intemal Service

Enterprise:
Parking
Water Utility
Water Utility

Community Development
Human Services
Human Services
Nonmajor governmental
Nonmajor governmental
Enterprise parking
Internal Service
Internal Sewice
Internal Service

Interfund cash advances
Interfund c ash advanc es
Interfund interest on common cash
Irúerfund c ash advanc es
Interfund interest on common cash
Irúerfund interest on common cash
Irúerfund cash advanc es

Irúerfund interest on common cash
Interfund loan

$ 318,694
987,537

2,000
7,090,674

14,992

General

General
Nonmajor governmental

General

General

General
General
Internal Service

Interfund interest on common cash

Interfund interest on common cash
Fuûre Motor Fuel Tax receipts and

InJerfund interest on common cash

Interfund interest on common cash

Interfund interest on common cash
Interfund interest on common cash
Interfund loan

l1 106

1,066

g 9,402,347Total governmental funds
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Transfers between funds for the year ended December 31, 2010 are as follows

Transfers in:

General
Fund

tluman
Services

Fund

I)e,D'
Service
X'und

uaprur
Proiecß

tr'und

IìOnmaJor
Governmental

tr'unds Total
Transfers out:
General Fund
Library Frmd
Community Development Fund
Capital Pro.iects Fund
Nonmajor governmental funds

Total transfer out

$ $ 100,000

39,711

$ 914,166 S
244,644

$ 166,809 $ 1,180,975
244,644
955,831

9_948.487

916,120

1-86s-626 4.643-086 2,?.46.538 l o91-277

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the fund collecting the

receipts to the Debt Service Fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
primarily the General Fund to flrnance the various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

E. DEX'ERRED RE\rENUE

Deferred revenue as of December 3 I , 2010 consisted of the following:

Gtneral
Fûd

PuHh Cormüity Hunnn
Library Dwdopnrnt Seruices

Furd Iild Fud

IÞtÉ
Seruie
Fund

captal
Prqieds

Fund

Ithnrnjor
GwermnÉal

Funù

Inúerml
Servioe

Frmds Tifâl

PrçertyTares
Garús
ûher

$40215,668 $ 2088,4s9 $ $ - $ 6276,986 $
t:2ß3,6U

$ +vt,8û $ 5e,408,Cß

r26tM

Governmental funds defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Governmental funds also report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, if any.

F. LEASES

Operating leases - Governmental funds

The City leases certain land and buildings to others under operating leases. Some of the agreements require the real

estate taxes and other executory costs to be paid by the lessee. Future minimum rentals of the primary government total

$64,750 as of December 31, 2010, and are to be received as follows: 20ll - $49,000; 2012 - $13,000; and 2013 -

s2,750.

5l



crrY oF RocKFoRD, TLLTNOTS
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G. LONG-TERM OBLIGATION ACTTVITY

Long-term obligation activþ for the year ended December 31,2010 was as follows:

Balance
January 1,

2l[t) Additions Red uct¡ons

Bslance
December 31,

2010
Due Within
One Year

Governm ental activities:
Bonds payable:

General obligation bonds
Less defened amounts:

For issuance
On refunding

Total bonds payable
Section 108 Guaranteed l¡ans
EPA Water Pollution Obligation
Lines of c¡edit
Term notes
Claims and judgnents

Net OPEB obligation
Netpension obligation

Compensated absences

Governmqltal activities
long-term liabi lities

Busin ess-type activities:
Water Utility Fund:
Bonds payable:

General obligation alternats bonds
Less defened amounts:

For issuance costs
Forgain Qoss) on refunding of:

General obligation bonds
Total water bonds payable

Instal Imert Pu¡chase Agreement
IEPA Loan
Compensated absences

Re[undable water main extension

advance

Customer deposits
Total water utility

Parking System Fund:
Bonds payable:

General obligation alternate bonds
Less defened amounts:

For issuance costs
Total parking bonds payable

Compensated abserrces
Total parking fund

Business-type activities
long-term habrlrtres

Component Uniß:
Rockford Mass Transit District
Net pension obligation
Net OPEB obligation

Rockford Metropolitan
Exposition, Auditoríum

and Office Building Authority
Lines of credit
Notes payable

Total component
unlts

$ 104,735,000 $

(30 1,128)

$ (e,01s,000) $

74478
716

(l 00p00)
(r o l ,764)

Q6sþ04)
(1115,183)

I,555,000
599,340

8,945,076
2,000,000
8,719,318
1,181,323

205,89 1

617,6t7
5,484,1t7

954,r57
291,921

4,322,142

95,720,000 $

(226,6s0)

1,455,000
497,576

9,150,967
2,352,013
9,088,252
2,135,480

291,921

s.596.399

9,015,000

(r s,0s0)

100,000
104,8s5

8,650,967
290,96

5,630,784

988,58 1

6

6,24t,4'79 (4,967 422\

$ 129-449.592 $ 11.876.045 $ (l $ 122.681.858 $ 23.94s.051

s 37,190,000 $

(133,07 l )

(122,1e2)

3,400,000 $

(22,304)

(3,080,000)$ 37,s10,000 $ 2,940,000

e211 (146,t64) (8,426)

s9ß23 (262,369) (s2,819)

36,734,737 3,377,696
14,000,000
18,588,514 11,631,969

4t9,23s 343,454

156 $ ì5

(3,010966)

(3,3112o3)
(346,803 )

94 $

$ (73,0e8) $

3'1,101,467
14000,000
26,909,280

4 I s,886

500,000

2.856.000

2,878,'155

1,112,1't3
80,429

r63

474,rs7 - (76,t76) 39'7,981 s9,213

234,981 - (s389) 229,s92 s,000

70,451,624 15,353,119 (6,750537\ 79,054,206 4,135,570

1,850,000 (25p00) 1,82s,000 2s,000

tt

41 3 4

753 $ 89 7r5

300,484 s
494,044

$ 373,582
247,022 247,022

$

1 ,00 1 ,090
I.056.000

500,000

1.900.000

( 1,001,090)
(l 00.000)

$j 2.611.694 l, 2.641.rJ22 b ( I.
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Intemal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for intemal

service funds are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. Atyear-end, $3 18,574 of internal

service funds compensated absences and $9,088,252 for claims and judgments are included in the above amounts.

For the governmental activities, claims and judgments are generally liquidated by the General Fund. Compensated

absences are generally liquidated by the governmental fund where the related employee salaries are recorded, which
includes the General Fund, Public Library Fund, Community Development Fund, Human Services Fund, Capital
Improvement Fund and other non-major funds. The net pension obligation and pension contributions are liquidated by
the General Fund.

(1) GENERAL OBLTGATION BONDS Af[D ALTERNATE BONDS

The Cþ has issued general obligation bonds to provide for community development and the acquisition and

construction of major capital projects. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-

type activities. The beginning balance of outstanding general obligation bonds was $ 143,775,000. During the year, new

general obligation bonds totaling $3,400,000 were issue for the construction and improvements to the existing

waterworks system..

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. These bonds are issued

as serial bonds due in annual installments of various amounts, plus interest. General obligation bonds cunently
outstanding are as follows:

53



crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
NOTES TO THE FINAITCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

PurDose

Orisinal
Issue

Amount
Interest
Rates

Maturity
Date Amount

Governmental activities
2002-A Sfeet Improvement General

Oblieation Bond Issue
2002-C Charles Street Improvement General

Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2002 Taxable General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
2002-D Springfield Comers General

Obligation Ahemate Bond Issue
2003 Steet Improvement General

Obligation Bond Issue
2004-A Street Improvement General

Obligation Bond Issue
200 4-C Equipment General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
200 4-D Seventh Street Revitalization

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
200 4-E C apital Improvements

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
200 5-A Capital Improvements

General Obligation Bond Issue
2005-C Global Trade Park

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
200 5-C Neighborhood Revitalization

General Obligation Aftemate Bond Issue
2005-D Lowes Distribution Center Taxable

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2006-B Hope Six Revitalization Project

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2007-A Meto Centre Improvement

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2007-B Metro Centre Improvement Taxable

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2007 -E Preston Central Redevelopment

General Obligation Ahemate Bond Issue
2007 -F Sewer Improvement

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2007 -G Library Construction

General Obligation Ahemate Bond Issue
2008-B Redevelopment

General Obligation Ahemate Bond Issue
2009-A Redevelopment

Geneml Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
2009 -B Redevelopment Taxable

General Obligation Altemate Bond Issue
200 9-D Redevelopment Taxable

Geneml Obligation Altemate Bond lssue

8.000.000

3,000,000

2,500,000

1,300,000

8,200,000

8,500,000

3,200,000

2,000,000

4,650,000

8,700,000

915,000

6,305,000

2,850,000

2,500,000

6,300,000

16,700,000

1,100,000

1,100,000

3,050,000

1,300,000

1.650.000

950,000

1,700,000

4.125%- 4.65%

4.2s%- 4.6s%

5.25%- 5.40Yo

4.00% - s.00%

3.25%- 4.00%

3.7s% - 4.25%

3.75% - 4.00%

5.00% - s.25%

3.625% - 450%

3.50%- 4.10%

4.00Yo

4.00%- 4.40%

5.00%- 5.12%

4.15%- 4.15%

4.00%- 4.20%

5.125% - s.40%

4.25o/o - 4.85%

4.00%- 4.25%

4.10Yr - 4.75o/o

3.00Y, - 4.00Y,

4.625% - 5.00%

530%- 5.10%

2.25%- 5.50%

2015

2015

2012

2021

20t6

2017

2014

2016

2023

20r8

2015

2024

2018

2024

2027

2027

2027

2017

2027

2018

2029

2024

2024

$ 3,760.000

1,420,000

900,000

1,070,000

4,550,000

5,210,000

I,510,000

1,230,000

4,250,000

6,140,000

615,000

6,230,000

2,100,000

2,500,000

5,640,000

12,645,000

1,050,000

1,100,000

2,725,000

1,275,000

1,6s0.000

950,000

1.700.000
70,220,000
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Governmental activities - refunding
200 4-F Refunding General Obligation

Bond Issue
200 4-IJ Refunding General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
200 5-C Refunding General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
2007 -C Refunding General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
2009-C Taxable Refunding General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue
2009-E Refurding General Obligation

Bond Issue
200 9-G Refunding General Obligation

Alternate Bond Issue

4,375,000

3,070,000

530,000

6,865,000

8,065,000

7,930,000

1,330,000

3.35%-3.35%

350Yo- 4.25%

4.00%- 4.40%

3.7sYo - 3.75%

5.12s%- 5.40%

2.00%-3.00%

2.00%-3.00%

20tt

2020

2018

201 I
2027

2014

20ls

790,000

2,895,000

505,000

6,005,000

8,065,000

5,930,000

$

1,3 10.000
25.s00,000

$ 9s,720.000

In connection with the Water General Obligation Alternate Bonds, the Cþ passed ordinances authorizing the issuance of
the bonds. Among other things, these ordinances stipulate that revenue from the water utility system will be applied in

the following order:

l. To pay operation and maintenance costs.

2. To pay a fractional amount of the interest and principal payments becoming due on the next payment date.

3. To provide an amount of cash and investments sufficient to pay the maximum annual debt service of the

altemate bonds.

4. To provide an allowance for depreciation, or if not needed, may be used to pay for any extraordinary

maintenance, repairs and replacements or for improvements or extensions of the water system. Amounts in
excess of the amount determined by the City Council as necessary for the depreciation allowance may, at its
discretion, be transferred to the surplus account.

5. To make up any deficiencies in any required credit payment or deposit pursuant to the above requirements.

6. For the purpose of paying principal and interest on subordinate debt or obligation issued for the purpose of
acquiring or constructing repairs, replacement or improvements or extensions to the water system. Remaining

amounts in the surplus account shall be used for any one or more of the following:

o For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacement or improvements to the water system.

¡ For the purpose of calling and redeeming any callable outstanding revenue bonds.

o For the purpose of purchasing outstanding revenue bonds at a price not greater than par plus accrued

interest.
¡ For any other lawful corporate purpose.
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General obligation alternate bonds currently outstanding are as follows

Purpose

Orisinal
Issue Interest Maturity

Amount Rates Date Amount
Business-type activities

Water Utility Fund:
2002-B General Obligation Alternate

Bond Issue 2,220,000 4.25%- 4.65%
2003-8 General Obligation Alternate

Bond Issue 2,200,000 3.35% - 4.00%
20 04-B General Obligation Alternate

Bond Issue 2,200,000 3.75% - 4.25%
20 05-B General Obligation Alternate

Bond Issue 2p00,000 3.65% - 4.lÙo/o
20 06-A General Obligation Altemate

Bond Issue 15,000,000 4.15%- 4.15%
20 07 -D General Obligation Altemate

Bond Issue 3,500,000 4.125% - 4.15%
20 08-A General Obligation Altemate

Bond Issue 9.000.000 3.25% - 5.00%
20 1 0-A General Obligation Altemate

Bond Issue 3,400,000 2.00% - 4.00Yo

Parking System Fund:
20 08-A General Obligation Altemate 1,850,000 4.7s%- 6.00% 2028

2,475,000

4,325,000

3.15%- 3.35%

2.00%-3.50%

$ 1,045,000

1,225,000

1,400,000

1,565,000

13,275,000

3,125,000

8.550.000

J 00
JJ,58s.000

1.825.000

J.

230,000

69s.000

201s

2016

2017

201 8

201 8

2027

2028

2030

Business-type activities - refunding
Water Utility Fund:
20044 Refunding General Obligation
Alternate Bond Issue

20 09-F Refunding Geneml Obligation
Alternate Bond Issue

20tl

201 8

3.925.000
$ 39.335.000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturþ for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Year Ending
December 31 Princinal Interest Principal Interest

2011 $ 9,015,000 $
2012 8,885,000
2013 8.305,000
2014 8,280,000
2015 8,580,000
2016 7,440,000
2017 6,835,000
20l g 6,310,000

3,462,438 s
3,152,302
2,826,113
2,504,562
2,842,491
2,481,589
2,766,770
1,87 5,632
l,600,o73
lAt6,9l0
1,239,916
1,075,898

895,059
699,196
5l1,201
3 5 3,205
187,490

12,500
6,250

2,965,000 $
2,910,000
2,83s.000
2,680,000
2,565,000
2,470,000
2,295,000
2,140,000
1,750,000
1,800,000
1,825,000
1,925,000
2,025,000
2,075,000
2,175,000
2.225,000
I,175,000
1,000,000

250,000

1,615,853
1,520,749
1,421.863
1,319,269
1,274,786
1,1 I l,060
l,0ll,26l

916,980
828,562
753,962
676,319
596,606
510,844
420,456
326,931
228.188
125,187
69,000
20,000

2019
2020
202t
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

935,000
760,000
340,000
635,000
920,000
705,000

J

J
J
J
J
J

J
J

025,000
165.000
335,000
125,000
125,000

I 000
Total

(2) OTHER OBLTGATTONS

a) SECTION 108 GUARANTEED LOANS

During 2003, the City's Community Development Department entered in a contract with the Secretary of
Housing and Urban Development GilJD) under the Section 108 Guaranteed Loans Program. The outstanding

balance at December 31,2010 is $750,000 due in various annual amounts not exceeding $75,000 tbrough2023;
interest at 1 .4l0Yo fo 5.890Yu The proceeds were then loaned to a secondary authorized representative under the
guidelines of the City and HUD contract, for acquisition of equipment for Gray's IGA Grocery Store. During
2005, the City's Community Development Department entered into a contract with the Secretary of Housing and

Urban Development (HUD) under the Section 108 Guaranteed Loans Program. The outstanding balance at

December 31,2010 is $705,000 due in annual amounts not exceeding $130,000 through 2016; interest aI 5.060/o

to 5.ll%;o. The proceeds were then loaned to a secondary authorized representative under the guidelines of the

City and HUD contract, for the purchase of a local manufacturer by an outside company to aid in the retention
and creation of new jobs with the purchase.

b) EPA WATER POLLUTTON OBLTGATTON

During 1990, the City entered into a Funding Agreement with Rock River Vy'ater Reclamation District and the

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to construct an interceptor, described as the Kishwaukee Trunk Sewer

Extension. The sewer extension obligation payable at December 31,2010 is8497,576 due in various bi-annual
amounts not exceeding $l15,000 through 2015; interestat3.0l5o/o.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for other obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Section lUü

Guaranteed l¡ans
EPA Water

Year Ending Pollution

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

r70,000
1 80,000
180,000
190,000
185,000
60,000
60,000
60,000
75,000
75,000
60,000

70416
62,012
53,03 3
43,976
34,317
24,816
21,642
18,414
l5,l 3 I
10,990
6,798
J 14

108,041
7tL,324
1t4,704

58,652

tt,032
7,750
4,369

884

c) LINES OF CREDIT

In November of 2007, the City entered into an agreement with the Rockford Local Development Corporation
(RLDC) an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. Under terms of the agreement, RLDC shall secure a $10,000,000
line of credit to be used for the voluntary acquisition of approximately 80 homes and two commercial properties

that are located within the Keith Creek floodplain. The loan will fund the acquisition costs for each parcel,

demolition expense, costs of all activities related to the project, and an interest reserye to cover carrying costs.

The City shall provide guarantee of the loan and purchase the properties from RLDC at the price RLDC acquired

them, and reimburse RLDC for expenses incurred in the performance of its duties. At December 31, 2010, there

were outstanding bonowings of $8,650,967 under this agreement.

In December of 2009 the City entered into an agreement with PNC Bank to establish a $15.5 million line of
credit. The line of credit will provide cash flow until properrty tax revenues are received in June of 2010. Interest

will be paid monthly at a rale per annum equal to the daily LIBOR rate plus I .4Yo. The Loan Account terminates

and the Note shall be due and payable on December 23'd 2012. At December 31,2010, there were outstanding

borrowings of $500,000 under this agreement.

d) INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

In July of 2008 the City entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement for the purpose of paying a part of the

cost of construction of improvements to the existing waterworks system, authorizing and providing for the issue

of $25,000,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Debt Certificates. Terms of the agreement are balance due on

June 15, 2013 interest is calculated as 65Yo of the three month LIBOR plus 1.2443%. The City redeemed the first

$l1,000,000 on June 15,2009.

restI
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e) PROMISSORY TERM NOTE

In December of 2009 the City issued a $2,000,000 Taxable PromiSsory Note, Series 20098 for the purpose of
paying ordinary and necessary expenses of the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office
Building Authority. Terms of the Note are; ten years with monthly principal payment of $16,667, and interest at a

rate per annum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2yo. At December 37, 2010, the outstanding balance was

$1,799,006.

ln February of 2010 the Cþ entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement to purchase a Fiber Optic Ring. Terms of
the agreement are principal amount due of $617,717 and an annual interest rate of 2.67 percent compounded

monthly, which Promissory Amount shall provide for an aggregate payment of principal and interest of $667,400,
monthly payments of $9,400 for seventy one months. At December 31,2010 the outstanding balance was

$553,007.

Ð TLLTNOTS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTTON AGENCY (IEPA) LOAN

The City has been approved for approximately $44,500,000 in low interest loans from the State Revolving Loan

Fund through the IEPA. These loans range from \Yo ro 2.5o/o interest and some have principal forgiveness of a
portion of the balance. Two of these loans totaling $10,000,000 were funded in part through the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The City has received 929,765,300 in loans, of which $3,073,800 will
not be required to be repaid. The loans are repayable over a 20 year period beginning six months after the date

the project is expected to be completed. The City has begun to make payments on some of the loan agleements

but others are still under construction. Once all the loan projects are completed the estimated annual debt service

will be approximately $2,400,000 per year for twenty years. The City has recorded the debt outstanding in the

Water Utility Fund and will repay the debt with water revenues.

Amount Principal Const¡uction
Interest

BalanceLoans
Received

Date
Loan # Awarded Terms

25%
25%

0% - 25% princ ipal forgiveness
0% - 25% principal forgiveness

1 25% - 25% principal forgiveness
L25% - 25% principal forgiveness
1.25% - 25% principal forgiveness
1 25% - 25% principal forgiveness
1 25% - 25% principal forgiveness
1.25% -25% principal forgiveness

DueFor

Ll72992
L172994
Ll72993
Ll 73068
L174676
L173127
L173128
Ll1ft32
L173t33
L173067

09/30/08
09/30/08
08114/09
09t30/09
06/30/10
06t30/10
o6/30110
08/29/10
t2/ts/10
01/19/11

12,512,945
2,297,070
6,877,227
3,122,773

720,521
3,128,99s
2,633"30f

913,740
181,087

3,611,244

I I,s 82, 100
2,039,800
4,1s7,n0
3,122,700

1 s8,800
2n,n0
1 91, 100

239,748
11,407

299
383
556

(67.82e)
1 t,82 1,848

1,98 3,3 78
2,438,593
2,342,007

299
383
556

(1,719,307)
(780,693)
(1 58,800)
Q23,e00)
(19r,r00)

g) COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Governmental activities :

Vested vacation pay of 54,012,796 and vested sick pay of $1,583,603 for employees paid from govemmental

funds are included in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.
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(3) REFUNDTNG OF DEBT

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new general obligation
bonds in escrow accounts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. The total amount ofdefeased
debt at December 31,2010 is $17,260,000, of this amount $15,055,000 relates to the debt service fund and $2,205,000
relates to the rWater Utility. Funds in escrow accounts are excluded from the Cþ's financial statements.

(4) LEGAL DEBT LIMITATION

The State imposes a legal limit of 8.625% of the total equalized assessed valuation on the amount of general bond
indebtedness. The Cþ of Rockford further limits its indebtedness, by ordinance, to 80.0olo of the State limit. As of
December 31,2010, the City indebtedness was $80,940,682 less than the City limit and $115,595,853 less than the State

limit.

(s) coMPoNENT rrNrrs

a) LIIIIES OF CREDIT

The Authority, in 2010, obtained a line of credit through the City of Rockford (CiÐ in the amount of $500,000
for the purpose of making deposits to secure acts at the City's borrowing rate of LIBOR (.30815%) plus l.4o/o

As of June 30, 2010, the amount of outstanding borrowings under this agreement was S0.

b) NoTES PAYABLE

On November 73, 2007 the Rockford City Council approved a $456,000 no-interest, 15 years, loan to the

Authorþ, for operations. In 2009 the repayment terms were amended to begin on January 1,2013 for principal

of $30,000 each year. In 2009 the City also extended a $600,000 loan to the Authority and in the

Intergovernmental Agreement dated JuTy 20,2009 the Authority agreed to begin $30,000 quarterly repayments

of that loan, beginning January l, 2073 . In the City's statements these notes receivable are completely offset by
an allowance for doubtful accounts.

On December 23,2009 the City funded a $2 million loan to the Authorþ, the proceeds of which were used

primarily to pay off a $1,200,000 bank revolving line of credit. $100,000 was retained by the City as a six month

advanced principal payment on the term debt and the remaining $700,000 was used to pay vendor obligations.
The term debt is structured with a 10 year arrofüzation, whereby commencing in January 2010, the Metro Centre

repays the City S16,667 monthly principal and interest at LIBOR plus 1.4%. These monthly payments are

currently holdbacks from the City's monthly support payments to the Authority.

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. II\DUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT REVEI\IIE BOI\DS

The City issued and has an estimated $19,107,847 in outstanding industrial development revenue bonds. Proceeds

from these issues were used to finance in whole or in part the cost of the acquisition or improvement of economic

development projects. Debt service on these issues is paid solely from the revenue and receipts derived from the

economic development projects. The bonds are not a liability, nor is the resulting propefty an asset of the City and

accordingly, neither are reflected in the City's financial statements.
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B. CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

Grantor Agencies

Federal and state grants-in-aid received by the Cþ are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Ifgrant
revenues are received for expenditures which are subsequently disallowed, the City may be required to repay the

revenues. In the opinion of management, liabilities resulting from such disallowed expenditures, if any, will not be

material.

C. RISK MANAGEMENT

1. Claims and Judsments

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; and

errors and omissions. The Cþ is self-insured for general and auto liabilþ damages. The City has purchased

commercial insurance coverage for catastrophic losses to buildings and contents totaling $43.5 million. The City
has also obtained commercial liability insurance for certain programs supported by State and Federal grant

programs.

The insurance coverage is consistent with the prior year and the amounts of settlements during the past three

years have not exceeded this coverage.

The revenue and expenses relating to the City's claims and judgments, other than health care and workers'

compensation, are recorded in the Risk Management Internal Service Fund. The charges to the individual funds

are based on specific identiflrcation. The Risk Management Fund records expenses for claims, insurance

coverage and administrative fees.

A liability for a claim has been recorded in the Risk Management Internal Service Fund if information indicates

that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the

loss is reasonably estimated. This liability is the City's best estimate based on available information. The

estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts, if any, for incremental claims adjustment expenses related

to specihc claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims.

The following represents changes in unpaid claims and judgments for the past two years:

2010 2009

Unpaid claims at beginning of year 52,339,629 $ I,152'541
Current year claims and change

in estimates 2,440,990 1,861,085
Claim payments
Unpaid claims at end of year

Reported as:

Claimsandiudgmentspayable $3,888,564 52,253,977
Accounts payable 79,192 85.652

93967Js6 $2339.629

Included in the $3,967,756 are claims of $765,000, representing losses for which the lowest amount in a range of
probable losses has been accrued because no amount within that range is a better estimate of loss. The City
estimates that those losses could be as high as $ I 1,470,000. Approved claims which have been presented for
reimbursement as of year-end totaling 879,192 are reported as accounts payable.

6t



crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

2. Health Care Coverase

The City is self-insured for its group health and dental insurance coverage. The plan provides a lifetime coverage

maximum of $1,500,000 per participant. Excess coverage has been purchased up to the lifetime maximum with a

$200,000 annual retention per participant. The plan is administered by a third-party administrator. As the claim
cycle has various stages, there may be situations where loss contingencies have occurred before the balance sheet

date; but the claims have not been asserted. These potential unasserted claims and existing claims, if the amounts

can be reasonably estimated and it is probable that the claims will be asserted, have been recorded as a liability of
the Health Insurance Internal Service Fund. This liability is the City's best estimate based on available

information.

Premiums are charged to each department based on the number of single and family contracts in the respective

departments. Expenses for medical claims, stop-loss insurance and administrative fees are recorded in the Health
Insurance Internal Service Fund. The stop-loss insurance coverage is consistent with the prior year and the

amounts of claim settlements during the past three years have not exceeded this coverage.

The following represents changes in unpaid health care claims for the past two years:

2010 2009

Unpaid claims at beginning of year
Curent year claims and change

in estimates
Claim payments
Unpaid claims at end of year

Reported as:

Claims and -ludgments payable
Accounts payable

8 3,014,994 g 2,036,479

16,806,277 18,105,921

3. Workmen's ComDensation

The City is self-insured for its workmen's compensation coverage up to $500,000 per occurrence and for the

amount, if any, in excess of $ 1,000,000. The City utilizes a third-party administrator to administer the plan.

The insurance coverage is consistent with the prior year and the amounts of settlements during the past three
years have not exceeded this coverage.

The revenue and expenses relating to workmen's compensation are recorded in the Workmen's Compensation

Internal Service Fund. The charges to the individual funds are based on the wages and job classifications of the

employees in the respective funds. The ÌWorkmen's Compensation Internal Service Fund records expenses for
claims, stop-loss insurance coverage and administrative fees.

A liabilþ for a claim has been recorded in the Workmen's Compensation Internal Service Fund if information
indicates that it is probable tlrat a liability has been incr¡rred at the date of the furancial statements and the amount

of the loss is reasonably estimable. This liability is the City's best estimate based on available information.

$ 1,929,000 $ 2,896,000
119,739 1t8.994

s r.948.739 S 3,014.994
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The following represents changes in unpaid workmen's compensation claims for the past two years

2010 2009

Unpaid claims at beginning of year $3,5 69,341

Current year claims and change
in estimates 2,330,583

s3,464,344

2,113,135
Claim payments
Unpaid claims at end ofyear
Reported as:

Claimsand.iudgmentspayable $3,370,687 53,569,341
Accounts payable 2

D. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSIONS PLAIIS

Pension plans - primary government

The City of Rockford General, Water and Parking employees are covered by a State agent multiple-employer
defined benefit public retirement system (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) that acts aq a common investment and

administrative agent for local governments. Police and Fire swom employees are covered by dehned benefit single-

employer pension plans and are governed by Illinois State Statutes (Chapter 40 Article 3).

l. Illinois Municinal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

Plan description. The City of Rockford participates in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), agent

multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State for local governments and school districts
in lllinois. IMRF provides retirement, disability, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan

members and their beneficiaries. All employees, except those covered by the police and fire pension plans, in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed minimum hours standard must be enrolled in IMRF. The State is

authorized by statute to establish and amend atl plan provisions. IMRF issues a financial report that includes

financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained at www.imrf.org or by
writing to IMRF, 22ll York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

Funding policy. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute. Plan members

are required to contribute 4.5Yo of their annual salary. The statutes require the City to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate, the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance retirement coverage of its
own employees. The employer rate for calendar year 2010 was 12.53o/o of covered payroll. The employer also

contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the

IMRF level. Conhibution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the

supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute

Annual pension cost. For December 37,2010, the City's annual pension cost of $3,760,797 was equal to the City's
required and actual contributions.
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Three-Year Trend Information for IMRF

Fiscal Year
Ending

Annual
Pension

Cost
(APC)

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed

Net
Pension

Obligation

12131/2010
12/31/2009
t2l3tD008

s 3,760,797
3,1 01, 178

3,024,393

100.0
100.0
100.0

$

The required contribution for 2010 was determined as part of the December 31, 2008 actuarial valuation using the
entry age actuarial costmethod. The actuarial assumptions atDecember 31,2008 included (a)750% investment
rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, athibutable to
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from0.4%oio lÙYo per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniorþ/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3Yo annually, The actuarial value of the
Cþ's IMRF plan assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a fìve-year period with a 20%o corridor between the actuarial and market value of
assets. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liabilþ at December 31,2008 is being amortized as a level
percentage ofprojected payroll on an open 30 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31,2070, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Cþ's plan was 71.53 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benehts was $92,654,543 and the actuarial
value of assets was $66,273,409, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $26,381,134. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $30,014,340 and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 88 percent.

The schedule of progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets in increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

2. Police Pension Fund (PPF)

Plan description. The City of Rockford administers the PPF, a single-employer defined benefit pension plan in
which all sworn police employees of the City participate. PPF provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to
plan members and their beneficiaries. Employees attaining the age 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable
service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefTts of2.5o/o offinal salary for each year ofservice up to 30
years, to a maximum of 75%o of such salary. Employees with at least 8 years but less than 20 years of credited
service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit of2.50%o offinal salary for each year ofservice.
The PPF issues a publicly available financial report that includes the applicable financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained at the Cþ's Finance Office.

Summary of significant accounting policies - basis of accounting and valuation of investments. The furancial
statements of PPF are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in
the period in which the contributions are due. The City's contributions are recognized when due and a formal
commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Benefìts and refunds are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the plan. All plan investments are reported at fair value. Administrative costs are

hnanced primarily through investment earnings.

Funding policy. The defined benefits and employee contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes
(Chapter 40 Article 3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. Plan members are required to contribute
9.91% of their annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute af an acítarially determined rate; the current
rate is20.05Yo of covered payroll.
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Annual pension cost. For 2010, the Cþ of Rockford's annual pension cost was $5,888,260. The Cþ's actual

contribution was55,274,174. The net pension asset at December 31,2010 was $8,909. It was comprised of the

following:

Police Pension

5,900,674
(46,725)
34.311

5,888,260
5,274.174
(614,086)
622.995

8.909

The required contributions were determined as part of the January l, 2010 actuarial valuation using the entry normal
age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return, (b) projected
salary increases due to inflation of 5.0Yo per year, and (c) projected salary increases due to seniority/merit raises of
3.0Vo per year. The actuarial value of assets is determined by market method. The PPF unfunded liability is being
amofüzed as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at

December 31,2010 was 23 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2009,the most recent actuarial valuation date, the PPF
plan was 69.5 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $215,470,181 and the actuarial value

of assets was $149,757,096, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $65,713,085. The

covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $19,328,358 and the ratio of the

UAAL to the covered payroll was 340 percent.

The schedule of progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the

actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Reserves and concentration of investments. There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the
paynent of Plan member benefits. There are no long-term contracts for contributions. See Note III A for
concentration of investments.

Three-year trend information:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on the Net Pension Asset
Adjustment to the ARC
Annual pension cost
Contibution
Increase in Pension Asset (Liability)
Net pension Asset at January l, 2010
Net pension Asset at December 37,2070

$

Fiscal Year
Ending

Annual
Pension

Cost
(APc)

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed

Net
Pension

Oblisation
(Asset)*

t2l3t20t0
12131/2(n9
12131/2ffi8

s 5,733,571
3,723,M9
3,595,225

$ (10,385)
(622,egs)
(M9,782)

92.0
104.1

96.9

3. Firefiehter's Pension Fund (FPF)

Plan description. The Cþ of Rockford administers the FPF, a single-employer defined benefit pension plan in
which all sworn fire employees of the City participate. FPF provides retirement, disability, and death beneltts to plan
members and their beneficiaries. Employees attaining the age of 50 with 20 or more years of creditable service are

entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of
service. The pension shall be increased by Y, of 2.5o/o of such monthly salary for each additional year of service over
20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75o/o of such monthly salary. Employees with at least l0 years but less
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than20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit ranging from 15% of
fnnal salary for l0 years ofservice to 45.6Yo for 19 years ofservice. The FPF issues a publicly available report that

includes the applicable financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained at

the City's Finance Office.

Summary of signilicant accounting policies - basis of accounting and valuation of investments. The financial

statements of the FPF are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized

in the period in which the contributions are due. The City's contributions are recognized when due and a formal

commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable

in accordance with the terms of the plan. All plan investments are reported at fair value. Administrative costs are

financed primarily through investment earnings.

Funding policy. The defined benefits and employee conhibution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes

(Chapter 40 Article 3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. Plan members are required to contribute

9.455% of their annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the

current rate is 31.126%o ofcovered payroll.

Annual pension cost. For 2010, the City of Rockford's annual pension cost was $6,944,880. The City's actual

contribution wasfi6,347,734. The pension obligation at December 31,2010 was (5291,921). It was comprised of
the following:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on the Net Pension Asset
AdiustmerÍ to the ARC
Annual pension cost
Contibution
Increase in Pension Asset (Liability)
Net pension Asset at January 1, 2010
Net pension Obligation at December 3 l, 2010

$ 6,951,034
(22,892)
16,738

6,944,880
6,347,734
(597,146)
305,225

(291.921\

The required contributions were determined as part of the January l, 2010 actuarial valuation using the entry normal

age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 750% investment rate of return, (b) projected

salary increases due to inflation of 3.0%o per year, and (c) projected salary increases due to seniority/merit raises of
5.0Yo per year. The actuarial value of assets is determined by market method. The FPF unfunded actuarial liability
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at

December 31,2010 was 23 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31,2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the FPF

plan was 64.2 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $214,739,654, and the actuarial value

of assets was $137,818,046, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 576,921,609. The

covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $18,655,815 and the ratio of the

UAAL to the covered payroll was 412.3 percent.

The schedule of progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the ftnancial statements, presents multiyear trend

information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the

actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Reserve and concentration of investments. There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the

payment of Plan member benefits. There are no long-term contracts for contributions. See Note III A for
concentration of investments.
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Three-year trend information

Fiscal Year
Ending

Annual
Persion

Cost
(APC)

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed

Net
Pension

Obligation
(Asset)*

1431/2010
12131/2W9
nl3tDa08

s 5,631,754
5,631,754
5,080, t 16

$ 291,524

Q05,225)
(130,1 82)

94.8
I 03.1
97.0

4. Other Post-Employment Benefits
Plan description. In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the City provides post-employment

healthcare benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The benefits,

beneht levels, employee contributions and employer contribution are governed by the City and can be amended by
the City through its personnel manual and union contracts. The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an

irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan. The plan does not issue a separate report. The

activity of the plan is reported in the Cþ's governmental and business-type activities.

Benefits provided. The City provides continued health insurance coverage at the active employer rate to all
eligible employees. To be eligible for benehts, an employee must qualif, for retirement under one of the City's
retirement plans.

Membership. At December 31,2009, membership consisted of:

Retirces and beneficiaries currently receiving benefiß

Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not

yet receiving benefits

Active vested plan members

Active nonvested plan members

Total

Number of participating employers

151

721

434

1,306

Funding policy. For the fiscal year ending December 31,2010, retirees contributed approximately $907,048. The

City is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of benefits that will become due and payable in
the future. Active employees do not contribute to the plan until retirement.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other post-employment benehts (OPEB) cost

(expense) for the fiscal year ended December 3 l, 2010, is calculated based on the annual required contribution ofthe
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The

City's annual OPEB cost is $1,176,301 for the three years ended December 31,2010. The Cþ's annual OPEB cost,

the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2010 ìMas as follows:
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Fiscal

Year

Ended

Annual

OPEB

Cost

Employer

Contributions

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Cost Contribúed

NetOPEB

Oblibation

December 31,2008

December 31,2009
December 31,2008

1,176,301

632,276

625,553

222,144

222,144

222,144

18.9%

35.1%

35.sYo

2,135,480

1,181,323

771,197

The net OPEB obligation as of December 31,2009, was calculated as follows:

$ 1,156,612

59,066

(39,377)

1,176,301

222 r44
954,157

l,lgl,323
2,135,480

Funded Status and Funding in Process. The funded status of the plan as of December 31,2009, was as follows:

Annual Required Contribution

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution

Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions Made

Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obliption Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obliption End of Year

Unft¡nded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAl)

Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

14,941,274

70,288,041

2l.26Yo

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about

the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past

expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that
shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques íhat are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1,2010, actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actua¡ial assumptions
included a 5.\Yo investment rate of return and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8,0% with an ultimate healthcare

inflation rate of 6.00/o. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not
determined as the City has not advanced funded its obligation. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
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being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at

December 37,2070, was twenty seven years.

Individual Plan Financial Statements:

Statements of Fiduciary Net Ässets - Pension Trust Funds
December 31, 2010

Pension Trust Funds

Police
Pension

Firefighter's
Pension Tofal

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

U.S. Treasury Strips

U.S. Treasury Bills
U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Treasury Bonds

Government National Mortgage Association

Government Backed Corporate Bonds

Federal N ational Mortp ge As sociation

Federal Farm Credit Bonds

Small Cap Equity Common Stocks

Large Cap Equrty Common Stocks

NTGI Collective Trust

ABN AMRO Stable Value Funds

Domestic Mutual Funds

International Mutual Funds

Accrued interest receivable

Contibutions receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in tust for pension benefits

s 947,437 S 2,478,501 $ 3,325,938

17,740,071

72,240,809

13,911,560

33,969,358

23,219,669

3,376,057

5,360,686
1,226,540

312,311
6,144,798

2,062,477

7,620,392
1,805,047

12,562,707

19,669,',731

49,219,186

10,848,846

16,613,886

169,099

3,376,057

5,3 60,686

1,226,540

312,3ll
6,144,798

2,062,477

7,620,392
1,805,047

24,302,778

19,669,731

121,459,995

13,91 1,560

44,818204

39,8 33,555

26,459

4_295.574 7? 4?4 9

194,558

469-008

160,250,937 144,642,698 304,893,635

59.099 88.688 147.787

$ 160.191.838 $ 144.5s4.010 $ 304.74s.848
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Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended December 31,2010

Pension Trust Funds

Police

Pension

Firefïghter's
Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contibutions:

Employer
Planmember

Total contribrúions

Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investnents
Interest and dividend income

Less inve stment exp ense

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Reftnds of contributions
Administrative expense

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

$ 5.274.174 $
1.975.149

6,347,734 $
1.798.076

I1.621,908
3.773.22s

7.249.323 8. 145.81 0 15.395.133

13,372,535
1.905.014

9,971,741
2.129.782

23,344,276
4,034.796

15,277,549
(289.630)

12,101,523
(460.704)

27,379,072
(7s0.334)

14.987.919 11.640.819 26.628.738

22,237,242 19,786,629 42,023,871

11,616,000
24,325

t62.242

12,929,522

l2l,2l6

11,802,567 13,050,73 8 24,853,305

10,434,675 6,735,891 17,170,566

149.757 -163 137.818,119 287,575,282

24,545,522
24,325

283,458

$ 160.191.838 $ 144.554,010 $ 304.745.848

5. Pension plan - discretely presented component unit

Rockford Mass Transit District (RMTD)

Plan description. The RMTD contributes to a single-employer public defined benefrt retirement plan. RMTD
established the plan to provide retirement benefits for employees of the District. The plan is now administered by
DiBenedetto & Associates, LTD. RMTD together with employees covered under collective bargaining agreements,
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has the right at any time and from time to time to amend the Plan. Under the provisions of the Plan, pension benefits

vest after five years of full-time employment. Upon retiring at the normal age of sixty-five provided by the Plan, an

employee is entitled to receive a monthly benefit payment in the form of a life annuity. Benefits under the Plan are

accumulated during each year of service and determined based on compensation level. The Plan does not issue a

stand-alone financial report and is not included in the report ofanother entity.

Funding policy. Employer contributions to the Plan are recognized on the accrual basis and are actuarially
determined each year. For fìscal year 2010, the required conhibution was S824,799 or 17.2Yo of covered payroll per
year. The difference between the contribution made in 2010 and the annual required contribution is due to actual

rates of returns on investments lower than the assumed 7 .0o/o rate. The Plan does not allow for employees to make

contributions.

Annual pension cost. The annual required contributions were determined as part of the July l, 2009 actuarial

valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost funding method which does not identify or separate amortized unfunded

actuarial liabilities. Under this method, no unfunded accrued liability is determined. The actuarial assumptions

included (a) 7.0% investment rate of return and (b) projected salary increases of 4.00%. The actuarial value of assets

is determined using a market approach and the l97l Group Annuity Mortality Table. Information about the fi.mded

status and funding progress has been prepared using the entry age actuarial cost method for that purpose and that
information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progr€ss of the plan.

The net pension liability at June 30, 2010 was $300,484. It was comprised of the following:

Annual required contibution
Interest on net pension obligafion(7%o)
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual pension cost

Annual contribution made
Increase innet pension liabiliW
Net pension liability, beginning ofyear
Net pension liability, end of year

Three-year trend information for RMTD:

g 824,799
26,151

(49,03 r)
,9
.0

801
875

I
.l
9
7

Flscal Year
Ending

Annual
Pension

Cost
(APC)

Percentage of
APC

Contributed

Net
Pension

Obligation

6130D010 $
6130/2009
6130D008

801 ,9 l9
565,626
397,169

s 300,484
373,582
408,714

109.12
106.21
105.9s

6. Other Post-employment Benefit Plan - discretely presented component unit

The RMTD administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The plan provides health
insurance contributions for eligible retirees and their spouse through the District's group health insurance

plan, which covers both active and retired members. Benefit provisions are established through collective
bargaining agreements and state that select eligible retirees (hired before 1993) and their spouses receive

lifetime healthcare insurance at established contribution rates. This is commonly referred to as an explicit
rate subsidy.
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Contribution requirements are established through collective bargaining agreements and may be amended

only through negotiations between the District and the union. The District makes the same monthly
health insurance contribution on behalf of the select retirees as it makes on behalf of all other active
employees during thatyear. The District contributes 100% of the current year premiums for a family and
a single plan, respectively, for select eligible retired plan members and their spouses. For fiscal year
2010, the District contributed $154,308. Remaining plan members receiving benefits contribute 100% of
their premium costs for a family plan and a single plan, at the blended rates. Actual contributions are
made on a pay-as-you -go basis. Administrative costs of the plan are financed through investment
earnings.

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for June 30, 2010 is as follow:

Annual rrquired contibution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adiustment to annual required contribution

Annual OP cost
Contibutions made

Incrcase in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning ofyear

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year

$ 404,661
12,351

(15,682)

401,330
1s4.308
247,022

247 022

$ 494,044

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2010 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Eended

Annual
OPEB
Cost

Percentage
ofAnnual

OPEB Cost
Contrebuted

Net OPEB
Oblisation

30-Jun-10
30-Jun-09

$ 401,330
413,321

38.5j%o
40.20%

494,044
247,022

$

The funded status of the District's plan as of June 30,2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liabilþ (AAL)
Actuarial balure of plan assets

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets AAL)

Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as apercentage of coveredpayroll

$ 7,612,828

s 7,612,828

$

0%

4,940,617

157.30%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the r¡otes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that
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shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued

liabilities for beneftts.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the

substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits

provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and

plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to

reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets, consistent with the long-

term perspective of the calculations.

In the District's actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used and market rates were used for the

asset valuation method. The actuarial assumptions include a 5 percent investment rate of retum and an annual

healthcare cost trend rate of 8 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 6 percent. Both rates

include a 3 percent inflation assumption. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level

percentage ofprojected payroll on an open basis. The amortization period at June 30, 2010 was 30 years.

E. PLEDGES OF RECEIVABLES AND FUTURE REVENUES

The City has pledged a portion of future sales tax revenues to a local retailer. In order to increase its

competitiveness in the marketplace by establishing a single-order acceptance point for all credit sales, the

local retailer entered into a municipal sales tax incentive agreement with the City, where the City will
pay the retailer, a portion of the municipal component of the sales tax revenue generated by the retailer as

provided in the agreement. The agreement commenced August 2002 and terminates in calendar year

2022.

The terms of the agreement indicate that beginning in August 2002 the City shall rebate to the retailer on

a monthly basis the Municipal Sales Tax resulting from taxable sales with order-acceptance at the

Property and received by the City in the following amounts:

¡ Years l-5 - 100% sales tax rebate of Incremental Municipal Sales Tax sourced to Rockford.

o Years 6-10 - 70% sales tax rebate of Incremental Municipal Sales Tax sourced to Rockford.

o Years 1l-20 - 50olo sales tax rebate of Incremental Municipal Sales Tax sourced to Rockford.

The total municipal sales tax revenue reported by the City for the year ended December 3I, 2010,

amounted to $36,380,336, of which $539,250 (or 1.5%) was remitted during the current year or was due

to the retailer at the end of the current year, and reported as accounts payable on the statement of net

assets.

F. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

The City is entitled to receive Community Development grants only to the extent that expenditures and

encumbrances have been made for approved programs, As of December 31,2010, the City has 53,722,503'63

available to be received in the future under these Community Development Grants in the event qualifying

expenditures are made.
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G. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the first six months of 2011 the City received an additional $9,149,000 from the Illinois Environmental Protection

Agency (IEPA) bringing the total IEPA loans to $36,058,280. These proceeds provide additional funding for a $75

1¡ilion water improvement program (initial funding was provided from the sale of the City's $15 million Series

Z006ABonds in April of 2006, $3.5 million Series 2007D in November of 2007 and $9.0 million Series 20084 in

April of2008).

On June 1't 20ll the City redeemed an additional $10,000,000 of the $14,000,000 outstanding on the 2008 Water

System Improvement General Obligation Limited Tax Debt Certificates. The original issue was $25,000,000 due

June 1 5ú 20 1 3.

H. F'UTURE Ä.CCOUIITINGPRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements:

Statement No. 54, Fund Balqnce Reporting and Goyernmentql Fund Type Definitlons, issued February 2009, is

effective for the Cþ beginning with its year ending December 31,2011. The object of this statement is to enhance

the usefulness of fund biance information by providing clearer classifications that can be more consistently applied

and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions,

Statement No. 60, Accounting and Finqncial Reporting for Service Concession Anangements, issued November

2010, is effective for the City beginning with its year ending December 31,2012. The object of this statement is to

improve fìnancial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements, which are a type of
public-private or public-public partnership.

Statement No, 61, The Financiøl Reporting Entity: Omnibus, issued November 2010, is effective for the City

beginning with its year ending December 31,2013, The object of this statement is to improve financial reporting for

u fou.rn1¡.ntal frnancial reporting entity, This Statement modiflres certain requirements for inclusion of component

units in the financial reporting entity.

Statement No. 62, Codi/ìcation of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,

lg¡g FASB and AICPÀ Pronouncements, issued December 2010, is effective for the City beginning with its year

ending December 31,2012. The object of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB's authoritative literature

certaiã accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in certain pronouncements issued on or before

November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements'
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CITY OF ROCKFORD. ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVEIIUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MAJOR FUNDS
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 3 l. 2010
(Required Supplementary Information)

Variance with
Final Budeet -

PositiveOriginal
Budeet

Final
Budset Âctual

REVENIIES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Misceìlaneous

Total revenues

s 68,91 8,885
3.590.000

22.680,317
7,975,200
I,740,000

I 00,000

$ 68.918.885 $ 69.69r.411 S

3,590,000 4,495,706
2f ,246,517 25,105,017
8,243,200 8.t 12.091
1,740,000 I,507,353
100,000 1s2.823

?72,526
905,706

I.858.500
(13 l,109)
(232.647'l

s2,823
rros 4R4\640 000 640 000 aLA a1 

^
705.644,402 106-478.602 109.408.917 2-930.315

EXPENDITURES
CuÍenti

General govemmeDt:
Mayor's office
City Councìl
Legal department
Finance office
Workforce investment board
Board of fire a¡d police commission
Board ofelection
Personnel department
Mass transit subsidy

Tota'l general govemment
Public safety

Police department
Fire deparlment
Public works - traffic
Building department

Total public safety
Streets. alleys and bridges

Administration
Engineering
Slreet and sevrer
Traffic - street lighting

Total streets, alleys and bridges
Community development

Administration
Code Enforcement
Planning and zoning

Total communitv develooment
Sanitation and sewers

Public works - sewers
Total current exoenditures

804,623
533,998

1.841.413
4,536,663

506,917
281,78s
899,441
692.310

41,991.781
35,738,620
2,082,414

45 1 ,050
780,560

7,285,092

259,003
1.463.630

804,623
533,998

1.841,413
4,648,663

s06,917
281,785
899,441
692,f tO

42.067,781
36,547,620
2.082.414

51 1,050
l,0l 7,060
7.285.092

2s9,003
1,463,630

661,883
494,971

I,838,400
4.944.010

508,507
105,476
921,146
'726.669

136,740
f9,027

3,013
(29s.347)

(r,s90)
176,309
(21,70s)
(34,3s9)

42.444.ss3
38.t26,579

I,855,870

533,506
880,416

7.267 ,878

(376.772')
(1.s78,9s9)

226,544

(22.4s6)
136,644
17,214

76,813
129,969

03

1 82,190
l,333.661

Capjtal Outlay:
General Govemment

Board ofelection
Total public safety

Public safew
Police department
Fire department

Total public safety
Streets, alleys and bridges

Street and sewer
Total streets, alleys and bridges

Total caoital exoenditures

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financins sources luses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

68s

580.258 580,258 490.078 90.180
107.319.367 108.692.s67 109.938.000 (1.24s.433)

40,000 (40,000)

to't 144 167 tqg O92 567 rrn¿ôô?oo ¡.1 ?OR t?tl

(1.699.96' (2.613.96s\ (991.882) 1.622.083

4.1t7,s70 4,117,s70 2,181,746 (1,335,824)

$ s0.138 g (787.862) 608,889

22,006.223

_szþJ:f12_

AI

$ 1.396.751
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SCHEDULE OF'REVENUES, EXPEIIDITURES AND CHANGES IN
X'UI\[D BALANCE - BIJDGET AND ACTUAL - MAJOR FUI\TDS
PUBLIC LIBRARY F'UNI)
For the Year Ended December 31. 2010
(Required Supplementary Information)

Original Final
Budset

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
Budset Actual

REVENI]ES
Taxes
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPEI\ÙDITTJRES
Current - Culture and recreation
Capital Outlay - Culture and recreation

Total expenditures
Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Net changes in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

$ 6,810,163
967,900

73,500
I 65,000
26,500
75 000

$ 6,810,163
967900

73,s00
I 6s,000
26,500
7s 000

$ 6,870,920 $
998,988

64,626
l 39,888
24,678
?o 6't J

60,7s7
3 1,088
(8,874)

(25,rr2')
(1,822')

(44 761ì

8.118.063 8.118.063 8.129.733 I 1.670

7 ,213,712
277.762

6,994,003
26s.t73

6,55t,920
s 8.3 88

442,083
206.785

7 .491 .47 4 't .259 .17 6 6 610 10R 64R R6R

626.589 858.887 1.s19.425 660-538

$ 376,029 $ 608.327 s r,274,781 $ 666,4s4

4.027,95',7

$ s.302.738
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE . BUDGET AND ACTUAL . MAJOR FUNDS
COMMUII-ITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

lReouired Supolementarv Information)

Original
Budset

Final
Budset

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
lNaco+ir¡oìActual

REVENUES
Inte rgovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITI]RES
Current - Community development
Debt service:

Prinicipal payments
Interest payments

Total expenditures
Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Net changes in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

4.971.7s4 4.971.7s4 4_921.109 t50.645')

3,787,232 3,787,232 3,983,976 (196,744)

5 4,849;7s4 $

122.000

4,849,754

122.000

s 4,805,866 $
39,365
75 8',7

(43,888)
39,365

(46.122\I

I 00,000
79.858

100,000
79,858

100,000
79.858

3.967.090 3.967.090 4.163_834 /L96.744\

1.004,664 1.004.664 757 -275 (247.389\

831 17
t7

$ 30,978 s 30.978 (l 98,55ó) s (229.s34\

1,545,431

$ 1.346.875

5

5
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITTJRES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE . BI]DGET AND ACTUAL . MAJOR FUNDS
HUMAN SERVICES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31.2010

Original
Budeet

Final
Budset Actual

Final Budget -
Positive

lNesative)
RE\rENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current - Public health and welfare
Debt service - Interest and service fees
Capital outlay - Public health and welfare

Total expenditures
Excess ofrevenues over

(under) expenditures

OTHER F'INANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Total other financing sources
Net changes in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

s 13,294,581 $13,294,581 , rrrtt,,?1! s

- '77.270

7,890,773
7,873

77.270

t3.294.s81 13.294.587 21,270,437 7,975,856

13,294,58t 13,294,581

13.294.581 13.294.581 2l 419 1 t4 8 44 733l

(168,877) (168,877)

126
139 7ll

1

l9l.l 15

$ 161.949

21,126,402
37,252

275.660

(7,831,821)
(37,252)

(275.660\
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
ANALYSIS OF FTJNDING PROGRESS

December 31,2010
(Required Supplementary Information)

Illinois Municioal Retirement Fund

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Entrv Ase

(2)-(l)
Unfunded

AAL
ruAAL)

(1)t(2\
Funded
Ratio

(3)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

((2-r)13\

t2l3u20t0 $
1213U2009
1213u2008
12131/2007
t2/31/2006
12131/2005

66,273,409 s
71,652,490
71,433,001
82,879,833
77,109,958
70,939,034

92,654,s43 $
99,279,370
95,526,894
87,968,864
83,288,988
78,089,106

26,381,r34
27,626,880
24,093,893

5,089,031
6,179,030
'7,150,072

71.s3 % $
'72.1'7

't4.78
94.21
92.58
90.84

30,014,340
33,167,684
31,536,943
29,485,908
28,6 I 8,048
27,600,567

87.90 %
83.29
76.40
17.26
21.59
25.91

Police Pension f,'und

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

(r)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2\
Actuarial Accrued
Liabilitv (AAL)

Entrv Ase

(2H1)
Unfunded

AAL
IUAAL)

(t)t(2)
Funded
Ratio

(3)
Covered
Pawoll

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll
Q-t)t3\

12t31t2009 $
1213112008
1213U2007
1213u2006
1213u2005
12t3y2004

149,757,096 $
137,508,810
t6t,674,221
1 54,1 64,1 88
145,902,806
142,144,161

21s,470,181 $
208,039,571
197,484,179
I 88,98 I,630
177,92t,892
167,654,587

65,7 l 3,085
70,530,76t
35,809,958
34,8t7,442
32,019,086
25,510,426

I 9,328,358
19,744,695
18,760,525
18,717,181
17,860,671
17,t38,'777

69.s0 % $
66.10
8t.87
81.58
82.00
84.78

339.98 Yo

357.21
190.88
186.02
t79.27
148.85

Firefi qhter's Pension Fund

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial Accrued
Liabilitv (AAL)

F.ntru Ase

(2Hl)
Unfunded

AAL
IIJAAI,I

(r)t(2)
Funded
Ratio

(3)
Covered
Pawnll

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

((2-1\/3\

12t3v2009 $
12t3u2008
1213U2007
12t3v2006
12t3u2005
12t3v2004

137,818,046 $
lz't,654,609
144,587,t41
t38,535,126
13t,735,470
128,848,847

214,739,654 $
206,92t,554
201,841,057
189,079,809
I 80,654,684
t69,173,373

76,921,608
79,266,945
57,253,916
50,544,683
48,9t9,214
40,324,526

18,655,815
18,157,t'79
18,485,822
t7,3'.15,662
16,162,884
15,640,930

64.18 Yo $
61.69
71.63
73.27
72.92
76.16

41232 %
436.56
309.72
290.89
302.66
25'1.81

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Entrv Ase

(2F(l)
Unfunded

AAL
IUAAL)

(1)t(2)
Funded

Ratio

(3)

Covered
Pawoll

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered

Payroll
(2-t\13'l

$

A5

%$t213v2009 $

t2/3v2008
t213112007

14,941,274 $

9,062,800
9,0ó2,800

14,941,274
9,062,800
9,0ó2,800

70,288,041
68,783,290
65,578,751

21.26 Yo

13.18

13.82



crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

December 31,2010
(Required Supplementary Information)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage
Contributed

7213U2010
1213112009
t2l3!2008
1213U2007
72/3112006
121317200s

Police Pension Fund

$ 3,760,797
3,101,178
3,024,393
2,927,951
2,930,325
2,487,291

100.0 %
100.0
100.0
r00.0
100.0
100.0

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Annual
Required

Conhibution
Percentage
Contributed

t2/3v20r0
1213712009
1213v2008
7213v2007
t2/31/2006
tzl3t/2005

Firefiehter's Pension Fund

$ 5,900,674
3,733,161
3,608,547
3,330,276
2,803,802
2,787,807

89.4 o/o

104.1
96.6
97.3
90.1
97.0

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Annual
Required

Conhibution
Percentage
Contributed

t2/3712010
t2/3!2009
t2/3112008
12/3112007
12t31/2006
t2/3v2005
1213!2004

Other Post-Emolovment Benefits

$ 6,951,034
5,634,548
5,086,62r
4,762,441
4,144,105
4,195,653
4,195,653

91.3 0/o

103.1
96.9
97.8
92.s
97.6

100.4

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage
Contributed

t2/3u2010
12/3U2009
t2/3112008
t2/3U2007

1,156,612
619,422
679,423
589,926

79.2 o/o

3s.7
35.7
37.7

$
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CITY OF' ROCKF'ORD, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

I. BUDGETARY INF'ORMATION

Budgets are adopted on a basis oonsistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The budget represents departmental appropriations, expenditures and other uses, as authorized by the City's
appropriation ordinance and includes revisions authorized by the City Council to reflect changes in
departmental programs. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

II. EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET

For the year ended December 31,2070,the General Fund and Major Special Revenue funds had excess of
actual expenditures and financing uses over budget at the legal level ofbudgetary control (department level) as

follows:

MAJOR FUNDS:
General Fund

Finance offrce

Workforce investment board

Board of election
Personnel department

Police Department

Fire Departnent

Public works - Administration

Public works - Street lighting

C ommunity Deve lopment Fund

Human Services Fund

s Q95,347)
( I,590)

(21,705)
(34,359)

(376,772)
(1,5 78,959)

(22,456)

(94,239)

(796,744)

(8,144,733)

III. LLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

On a market value basis, the actual value of assets as of December 37,2010 is $71,81 1,463. On a market basis,

the funded ratio would be77.50%.

For the IMRF pension, there were no changes with respect to plan provisions, actuarial methods or actuarial

assumptions from the prior year.

IV. PENSION TRUST

For the Police and Firefighters' pension funds, there were no changes with respect to plan provisions, actuarial

methods or actuarial assumptions from the prior year.

A7
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FI]NDS

SPECIAL REVEITUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds a¡e used to account for specific revenues that are legally restr¡cted to expenditure for particular purposes.

Combining statements for all individual nonmajor special revenue funds are reported here. The combined totals are reported in the combining nonmajor

govemmental fundstatementsatBlthruB32. FundstatementsformajorspecialrevenuefundsarereportedonPages19thru24ofthebasicfinancialstatements.

ROCKFORD TUBERCULOSIS CARE
CENTER

GARBAGE AND REFIJSE

MOTOR FUEL TAX

REDEVELOPMENT

TOURISM

SPECIAL PROJECTS

VETERAN'S SCHOLARSHIP

Rockford Metro Agency for Planning

JUSTICE ASSISTANCE CRANT

FLEX CARE

TAX INCRE MENT FINANCING AREAS

To account for sewices (i.e., tuberculosis shots and examinations) provided by the Health Department to

patients. The Tuberculosis Ca¡e Center's primaryrevenue is propertytaxes.

To account for the collection and disposal ofgarbage and refuse, which are performed on a contractual

basis. The two contracts, collection and use of landfill site, are financed by a specific property tax levy and

charpes for services nrovided

To record the receipt ofthe City's share ofstate gasoline taxes. These funds are then transfened to the

Capital Improvement Program Fund and used for street maintenance and repairs. State of lllinois law

requires seDarate accounting for such revenues and exnenditures

To account for monies deposited in accordance with an intergovemmental agreement between the City and

the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building Authority. Monies deposited are

from a sales tax ofone percent upon the retail purchase offood and beverages and the charge for renting a

hotel or motel room. These monies are used to cover any debt which has been authorized by the City

To account for revenues provided by the City's four percent motel and hotel ta,r and related expenditures.

The ordinance provides that revenue from the tax shall be used to promote tourism, conventions and other

special events within the municioalitv

To account for expenditures on special projscts determined annually by the City Council Financing is

provided by the City's proceeds received from the off-track betting establishment located within the City

To account for receipt ofinvestment eamings on original principal and payment ofannual scholarships.

The original principal was transferred from the Wa¡ Memorial Fund.

To account for the revenues and expenditures of a cooperative, comprehensive transportation planning

process fo rthe Rockford Urbanized Area. Funding is provided by grants and local matching

To account for expenditures for crime prevention and public safety. Financing is provided by a grant from

the Federal Govemment and General Fund

To account for the collection and payment ofCity employee salaries to the Flexible benefit program, along

with administration expenses of the fund

Toaccountfortheredevelopmentcostsofeachblightedarea. Financingisprovidedfrompropertytaxes
levied on property within each district, which will increæe as a result of the redevelopment and the

resulting increase in assessed valuation within the districts The East Side and West Side areas also receive

the resulting increase ofsales tax from the City's sales tax and a share ofthe State oflllinois'sales tax
resulting from increased sales as a result ofredevelopment within each district



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
COMBII\TNG BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Funds

Rockford
Tuberculosis
Cere Center

Garbaqe
and

Refuse
Motor

T'rrel Tcx Redevelonmenf
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Due from the State of Illinois
Due from other governmental units
Due Íïom other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALA.NCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to other fi¡nds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances (defi cits) :

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Endowments

Unreserved - special revøtue funds

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

$ 142,458 $
153,t46

323,288

301 6.917

29s.905 s 3.814.984 q o01) s0. $ 942ROí

34,473 s 442,03s $ $ 510,086

3,347,25636s.1 13

153.146 21.878

t 87-619 463.913 16s I l? ? 8s7 342

3.351.071 9 647 399 o.914.537\

1 08 286 3.351-071 9 641 199 ().914 517\

29s-905 $ 3.814.984 s r0012.512 S 942.805

3,292,013 $
21,878

494,176

9,689,224 $ 601,733

341,072

s

s

1s,000
93.286

s

BI



Sneciel Revenuc Funds

Tourism
Special

RKFD Metro
Agency for
Plqnnins

Veterants
Schol¡rshin

Justice
Assistance Flex

Care

$ 48,737 $

145,251

$ s 4s,723 $

96

$ 193,667

7,430
235,123

59,423 15s,624
101

s 194.089 $ 7.430 $ 294.546 $ 45.819 $ 155.624 s t93.667

$ 99,470 $ 50,000 $

29,920

59,668 $
9,052

337,815

39,820 $

1 15,804

18,241$

99.470 79.920 406_535 155.624 18-241

94.619 (7).49î\ fi1I 9891 4s_819 17s 426

94.619 (72 490\ fl I1.989'r 4s.819 175.426

$ 194-089 S 470 s 294 546 s7 4s.819 $ 1ss 6).4 $ 191 667
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, ILTNOIS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31,2010

Soecial Revenue Funds

Tax Increment Areas

East
Side

West
Side

Seventh
Snufhenst

South
Rnckford

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
ProperW taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Due from the State of Illinois
Due from other governmental units
Due ÍÌom other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilities:
Accor¡nts and contracts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to other firnds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances
Endowments
Unreserved - special revenue Íìrnds

Total fund balancos (deñcits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

s 462566 $ 4sS_706$ I

$ l 1 1,870 $
3s0,464

46,922 $ r04,044
1,058,913

).o1

$ 677
r33,t46

$

412,687

232 97

163 164 s $ I i? ß23

$ s

350.464 412.687

$ 10,000 $

0s8 sl 3

$

133.146

750 464 412.687 06R St 1 117 146

6,250

I 0s.852 47 -019

12,500

8l 75t 677

11),102 47 019 a4 )\ 677

s 462-566 s 4s9.706 $ l 161 164 $ s 133_823
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Snecial Revenue Funds

Tax Increment Financing Areas
Rockford

Li¡colnwood
Estates

Springf¡elal
Corners

Global Trsde
Pnrk

Lincolnwood
II River Oaks

North
Mnin Ifone Sir Kishwaukee

$ 103,682 $
78,184

$50,380$$s $$ $ 27,157
s4,558174,202 755,239 95,972 s0,946 s8,049 79,842 174,776

2tR 106 51

$ 182-084 g 774.202 s 75s 219 s 9s.9,Ì2 s 101.432 S 58.049 $ s t74 776 s 81 772

s $ $ $$ $

176,656 83,879 309,46s

$ $ 1,807 $

760,227 289,922 127,793
78 184 174202 755 

'?q
9S 91? 50 946 58 049 't4 776 54 55879.

78.1 84 3s0.858 839.1 l8 405.437 s0.946 818.276 369.764 54.558

I 0i s00 (176 6s6\ r1?q 600ì ).1 ).14tRl R7q\ /?Oq 465ì s0 4R6 (760 227\

103-900 (176.656\ lR3 87gl li0s 4651 .s0.486 (760.227\ (289 f 1?.9 600'l 27.214

$ 1 R?. 0R4 S 174202 $ ?55 rîq r q5 q?? s 101 43r, s .58 049 $ 79 { 74 776 s *1 7n
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FT]NDS
December 31,2010

Special Revenue F'unds

Tax Increment Arees

Jackson
School

Preston/
Central

North Main
& Auburn

East State lVest State
& Central&

West State
& Kilhurn West Side II

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property laxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Due fiom the State of Illinois
Due from other govemmental units
Due from other funds

Total assets

Total liabilities

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances
Endowments
Urreserved - special revenue funds

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

$ 6s,295 $
106,668

$ 33,915 $
19,452

415,940 $
242,875

$ $

34,219 218,753 16,989 8.826

t34 72 876 423

s 172.097 s 34-219 $ s3.439 S I S 219 176 S 16 989 S 8-826

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEF'ICITS)

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable $
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to other fi.lnds
Deferred revenue

$ $ $ 140,000 $ $

1,776
l6sRs

7,356
R R).6

$

I,160,593
14 219

51,042
I 06 66R 19.4s2 r75 2t R 75?

106_668 1.194.812 19.4s2 269'.19s 18 765 16.182

65 4).9

751

(1 161 i44\ 33 987 R1Á (\o 6 qì (1 't'76\ 17 356\

6s.429 fl_160.593) 33.987 Rl6 150 619l (1 776\ (1 356\

g 1n.o97 $ 34 219 S .53 439 s 6A 219 176 q 16qRS s RR?6q
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Special Revenue Funds

Tax

Global Trade Main &
lVhifmnnPnrk II

River
North

East
River

Assisted
Livins

Kishwaukee GlobalTrade
flqrrisnn II Park III Rroedwnv Totnl

$ 76,912 $
186,497

69,152 $
62,343

s 67,327 $
66,537

$ 249 $ 81,224 $
81,735

1n.

$ r5,268,42s
4,827,860

987,929
558,411
215,047

10_455

41,812
124 S

59 46,109 42,984

161 141 142

s 263-570 $ 131.638 s 41 R 12 s l?4 006 $ 183 s 46.109 $ 249 $ 163-t3l $ 42 SR4 s ).1 86R t27

$ 36$ s $ $ $ $ $ $

41.18 I
4) q9,4

1,405,636
9,052

7,470,779
4 *)'7 R60

2t9,090 4s,891
186 497 6274? 4 9,11 66 \11 59 46 l0g RI ??5

186.533 62.343 260.902 66.537 59 92.000 81.735 84.165 13.713.327

77.037 69.295 Ql 67.469 124 t45-891)

19,501
1 5,000

8.120.299249 I f4l 181)

7'.1.037 69.295 (21 0s0l 67 465 1).4 t45.891ì 249 l8l R rs4 R00

s 263.s70 $131.ó38S 41.812s134.006$ r83$ 46,1095 249 $ 163.131$ 42.984$ 21.868.127
(Concluded)
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, TLLTNOTS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Special Revenue Funds

Rockford
Tuberculosis
Care Center

Garbage
and

Refuse
Motor

Fuel Tax Redevelooment

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public Safety
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Public health and welfare

Total current expenditures

Debt service
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay:
Public Safety
Community development

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning

Fund balances (deficits) - ending

$ 186,370 s 22,765 S

313
8,568,067

27,912

$ 3,557,289

4,535,832

tt,402

1 86.683 8.618.744 4.s47.234 3.s57.289

1,536,8 I 6
6,591,156

I 3 1.459

131,459 6,591,1s6 I,536,816

t3 1.459 6.591. I 56 1.817.269

55.224 2.027,588 4.547.234 1.740.020

û.293.600) ().146 574\ (1.246.O4't\

fl.293.600) 12_346-s381 ¡-246-047\

55,224

53.062

733,988

2.617.083

2,200,696

7.446.703

493,973

l3-408-510)

$ 108.286 s 3.3s 1_07.t s 9-647 -399 (t 9l 4 5?7ì
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Special Revenue Funds

Tourism
Special

Proiects

RKFD Metro
Agency for
Planninq

Veteran's
Scholarshio

Justice
Assistance

Grant
Flex
Care

s 1,s41,577 $

713

$ $ $
99,019

964,56r 590,941

428
6r 0.335

1,542,290 99,019 964,561 428 590,94t 610,335

598,400
387,969

1,404,449 85,000 976,302 I,500

r,404,449 85,000 976,302

790 5,374

3t,626

1,500 387,969

202,972

598,400

t.404.449 85,790 1,013,302 1.500 590.941 598.400

137.841 13.229 (48.741) (r.072\ I 1,935

166,809
fl 19.200)

ll 19.200) 166.809

18,641

75.978

13,229

(85.719)

1 18,068

(230.057)

(r,072)

46.89r

I1,935

t63,491

s 94.619 $ (72.490) $ (ll1.989) $ 45.819 $ s 175,426
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continued)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUI\DS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Special Revenue Funds

Tax Increment Financins Areas

East
Side

!Vest
Side

Seventh
Street Snufheasf

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govemment
Public Safety
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Public health and welfare

Total current expenditures

Debt service
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay:
Community development
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues oYer (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning

Fund balances (deficits) - ending

$ 348,042 $ 404,387 1,056,660

2,033 879 6,428
146

350.075 405.266 1.064.434

66,21s 194,65t 463,176 574,108

66,2t5 194,651 463,176 574,108

66.2r5 194.651 467 176 57¿1- 108

283-860 210-615 601 ?5R (\74 08ì

248,963
(448.963)

I 50,000
t1.136-t701(273.963\

(273.963) (200,000) (e86.r70) -

9,897 10,615 (384,912) (574,108)

4 163 108

$ I 12. 102 s 47,0 19 s 94.251 S
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Snecial Revenue Funds

râx rncre4g¡lnryIgas
h Lincolnwood

Rockford Estates Corners Park Main II River Oaks Garrison

126,948 76,782 163,871 758,836 76,679 48,875 72,355 52,766

1,072 307809

128.020 '17.591 163.871 758. 16 619 49 182 72155 52't66

28,037 1,174,895 s6,641

28,037 r,174,89s s6,641

n5 315 2,573 3,237 2,225

28.037 l. l 75.070 56.956 2.573 3,237 2,225

99.983 77 .sgt fl.01 1.199) '74. 06 49.182 69-l l8 s0-s4t

û45.000) t45.688)
250,000

(357.8 1 0)
150,000

(700.987) (68,e63) (23,631) (298,587) (64,463)

I r 45.000) t4s.6881 1107.810) t55 (6R 963 ().7 67 ì r2s8.s87l ß4_463\

(4s,017)

4s.694

31,903

71.997

(r,r 19,009)

942-353

150,893 5,143

(1 4 6ORì

25,551

),4 575

(229,46e)

1530,75Rì

(13,e22)

(2'.t6.OOO\(234.

s 677 $ 103.900 s 1176.656)S 183.8 $ l30s 46sì s s0 486 s ('760.22',7\ s (289_922\

810



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI)
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31,2010

Snecial Revenue Funds

Tax lncrement Financing Areas

Hone Six
Kishwaukee

Harrison
Jackson
School

Preston/
Central

North Main
& Auburn

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernme ntal
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPEI\IDITURES
Current:

General govemment
Public Safety
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Public health and welfare

Total current expenditures

Debt service
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay:
Community development
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

183,946 53,852 1 19,336

142 2,374

3l,518 20,031

220.103
72

r83,946 53.994 121.710 251,621 20. I 03

17,370 33,273 8,753 35,843

17,370 33,273

1,097

8,753 35,843

10,197

18.467 33.273 R 753 46.040

165.479 20.721 1'.) 957 20s 5 81 20- 1 03

fl I 1.750) (1 97-3101 t98-300)

û I 1.750) I 97-3 t 0ì t98.300')

53,729

(l 83,329)

20,721

6.493

(84,3,53)

149,182

t07,281 20,103

13.884(1,267,874

s fi2S.6001 s 27.214 s 6SL)S q I 60 5S1ì s 33 .9R7
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Special Revenue Funds

Tax Increment Financing Areas
Rockford

East State \ilest State West State Global Trade River North Main
& Alpine & Central & Kilburn West Side II Park II North and Whitman

East
River

262,536 232,458 2 1,198

2,142

9,990 189,432

911

78,859

2,000

41,577 45,983

376

264.678 232.458 2t.198 9.990 s0 343 ß0.8s9 41 .577 46_3s9

260,000 1,786 243,462

260,000 1,786 243,462

736 239 164 876

260.000 736 239 t64 1.786 243.462 876

4,678 231,722 20,9s9 9,826 188,557 (162.603) 40.701 46.359

140-000) t250-0001 00 000ì () 5).',t)' l0l 3851
250,000

(267.60s\7

(40,000) (250,000) (100,000) (27,s27) o0r38s]. (17,60Ð

(35,322)

312,138

(18,278)

(32,341)

20,9s9

(22,73s)

9,826

(17,182)

88,557 (190,130) (60,684) 28,7s4

(11,520) 2s9,425 (158.406) 38,715

$276,816$(50,619)$(1,776\$(2,:S0)$77,037$6e.295$(219.090)$67,46e

Bl2



crTY oF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (Continued)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31,2010

Assisted
Livinq Midtown

Kishwaukee
Harrison Il

Rockford
Global Trade

Park III Total
REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public Safety
Community development
Sanitation and sewers
Public health and welfare

Total current expenditures

Debt service
Principal pa),ments
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay:
Community development
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

83 64,480

1,248

249 117,690 s0994 S

252

10,018,414
99,0r9

6,09r,334
8,568,067

61,813
83 1.784

83 65,728 249 tt't.942 50.994 25.670.431

30,000

598,400
387,969

7,192,277
6,591,156

l3 1.459

30,000 14,901,261

200,004
109,998

202,972
3t_626

1,551

1.55 I 15.445.86 I

83 35.728 249 l1 942 45.443 10-224-570

r50.000)
44,274 1,260,046

ß 948,48't).

I l 3 5.000) lso 0001 44.2'74 l8-688-441)

83 (99,272)

53.381

249 67,942

13 454

93,7'17

ll 34_8981

1,s36,t29

6.618.67141

s 124 $ (45,891) $ 249 $ 81,396$ (4l,l8l)$ 8.154.800
(Concluded)
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CITY OF' ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDTJLE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FT]ND BALANCE - BTIDGET AND ACTUAL
NOI\MAJOR SPECIAL REYENUE FT]IIDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Rockford Tuberculosis Care Center Fund

Original Final
BudsetBudset

$ r5l,l7s $ r5r,l75

800 800

l5l -975 l5l -975

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNeqativeì

Original
Budset

35,195 $ 21,700
- 8,479,200

(487) _ 4t,400

34-708 8-542.300

Garbage and Refuse f,'und

Final
Bndsef ,Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesetivelActual

$ 186,370 $

313

186-683

$ 2l,700
8,479,200

4'1,400

8.542.300

s 22,76s $
8,568,067

27,912

8.618.744

1,065
88,867

(13,488)

76.444

RE\rENUES
Taxes - Property
Charges for services
lnterest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Sanitation and sewers
Public health and welfare

Total current expenditwes

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER F'INANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fi.md balance

Fund balance - beeinning
Furd balance - ending

152-700 152-700 131.459

152-700 152.700 131.459

('7)\\ ('7)a\ 55 ))4

s (725) S (725) ss,224
s3,062

s 108.286

7,313,905 7,313,90s 6,59r,156 722,749

21.241 7.313.905 7.313.905 6.591.156 722.749

ss-949 t-228-395 t-228-395 2.027.588 799 19?

lr 29i 6001 fi 2_93 6001 11.293.6001

s ss s4s s 165-205ì s 165-205) 733,988 $ 799,193

(Continued)

)1 ).41
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, ILINOIS
SCHEDT]LE OF RE\rENT]ES, EXPENDITT]RES AND
CHANGES IN FIlllD BALAI\CE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FI.INDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
fNesativeì

Redevelopment Fund

REVENUES
Taxes - Sales tax
Intergovenrmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service

Principal payments
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total current expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Note proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in firnd balance
Frurd balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Final
Budset

s $ $
3,843,000 3,843,000 4,535,832 692,832

I r 4-000 r t 4-000 11.402 lr 02-5981

3-957-000 3-9s7-000 4.s47.234 s90.234

$ 3,495,200 $ 3,495,200 S 3,557,289 S ó2,089

3.49s-200 3.49s.200 3.s57.289 62_O89

2,021,150 2,021,1s0 1,536,816 484,334

Original
Budset

$

(5,000,000)

s ll _043_0001

(5,000,000)

sl.t-043_000ì

(2,346,s38)

2,200,696
7.446,703

s9,647.399

2,653,462

s 3.243-696

Original
Budpet

135-199

(1,446,048)

s ll07_1971 s

Final
Budset

I 35-1 99

(1,246,048)

92_803

Actual

200,004
80-449

(1,246,047)

493,973

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesative)

(200,004)
54.750

339.080

401.169

s 401_170

) 176?49 ) 15Á?49 1.817.269

3.957.000 3.957.000 4.547.234 590 ).14 I 33ß 8s1 I 338 851 1740.020

(5.000,000) (5.000.000) (2.346.538\ 2.6s3.462 (r.446.048\ (1.246.048) 0.246.047\

(Continued)
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crrY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
SCIIEDT]LE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AI\D
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NOIIMAJOR SPECIAL REVENT]E FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 3I,2010

Tourism Fund

Original
Rrr¡locf

Final
Rrrdoef

Final Budget-
Positive

Actual lNesative) Actuel

$ $
120,000 120,000 99,019 (20,981)

sg 0rs 120-9ßr ì

Original
llrdset

Special Proiects Fund

Final
llùdset

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
f Nesativeì

REVENL'ES
Taxes - Sales tax
Licenses and permits
lnterest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total current expenditures

Excess ofrevenues
over (under) expenditures

oTHERFTNANCTNG (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fimd balance
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 1,522,500 $ 1,522,500 s 1,541,577 $

713

19,077

713

$ s

1.522.500 1.s42.290 l 9_790 120-000 120-000

I ,403,300 1,403,300 | ,404,449 (1,149) 5r,700 5l,7oo

1.403.300 l t-404-449 11.149) 51.700 51.700

119.200 ll s 200 1?7.841 18_641 68-300 68-300

lr r9-200ì flI9-200) flI9-200)

85,000
790

85-790

17 )).9

13,229
(8s,71 9)

$ (72.490)

(33,300)
t7901

t34.090)

t55_0711

s (55.071)

(Continued)

s $ 18,641 $ 18.641 $ 68,300 S 68,300

75.9'.78
$ 94,619
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLTNOTS
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A}ID
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVBNUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

RJ(FD Metro Agency for Planning Fund

Acfual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNeoefivel

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

EXPENDITT]RES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total current expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOI]RCES
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

995,404 995,404 r,007,928
5.374

99-5-404 99s-404 1 013_302

(334-604\ 1156-404) (48-741).

82-s60 82-560 I 66-809

s (252_044\ s t73-844't I18,068

Original
Burloet

$ 660,800

660_800

Final
Burlget

$ 83e,000

839_000

$ 964,s61 S

964.s6t

125,561

125.561

ll7-898')

107.663

84.249

191-912

(t2,s24)
(5-374\

s

Bl7



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
East Side Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativel

Original
Budset

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
Intergovemmental

Interest

Total revenues

E)(PENDITURES
Current:

Community development

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

Original
Budset

s 360,900

14.300

Final
Budset

$ 360,900 $

l4_300

348,042 $

t o?3

(12,858)

(1) )61\

$ 402,900 $ 402,900 $ 404,387 $

8'79

Tax Increment Financing Area
rrVest Side Fund

Final
Budset Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesative)

1,487

879

2.366

14.572

r4.s72

1ó.938

248,963
(448.963\
(200,000)

10,61 5 $ 16.938

375.200 375.200 350.075 (25-r25\ 402.900 402900 405.266

2'13.963 273.963 66-2t5 207-748 209.223 209.223 194_651

273.963 273.963 66.215 207.748 209.223 209.223 t94.65r

101.237 r0r.237 283.860 182.623 193.677 193.677 2t0.6r5

(273.963\ (273.963\ (273.963\ Q48.963)
248,963

(448.963)
(273,963) (273,963)

s (172 726ì S (1'72726\

(273,963)

9,897
102,205

s 112,102

- (248,963) (200,000)

s r ß2 623 S t5s 2861 S 16 323ì

36,404
$ 47,019

(Continued)
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
SCHEDT]LE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A¡ID
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2070

Tax Increment Financing Area
Seventh Street Fund

Original

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNeonfiveìR¡r¡loef ,4.ctual

Tax Increment Financing Area
Southeast Fund

Final
Rrrdocf

$ 1,044,600 s r,044,600 $ 1,056,660 $
6,428. r.346

1.044.600 1,044,600 1.064.434

q2 Ono 492-000 463-176

92.000 492.000 461 'l(t

952.600 552.600 601 258

4

Original Final
Rudsef Rudset Acfual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativeì

$

(Continued)

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FTNANCTNG (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund bala¡rce - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

12,060
6,428
1 746

$ $ $

00050,50,000

$ 48.6s8 $ (400,000) $ (574.108)(384,912)-570)1583$66.430s

(886,170) (1,136,170)(1,136,170) - - - - -

(886,170) (986,170) (98ó,170)

$-08)(574,

13.406

)R A).4 400.000 574-108 574.108

28-824 400.000 574.108 574.108

48-6s8 t400-000) t574.108) 1574.108)

574. l 08
s
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI)
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENT]E FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
South Rockford Fund

Original

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNecativel

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
lnterest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditües

oTrrER FTNANCTNG (USES)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in ñmd balance

Fund balance (deficit) - begiruring
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

Budset Actual Budset Actuel

$ 182,194 $ 182,194 $ 126,948 $ (s5,246) $ 75,500 $ 75,500 $ 76,782 $
80s

1,282
809I 700 I 700 1 072 (628\

183-894 183-894 128.020 lss_8741 75-500 75_500 77.s91 2.091

30.494 30.494 28.037 2.457

153-400 153-400 99-983 ß3_417\ 75.500 75.500 77.591 2.091

ll4s 0001 ll4s 0001 fi45-0001 l4s_688ì 145_688) 145_688)

(r 4s,000)

$ 8.400

Final
Budset

(145,000)

s 8.400

(145,000)

(45,017)

45,694
s 677

0riginal

(45,688)

s 29.812

Tax Increment Financing Area
Lincolnwood Estates Fund

Final
Budset

(45,ó88)

s 29.812

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesaf ivel

(45,688)

3r,903 S 2.09rs t53.417)
71.997

s 103.900
(Continued)
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CITY OF ROCKFORI), LLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FIlllD BALANCE - BIIDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENT]E FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
Springfield Corners Fund

Original

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNepativeìBudset Actual

Tax Increment Financing Area
Rockford Global Trade Park Fund

Final
Budset

Original
Budset

Final
Budset

$ 734,887

734.887

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativeìActu¡l

$ 758,836

758.836

REVE¡IUES

Taxes - Property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditwes

oTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium (discount) on issue ofgeneral obligation bonc
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (defrcit) - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 4ll,l00
4l 1.100

$ 4l r,r 00

41 1.100

$ 163,871

1ó3.871

$ (247,229)

(247.229\
$ 734,887

734.887

s 23,949

23,949

19.932 19.932
1,174,895

t'7 5

(t,174,89s)
19.75'7

53,500
9.475

53,500 56,641 (3,141)
I 475 115 9-l 60

19.932 19.932 1.175.070 n.155.138) 62.97s 62-9'75 5(r-956 6-019

391-168 391-168 11_011-199) (1-402-367\ 671-9t2 671.912 701.880 29 96R

o,0,,,;, ,,,0.,,; ,3i9:3?3.' '?i9,193ì ,åå3:333, ,133:333, ,ii3,339' ;
(330,338) (330.338) (107,810) (277,472) (550,988) (s50,988) (550.987) I

s 60.830 s 60.830 (l,r 19,009) s ll 67s 83sl s 120.924 s 120.924 1s0,893 s 29,969

942,3s3
$ (176.656)

(Continued)

(234,7',|2)
s (83.879)

B21



crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLTNOTS
SCHEDULE OF RE\rEITTJES, EXPENDITT]RES AI\D
CHANGES IN FTIND BALANCE - BIIDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL RE\rENUE FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
North Main Fund

v

Orisinal
Final Budget-

Positive
A nfrrql lNeoefiveì

REVENI]ES

Taxes - Property
Interest

Total revenues

Original
Rndcet

Tax Increment Financing Area
Lincolnwood II Fund

Final
Rudqef ActualR¡r¡lc¡f

5l -317

Final
Rrrdoef

$ 62,700$ 62,700s76,679 $ 13,979 $ 47,000$ 47,000s 48,875$ 1,875
?07 307

62.700 700 76.6'79 13_979 47 _000 47.000 49 142 2_182

11.383 11 ? 2.57i 8_810

1 1.383 ll 3R3 2.573 8.810

24.935
$ 50,486

Final Budget-
Positive

lNesativel

2.182

s 2.182

(Continued)

EXPENDITI]RES
Cr¡rrent:
Debt service - interest and fiscal cha¡ges

Total expenditwes

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expendihres

oTHT'R FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

168.963) ( 9631 168_9631

$ (17.646) S (17,646) 5,143

)2,749 47.O00 47-000 49 lR)

(23-63t)' (23"63r\ (23.631\

s 22.789 S 23.369 $ 23,369 25,551

5l ? t7 14 l0ó

(3 l 4.ó08)
$ (309.4ó5)
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CITY OF ROCKFORI), ILINOIS
SCIIEDIILE OF REVENIIES, EXPENDTTURES AND
CHANGES IN FIIND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVET\UE FTJIIDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
River Oaks Fund

Original

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativelBudset Actual

Final
Budset

Orisinal

Tax Increment Financing Area
Garrison Fund

Final
Budgef Actu¡l

REVENTJES

Taxes - Property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTIIER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in ñmd balance
Frurd balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

19.1 18 l 9.1 18 3.237

l9-1 18 19.1 1 8 3.237

52.182 s2.182 69-118

(298.588) 1298.588) (298-587\

s 046-406\ S 046.406\ (229,469)
(530,758)

s 060.227\

15.881 9.952 9.952 2.225

I 5.88 I 9.952 9.952 2.225

16.936 4l-848 4l-848 50-541

(64-463\ (64-463\ (64-463\

s 16_937 S 122_615ì S (22_615\ (t3,e22)

s 71,300 $

7 l-300

s 72,355 S

72-355

Budget

$ 51,800 $

5l -800

51,800 $

5l_800

52,766 $

52;766

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
fl\lesativel

7.727

7.727

8-693

s 8-693

(Concluded)

71,300

7l_300

1,055

l_055

966

966

823



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVEIITIES, EXPEIIDITT]RES AND
CIIANGES IN FUND BALAIICE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENT]E FT]IIDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
Hope Six Fund

Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Positive Original
Budoet Burloet Actual lNesativeì Budset

(t7,370\
s.2686.36s

Ã ?Á\

176.625 I

flt1?5ô\

142

s3_994

33.271

20_721

20,721

6,493
s 27.2t4

Vari¿nce with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesative')

852
(204),

648

11.777

1) 4)5

s t2-425

(Concluded)

Tax Increment Financing Area
Kishwaukeelllarrison Fund

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
lnterest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

oTrrER FrNA¡rCrNG (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fimd balance

Fund balance- beeinning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 182,990 S 182,990 $ 183,946 $ 9s6 S

I 1' qqo 182-990 183_946 9s6

17,370

53,000 $

346
53,000 $ 53,852 $

346

5? i46 5? ?46

45,050 45,050 33,273 11,777

$ 64,875 $ 64,875 53,729
(183.329)

$ (129,600)

n2.102\ 4s 050 45.050

ll I 146\ 8.296 8-296

$ 01.14ó) $ 8.29ó S 8,296

6 365

Á ?Á\
r _09?

19,46'7

(\5 479

l'r't r 750\ ll11 ?50\
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, ILTNOIS
SCHDDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI)
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2070

Tax Increment Financing Area Tax Increment Financing Area
Jackson School Fund Preston/Central Fund

Variance with Variance with
Final Budget- Final Budget-

Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budset Budset Actual (Neeative) Budeet Budget Actual (Neqative)

REVENI]ES
Taxes - Properly

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHERFTNANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 142,885 $ 142,885 t 
"7:.rr1rr^ 

$

I 4? RR5 142.885 121.710

90,000 15,000 8,753

qn nno r5 noo I 75?

5' *R5 127-885 112-957

147_000) ll97_0001 1197.310)

t47.000) (l97.000) û97.3l0)

$ 5,885 $ (6e,1 15) (84,353)

6,247
44-402 44 402

Á )L1 Ltr Lû) 44 [O) 46 040

/r4-928\ 256-071 256 071 205_581

f?10ì lgR 300'l lsß i00ì 198 3001

t3r0l 198-300) t98_300) t98.300)

s (15,238) $ 157,77r s 157,711 r07,28t

(23,549)

2,374

()7 549\

s 20,900 $

279.573

700 471

20,900 $

279.577

100.473

31,518 $

220.103

251.621

10,618

(59-470\

t48_852)

fl.638)

t50.4901

$ (50,490)

(Concluded)

35,843
I 0-l 97

(35,843)
34-205

149,782
$ 65.429

7
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CITY OF ROCIGORD, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDT]LE OF REVENUES, EXPE¡IDITURES ANI)
CIIANGES IN FIIND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NOI\MAJOR SPECIAL REVENTJE FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
North Main & Auburn Fund

Actual

Vari¿nce with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativeì

REVEIII]ES
Taxes - Property
Interest

Total revenues

Tax Increment Financing Arca
East State & Alpine Fund

Original
Budset

Final
Budset

Original
Budset

Variance with
Final Budget-

Final Positive
Budset Acfual fNesativel

$ 20,700 $ 20,700 s 20,031 $ (ó69) s294,300$ 294,300 8 262,s36 $ (31,764)
7), ?. t4) 2 142

20.700 20.'700 20-10? ß97\ 294 ?OO 294.?OO 264.678 (29.622\

112.429 312.429 260-000 s2.429
312_429 312_429 260-000 52.429

20-700 20.700 20.103 lssTl fl8.129) llR I?sì 4-678 )) RO?

140-000ì 140-000ì 140-000ì

s 20 700 s 20-700 20,103 s t5971 s t58_l29ls t58-129ì (3s,322) s 22_807

3 12,138
s 276.816

(Concluded)

1).

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditu¡es

oTHERFTNANCTNG (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in firnd balance
Fund bala¡rce- begiruring
Fund balance (deficit) - ending
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
SCITEDTJLE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIIRES AND
CIIANGES IN FUI\D BALANCE - BIIDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FT]NDS
For the Yea¡ Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
West State & Central Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNeeative)

Oriqinal
Budset

Final
Budset

Original
Budeet

Tax Increment Financing Area
\ilest State & Kilburn Fund

Final
Budeet Actual

Vari¿nce with
Final Budget-

Positive
(Nesative)

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHERFINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

s 273,500 S 273,500 s 232,458 $
s 093 5.093

,7R {q? ?7R 5q? )?) 4\R

'7?Á

'736

278,593 231.722

l?s0 0001 l?5n 0001 l?50 0001

s 28-s93 s 28_s93 (18,278)
4t

$ 19,900 $ 19,900 $ 21,198 $ 1,298

l9_900 19.900 21.198 1 ).9*

833 833 )19 s94

833 833 279 s94

19.067 19,067 20.959 1.892

s t46_87r) S 19_067 S 19-067 20,959 s 1.892
(22,73s)

$ (1.776)
(Concluded)

(41,042)
l5-0931

146 I ?51

(1?6\
(1?6\

ø6.871\
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CITY OF ROCKFORI), ILINOIS
SCHEDT]LE OF REVENIIES, EXPENDITURES A¡ID
CHANGES IN FIIND BALAT\CE - BUDGET AI\D ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FT]NDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
West Side II Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
(Nesative)

REVENIJES
Taxes - Property
Interest

$ 9,800 s 9,800 $ 9,990 $ 190 $ 211,200 $ 21r,200 $

Total revenues 9.800 9.800 9.990 190 21t.200 ztt_200

Tax Increment Financing
Rockford Global Trade Park

Area
II Fund

Original
Budset

Final
Budeet

Original
Budset

Final
Budset Actual

189,432 $

911

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
(Nesativel

(2r,768)
911

t20-8s7ì

31,914

3l -914

1 1.057

S I l-0-57

(Concluded)

EXPENDITURES
Cu¡rent:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

oTHERFTNANCTNG (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fi¡nd balance
Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

700 700
700 700

9,100 9.100

s 9_100 s 9-100

164

164

9.826

9,826
(t7.t82)

$ (7,356)

536

s36

726

190-343

133,700 33,700 1,786

133-700 33-?00 1.786

77.s00 177.500 188.557

(100.000) (100.000)

88,557
(1 1.520)

s 77.037

s 726 $ 77.500$ 77.500
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITT]RES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
River North Fund

Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Positive
Budset Budset Actual lNeeative)

Tax Increment Financing Area
North Main and \Yhltman Fund

Original Final
Budcef Budqef Actual

(5, l4r)
2_000

$ 40,856 $ 40,856 $ 4t,s77 $ 72r

13.r4lI 40-856 40_8s6 41.577 721

(243,462)
I 676 5.265 5-2(t5 876 4-389

()41 R)6\ 5 )65 5.265 q',t6 4_389

35-s91 35-591 40.701 5-1 l0

4 ?rR (128.663) fi28.663\ (101.385) 27.278
4 JRß (128 (t6i\ (128 661\ ll01-3851 27.278

s Q40.579) $ 03.072ì' $ (93,072) (60,684) $ 32.388

REVENI.]ES

Taxes - Property

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance (deficit) - begiruring
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 84,000 $ 84,000 t tïåil $

R4 00t) R4 000 80 R59

243,462
1.636 1.636

1.636 t_636 243.462

R) 164 Ð.764 (162 601\ (244 967),

123-139) (23-t39\ (27-527\
(23.139\ Q3.139\ (27.527\

$ s9-225 $ s9-225 (190,130)
259,425

$ 69,295
( I 58,406)

$ (21e.090)

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNeqativel

(Continued)
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AllD ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
East River Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativel

Original
Budset

Final
Budset

Original
Budset

REVENUES
Taxes - Property

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other hnancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficiQ - ending

44.723

3 5.564 35.564
35-564 35_564

9.1 59

$ 44,300 $

423

44,300

423

250,000
(267-605\

$ 45,983 $

376

250,000
(267-605\

$ 40$r,683

Ø7)

Tax Increment Financing Area
Assisted Living Fund

Final
Budøet Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativeì

40$ 83$ 43

40 83 43

40 83 41

40

44.723 46.359

9-r59 46.359

1,636

35.564
35.564

37.200

40

40

40s

/L8.642\
(18-642\ 117-6051 fl7-605)

$ 19_4831 $ t8_446) 28,754
38.715ffi

s 37-200 s 83

4l
s 43

(Concluded)
$ 124

830



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN F'Ult[I) BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 37,2070

Tax Increment Financing Area
Midtown Fund

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
lNesativel

Original
Budset

Final
Budset

Original
Budset

Tax Increment Financing Area
Kishwaukee and Harrison II

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDTTURES
Current:

Community development
Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHERFINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

$ 6e,300 $ 6e,300 t .i.1i3 $

6S 100 6S 300 65-728

50.000 30.000 30.000
50 000 30.000 30.000

19.300 39.300 3s.728

ll35-000ì ll35-0001

s 19.300 s t95.700)
53,381

s (45.8er)

(99,272) S ßs72\ S 245 S 245

s 245 $ 245 S 249 $

245 245 249

245 245 249

249 S

(4,820)
1.248

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
fl\lesativeì

4

4

4

(Concluded)

(? \7).\

(3.572). 4
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
SCHFDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEI\IDTTIIRES ANn
CHAÌIIGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET A¡ID ACTUAL (Continued)
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Tax Increment Financing Area
Rockford Global Trade Park III Fund

REVENUES
Taxes - Property
Interest

Total revenues

E)(PENDITURES
Current:

Community development
Debt service - interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures

oTrrER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance- beginning
Fund balance (deficit) - ending

Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Positive Original
Budset Budset Actual lNesative) Budeet

$ 135,100 $ 135,100 , ,",t?2 $

Tax Increment Financing Area
Broadway

Final
Budset

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
fNesafiveì

(Concluded)

r35-100 135.100 117.942 fl7.158) s8-300 58-300 50-994

50,000 25,000 25,000
I _551

50.000 25,000 25,000 1,551

85- I 00 135-100 117.942 fl7.158) 33.300 33.300 49 441

44,274 44,274
150_000ì 150_0001

$ 85,100 $ 85,100 67,942 $ (12158) s 33.300 $ 77,574 93,777

13,454
$ 81.396

Actual

(17,410)
252

$ 58,300 $ 58,300 $ s0,994 $ (7,306)

(7 -306\

25,000
fl 55l)
23,449

t6-143

s 16-143

(134,898)
$ (4l,l8l)

832
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INTERNAL SERVICE FT]NDS

Intemal service funds are used to account for the hnancing ofgoods or services provided by one department or agency
to other departments or agencies of the govemment and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

CENTRAL GARAGE To account for the costs ofoperating a maintenance facility for automotive equipment used by other City
departments and other govemment agencies. Billings to other departments and agencies are based on

actual costs, including depreciation on the garage building and improvements, machinery, and equipment

used to provide the service. The automotive equipment itself is acquired by the user departments which

are also responsible for financing replacement vehicles as necessary.

BUILDING MAINTENANCE To account for the costs ofoperating maintenance facilities, including depreciation, which provide

maintenance services and repairs of City buildings and properties. Financing is provided by service

charges to user funds.

CENTRAL STORES To account for the costs ofoperating centralized inventory system for the Central Garage, Building
Maintenance, and Water Utility Funds. Financing is provided by service charges to user funds.

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL
RETIREMENT

TJNEMPLOYMENT

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION

AIJDITING

HEALTH INSURANCE

9II COMMUNICATIONS

zuSKMANAGEMENT

INFORMATION SYSTEMS

To account for pension and social security costs of Govemmental and Proprietary Funds. Financing is

provided by service charges to user funds.

To account for unemployment costs relating to Govemmental and Proprietary Funds. Financing is

provided by service charges to user funds.

To account for workmen's compensation claims of Govemmental and Proprietary Funds. Financing is

provided by service charges to user funds.

To account fo¡ costs ¡elated to the audit of the City. Financing is provided by service charges to user

funds.

To account for health insurance claims relating to City employees and retirees. Financing is provided by

service charges to user funds.

To account for the operating costs relating to the 9l I communications center serving the City of
Rockford and Winnebago County with emergency services. Financing is provided by the Police

Department, Fire Department, and Winnebago County.

To account for all insurance, claims, and accidental property loss expenses of Govemmental and

Proprietary Funds. Financing is provided by service charges to user funds.

To account for the costs relating to the City's data processing functions, pertaining to mainframe and

microcomputer network services. Financing is provided by service charges to user funds.



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
December 31,2010

Central
Garase

Buildins Central
Stores

Illinois
Municipal
Retirementaintenrnce f Jnemnlnvment

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other govemmental units
Due from other funds
lnventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
lmprovønents other than buildings

Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Installment note payable
Claims and judgnents payable

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent:

Compensated absences
Defened revenue
lnstallment note payable
Claims and judprynents payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

s 792,725 $ 762,2t4 S 216,668 $ 645,166 $

7,531
1,662

274,820
1,607 4s4 1,3 58

1.0'76.738 763.821 ).17 1)). 646.524

20,000
I 78,080
608,752
85,345

(741.562\

1,300,284
I 83,963
108,889

l70t -900ì

tt,642
37,591

(49_233\

150.615 991.2?6

1,227,353 1.655.057 217.122 646,524

200,827
15,321

9,539

150,s40
10,096

393,014
2,373

31,964
720,126

183
3,462

595,536

s0-988

36,640

98,285

(134.925\

52,95r
60,515

150,6 l5
737-585

891,236
(s44.292\

1,698

35,333

'76 446

$ 888-200 s 146 944 s 76 446 $ 50- R ç lr ?4 g?5ì

ct



Workmenrs Health
Insurance

9lt
Communications

Risk
Menaøement

Information
Total

Internal
Svcfems Seruice F undsCnmnensefion A

$ 1,995,689 $

4,178

$ 5,961,554 $
42,999

12,559

$ 10,796,834
42,999

224,425
22,',l03

274,820

18,388$ 359,099S 45,331

216,894
l8 753 ll4

l-999.867 6 017.112 235.300 359.852 45.445 I t-361.781

1s0,738 5,456,560

t3-494.15 l)û50.738)

1.962.409 3.004.260

1.999.867 6.017.112 21s 300 359-8.52 2.007 4 766 041

27,999 - 119,739 4,840
83,672

s7,889

79,192 125,255
9,385

s,042
90,922

1,340,'t5l
121,936

90,922

491,299
76,541

t63

88,899 32,886

461,095

1,410,392

242,033
945,382
461,09s

2,452,243
(944_412\

164,74t

l1 -398.8 I 9l 1 903 612 ß-607-904\ (1).1 12?\

64-141 EÜ.

13.4R0 235-:2.

s fl.398.819) $ s 3.903.632 $ s (3.607.904) S 1.283.269 $ t -s07-831

c2



crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FT]NDS
COMBING STATEMENT OF REVENTIES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES rN FI]ND r[ET ASSETS (DEFTCTT)
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Central
Garaqe

Building
Maintenrnce

Central
Stores

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement Unemplovment

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits

Services

Supplies and materials

Depreciation

Charges from General Fund

Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest received

lnterest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net assets (deficit)

Total net assets (deficit) - beginning

Total net assets (deficit) - ending

$ 3,894,693 $

328

2,547,767 $ 412,100 $ 6,525,639 $

I1,263

8.93s

63,369

3.895.021 2.567.965 4 100 6-525.639 63.369

854,977

845,783

1,920,426

21,109

t32,200

728,545

I,373,890
225,145

100,439

1 00,500

275,963

60,661

33,683

456

19,300

6,525,63',7 215,241

583

3.774.495 2.528.519 063 6.526.220 215.241

120.526 39.446 22.037 t58l) fl51.872)

6,230 3,820 2,304 4,119 1,17 4

6.230 3,820 2.304 4.119 1.t74

126,756

761,444

43,266

303,678

24,341

152,105

3,538

47,450

(150,698)

t5.773

$ 888,200 S 346,944 $ I $ 50.988 $ (l34.92s)
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Workmenrs
Comoensation

Health
Insurance

Information
Total

lnternal
Service FundsAuditine

911 Risk
Communications Manasement

s 3,649,603 S 277,181

10.617

s 19,710,042 S

630,072

5,071,822 $ 1,008,520 $

- 34.690

2,647,648 $

6,839

45,808,384

11,263

691,481

3.660.220 277-t8l 20.340.114 5.071 .822 1.043.210 2-654-487 46.511.128

2,446,837 276,921

'79,900

t8,6t7,625
164

1 08,500

4,934,073

137,779

6,240

2,440,989

3 16,500

573,660

1,368,803

49,'743

4'7t,205

41,400

7,367,218

34,310,166

2,235,401

s93,209

798,300

583

2.526.737 276-92t 18"726.289 2.7s7.489 2.504.81I 45.304.877

l.133.483 260 1.613.82s fi.714.279\ 149.676 1.206.251

( r.730)
37,077 9,451 3,615

8-209)
67,790

I I 9-939)

11.730) 37.077 9.451 3.615 118.209) 47.851

I, 131,753

(2.530.5'72\ 2.252.730

3,181

(3.1 8 1)

(1,710,664)

/r-897-240\

260 1,650,902 13t,467 1,254,102

l5 r,R02 25 t-729

s fl.398.819) $ $ 3.903,632 $ s (3.607.904) S 1.283.269 $ 1.507.831

C4



crTY oF ROCKFORn, ILTNOIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASII F'LOWS
For the Year Ended December 3 l, 2010

Cenfral
Garrse Maintenatrce

Illinois
Municipal
Retiremenf Ilnemnlovment

Building Central

CASH FLO\ryS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users

Payments 1o suppliers

Pa),ments to employees

Payments for internal sewices used

Receipts fìom other funds

Payments to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

CASH FLO\YS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds fiom installment purchase agreement

lnterest paid on installment purchase agreement

Principal paid on installment purchase agreement

Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash (used for) capital

and related fÌnancing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operat¡ng activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating incoms (loss) to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities
Depreciation expense
Increase (decrease) lrom changes in:

Accounts receivable
Due from other governmental units
Inventories
Prepaid items
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Other Iiabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

150.067 243.714 22.368 t146.863)

3,889,033

(2,7s0,986)
(8ss,780)
(132,200)

2,739,96s
(1,647,360)

(723,828)
(100,s00)

412,100
(95,529)

(27 4,903)
( l e,300)

6,525,639

(6,672,s02)
63,369

(279,882)

98.28sQ4.s63)

fl 18.228)

6.926 4.1t6 2.559 s.688 1.606

156,993

635.732

247,830

514.384

24,927 (141,175)

191.741 786.341

(116,622)

Ú6.622

s 792.725 s 762.214 S 21 $ 64s t6ó s

s 120.526 s 39.446 $ 03? ß l58lr s rLs1.872\

21,109

(s,988)
(1,s77)

I 6,800
(460)
(343)

I 00,439

72,000

456

(48,32s)
(1,360)
6,077

(24,s63)
100,000

( 1,1 85)
616
444

(146,282) (64,641)

98,285

29.541 ¿u+,20ó 33t (l46-2821

s 1146.863) $

33,644
(118.228\$ 1s0.067 s 243.714 s

cs



Workmen's
Compensation Audifing

Health
Insurance

911

Communications

Risk Information
Total

Internal
Management Systems Service Funds

3,660,220
(2,629,223',)

(79,900)

277.181

(276,e2\)

(260',)

20,346,682
(19,694,241)

( r 08,s00)

s,095,09 I

(148,282)
(4,9s2,427)

1,043,210
(812,862)

(3 l 6,s00)

2,701,487

(1,4s7,78s)
(s73,349)

(4 l,400)

46,7s3,977

(36,46s,s73)
(7,380,287)

(798,300)

(397.038) (323.s76)

951.097 543.941 (5.61 8) (86.1s2) 231.915 I.786.241

617,617
(e,600)

(65,600)
(720.278\

617,617

(e,600)

(6s,600)
(720.278)

177 R61 ì (1 R6

(2.124) 44.446 9.498 4,495 (8.723) 68,487

948,973

1.046.716

588,387

5.373,167

3,880

14.s08

(8 1,6s7)

440,7 56

4s,331 1,676,867

9.119.967

$ 1,995.689 $ $ s,961,5s4 $ 18,388$ 3s9,O99 $ 4s,331$10,796,834

$ 1.133.483 $ 260 $ l.ó13.825 $ (6.270)$ (r.714.279)$ 149.676 $ 1.206.251

16,268

1,102

44,936
(54,3 88)

5,466

23,269

471,205

47.000

593,209

7f ,102
64,281
(t,s77)

tt7,969
(404,748)

I 0,878
(23,e47)

(323,s76)
105,466

(4,263)
10,l0l

(28,4ss)

73,033
(112,272)

1,981
( l,670)

(397,038)

(6,460)

(260)

$ 9s1.097 $ $ s43.941 $ rs 618l s t86 ls2l $ 231 gts s 1.786241

C6
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F'IDUCIARY F'III\I)S

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

To account for the accumulalion of resouroes to be used for retiroment annuity
pryme¡ts ãt epgopriate amounts and times in tho future. Administration oosts

are acoount€d for in each funcl, Resourçes are oontributsal by employees at ratos

fixed by the State of Illinois and by the City at amounts determined by an annual
actuarial evaluation.
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CITY OF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FT]NDS
December 31,2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

U.S. Treasury Strips

U.S. Treasury Bills
U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Treasury Bonds

Govemment National Mortgage Association

Govemment Backed Corporate Bonds

Federal National Mortgage Association

Federal Farm Credit Bonds

Small Cap Equity Common Stocks

Large Cap Equity Common Stocks

NTGI Collective Trust
ABN AMRO Stable Value Funds

Domestic Mutual Funds

Intemational Mutual Funds

Accrued interest receivable

Contributions receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

Pension Trust Funds

Firefighter's
Tnfal

s 84'7 ,437 $ 2,478,501 $ 3,325,938

Police
Pension

rt,740,071

72,240,809

13,911,560

33,969,358

23,219,669

3,3',76,057

5,3ó0,686

1,226,540

312,311

6,144,'198

2,062,47'7

7,620,392

1,805,047

12,562,707

19,669,'731

49,219,186

I 0,848,846

16,613,886

3,376,0s7

5,360,686

1,226,540

3t2,3tt
6,144,798

2,062,477

7,620,392
1,805,047

24,302,',l78

19,669,731

121,459,995

13,91 1,560

44,818,204

39,833,555

26,4s9

4.295.574

168,099

1'71.434

194,558
9-469-008

160,250,937 144,642,698 304,893,635

s9_099 8 R 6Rß 141 7X1

$ 160.r9r.838 $ 144.554.010 s 304.745.848
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CITY OF ROCKFORn, ILINOTS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2010

Pension Trust Funds
Police

Pension

Firefighter's
Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer
Plan member

Total contributions

Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest and dividend income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expense

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

5,274,174
1.975.149

g 6,347,734 $ 11,621,908$
79ß 076 .771.2251. 3

7.249-323 8.145 810 15 395_ 133

13,372,535
1,905.014

9,971,74'l 23,344,276
4.034.796) 129.782

15,277,549
Q89.630\

72,101,523
(460.704\

27,379,072
(7s0.334'l

t4.987,919 11.640,819 26,628,738

22,237,242 19,786,629 42,023,871

I1,616,000
24,325

162,242

12,929,522 24,545,522
- 24,325

t2t,2t6 283,458

11.802.567 13.050"738 24.853,305

10,434,675 6,735,891 17,170,566

149.757.163 137 t8-l l9 287,575.282

$ 160,191,838 $ 144,554,010 $ 304,745,848
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNEMENTAL FUNDS - SCTIEDULE BY SOURCE
December 31,2010

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total govemmental funds capital assets

IIWESTMENT IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL
ASSETS BY SOTJRCE

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Proiects Fund
Grants

Total investment in governmental funds capital assets

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govemmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in intemal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. The capital assets of internal service funds are included as govemmental

activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

$ 7,445,587
54,809,022
29,822,574

845.034,285

$ 937.111.468

$ 12,044,410
189,234,960
438,264,260
237,567,838

$ 937.111.468
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FI]NDS
SCHEDULE BY FT]NCTION AND ACTIYITY
December 31,2010

Land and
Improvements

Buildings and
Improvements Infrastructure Total

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
General govemment

Public safety

Streets, alleys and bridges

Communþ development

Sanitation and sewers

Culture and recreation

Public health and welfare

Total governmental funds capital assets

$ 4,939,047 $

913,506

197,322

203,704

201,500

970,008

20,500

t1,549,280 $

t2,6t5,442

1,37'1 ,527

950,443

27,47t,868

844,462

1,232,478

t6,606,661

7,980,496

199,725

23,264

2,117,833

r,662,117

845,034,285

s t7,'720,80s

30,135,ó09

854,589,630

1,3s3,872

224,764

30,ssg,709

2,527,079

s

$ 7,445,587 ti 54,809,022 li ',29,822,514 J;845.U34:285 J;93't.tl

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govemmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the intemal service funds a¡e excluded from the
above amounts. The capital assets ofinternal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets.
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, TLLINOTS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
January l,2010 Additions Deductions

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
December 31, 2010

I'I]NCTION ANI) ACTIVITY
General govemment

Public safety

Streets, alleys and bridges

Community development

Sanitation and sewers

Culture and recreation

Public health and welfare

Total govemmental funds capital assets

$ 17,720,805 $

30,232,093

844,137,245

1,341,896

224,764

30,501,321

2,264,169

650,472

74,655,878

31,626

58,388

275,660

746,956

4,203,493

19,650

17,720,805

30,135,609

854,589,630

1,353,872

224,764

30,559,709

2,527,079

$ $

12,750

s 926,422,293 $ 7s,672,024 $ 4.982,849 $ 937,tt1.468

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. The capital assets ofinternal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets.
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Rockford comprehensive annual hnancial report presents detailed information as

a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the cþ's overall financial health.

Contents Page

F1-F7Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

city's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Debt Capacity F13-F19

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the city's ability to generate its property and sales taxes'

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the city's financial activities take place

and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

F8-F12

ß20-F2l

Operating Information F22-F24
These schedules contain information about the city's operations and resources to

help the reader understand how the city's financial information relates to the

services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reports for the relevant year. The city implemented the infrastructure portion of
Statement 34 in the 2006 fiscal year, schedules presenting govenìment-wide information

include information for the current and four previous fiscal years.
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOIS

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT, LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

Govemmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted

Capital projects
Debt service
Other purposes

Un¡estricted

Total govemmental activities net assets

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$ 481,780,204 s 477,8s2,551 $ 471,473,879 s 460,914,982 s 45',1,172,437 $

7,840,349
5,717,798

16,504,779
(32.'t45.075\

4,s31,567
5,437,870

13,2s8,097

9,4s3,077
6,443,154

I 1,73s,813
tl I 328 9021

18,841,31 1

9,288,644
13,148,600
t2.598_408)

10,764,755
7,245,389

10,2r2,907
7)5

2005

439,881,835

17,919,997
4,944,429
9,9ó1,886

14 647 406I R R70ì

$ 479.098-0ss $ 476. 561 )]s î 479 7'77 021 s 499.595.129 s 1 3 s 487 355 553

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted

Capital projects
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total business-fype activities net assets

s 133,021,249 $ 131,269,066 $ 127,4ó0,090 $ 116,111,150 s 107,986,680 s 95,612,984

1,000,000
s,041,923
2.708.215

1,000,000
4,661,406

t,000,000
3,836,269

6.s3 493

1,000,000
4,65s,828
4.663.251

1,000,000
4.144,56r

310

8,2s8,356
4,235,834
1 734 3801 4501

s 141.7'71.387 $ I $ 1 32 S4S ß52 î 126 430.229 s I 18. l?? 55 n I R4l 554$

s 620.869.442 $ 6 )11 $ 6l ). n.6 877 $ 626 025_3-58 s 621.787 164 s 5qS t97 101Total govemmental activities net assets

Primary Govemment
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted
Un¡estricted

Total govemmental activities net assets

$ 614,801,4s3
36,104,849

t30.036.860)

s 609,12t,6r7 $

28,888,940
598,933,969 $
32,468,313

I l 8 67s-409)

57',t,026,t32
46,934,383
2.064.843

$ 565,1s9,117 $

33.36',1,612
635

53s,494,819
45,320,s02
l8_381.78650.3201

s 620_869.442 $ 6l 21'l $61 2'.726.873 s 626.025.3s8 s 621.787 164 5SS. 197 107$
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS, LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

2010

$ 13,297,890
89, r 09,64 1

3s.079.90s
11,694,212
7.0'72.936
'7,313,399

21,230,764
s,290,071

l 92,148,8 1 I

20,402,549

$ 14,s61,840
84,8 I 3,690
34,557,692
t'7 ,901,167
7,544,392
9,490,086

19,723,022
4,716,887

$ 1s,005,594
87,630,182
43.499.830
t3,816J23
7,560,231

t't,990,844
1s,708,487

2Ul,7

s 14J92,429
86,034,803
33.244.705
14,050,709
7.689.685

20,566,355
14,8'75,668

2006

s 13,297,717
78,028,562
28,618,460
I 2.850.580
7,'190,814
7,613,866

16,224,686
5.087.266

169.51 1.95 l

2005

$ 13,392,s90
72,945,042
I 1,008,143
13,761 ,490
7,095,605
't,719,111

l4,l 86,s61
4,507,87s

144,616,411

2009 200E

Expenses
Govemmental activities:

General govemment
Public safety

Streets, alleys and bridges
Community development
Sanitation and sewers

Culture and recreation
Public health and welfare
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total govemmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Water
Parking

Total business-type activities

Total primary govemment expenses

Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:

Charges for services;
General govement
Public safety
Streets, alleys and bridges
Community developmenl
Sanilation and sewers
Culture and recreatìon

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

Total govemmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Water
Parkìng

Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary govemment revenues

193,308,'t76
s,689,763 5,4'77,961

206,961,254 196,332,315

1 8,865,983
2,202,193

18,003,425 16,441,23'l
2,426,974 2308,209

20,430J99 18,'749,446

15,49t,'120
2.025.000

14,734,889
2,028.s83

16,763.47221,068,176 11.516.720

s 214,128,408 s 214.3 't6.9s2 s 227,391,653 $ 215,081,761 $ 187 I $ 161.379,889

s 5,774,210
9,130,719
5,291,t49

33't,749
8,s68,067

204,514

s s,426,375
9,435J82
4,813,914

436,500
6,74s,535

2s0,261

$ 5,409,390
7 .91'l.l9l
4,255,227

552,012
6.796.053

217,851

$ s,206,081
8,22 1,830
5,908,62s

524,515
6,840,386

20t,187

$ 5,10s,389
7,055,847
6,0s3,144

475,309
6,813,?61

200,290

$ s,333,840
5,944,017
5,775,581

s61,929
6,72s,442

164,971

29,807,880 29,288,219 21,s62,828 21,438,527 22,360,354 21,335,383

2.837.398 't63,30'l 1.420.360 6,60 1.783 6,8'12,910

6l .95 I.686 47 .473.859 59.76 1.s 1 r 77 52,7t4,073

22,'715,297
l,'793,745

3,498,s32

28,OO7,514

$ 89.9s9,260

21 ,6't I ,106
1,794,059

22,767,988
1,ss8,661

936,237

2s,262,886

s 72-736.74s

22,093,309
1,48't ,703

2,031,876

2s,6 12,888

$ 8s.374,399

20,318,020
1,529,800

I 8,605,553
1.573.703

'749,'761

24,214,932

s 82,67r,784

't90,231 4.887.660

22,638,051

$ 7'1,303,s28 $ 77.780.989

916

(Continued) (Continued) (Continued) (Continued) (Continued) (Continued)
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
CIIANGES IN NET ASSETS, LAST SIX YEARS (CONTINUED)

laccrual basis of accountins)

$(1 30, l 97, l 32)
5.42't.984

$( 1 34.8s 1,924)
3,146,7s6

$(1 s9.487.395)
4.832_487

2007

$( r 36.570,804) $(1t4,846,474)
5.121,331

s 01,902,344)
8303,444

2009 2009 2008 2006 2005

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Govemmental activities:

Taxes:
Property taxes $
Sales taxes
Metro Centre sales tax
Motel and hotel tourism 1ax

Local use lax
Income tax
Reptacement tax
Telecommunications tax
Ufility tax
Franchise taxes

Unreslricled inlerest eamings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities:
Unrestricted interest eamings
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total primary govemment

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Govemmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary govemment net expenss

Change in NetAssets
Govemmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

132.733.972 131,636,118

244,381 2,414

244.381 2,414

s(124,769,148) $031.70s.168) $(1s4,6s4,908) s(129,707,362) s(109,72s,143) $(83,s98,900)

58,784,8 1 5
36,380,336
3,626,556
I,54r,577
2,O30,554

11,736,930
1.555.032
5,3ó3,605
t,058,712
2,619,O91

478,887
1 .557.877

$ 58,379,104
35,'756,77s
3.538.842
1,490,3 I 6
1,8 1 8,959

t2,20r,422
7,212,783
5,852,740
1,1 19,215
1.624.690

226,143
2,415,t29

$ s5,712,310
19,497,031
3,530,918
1,839,367
2.1 89.685

14,193,822
8.1 8 1.027
5928,166
1,054,625
1,624,014
3,086,564
2.83 1.758

t19.669.287

$ 53.713.800
33,450,584

3.516.164
t;792,348
2,015,444

13,400,874
8,803,43 1

6,291,35'7
t,022,275
1,446,031
4,342,807
2,658,40s

57,600
132,511,120

$ s0,378,602
25.171.445

3,504,878
t;733.131
1,96f ,229

12.299.422
'1,251,586

5,771,186
866,O32

I,383,862
3,006,127
2,451,O23

57,600

$ 47,010,384
23,378,788
3,243,519
1.527,ts8
1,821,123

11,294,861
6,920,944
5,772,796

888,9s3
I,256,422
1,485,108
3,009,223

I 15.838.123
57,600

10't,667,0't9

$ 132,978,353 $ 131 I s12

1,687 ,136

1,687,136

s 141.356.423

1,491,836
(s7,600)

1,434,236

1,227,266
(s7,600)
169.666

376,485
(s7,600)
3 I 8,885

$ 133,945,356 $ 117,007,789 $ 107 964

$ 2.536,840 s (3,21s,806)
3.149.170

$ (19,818,108)
6,519,621

$ (4,0s9,684)
8,297,678

ï 4,237,994
5

s 991,649 $ 15,764,735
8.622.329

$ '1,282,646 s 24.38'1.064$ $ (66,636) $ (13,298,48s)
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS. LAST NINE FISCÄL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

$ $

2010

98,892

22,516,220

2009

195,966

21,810,257

2008

$ 1,392,085

22,960,473

2007

I 2,848,419

30,358,063

General X'und

Reserved

Unreserved

Total General Fund

AII Other Governmental X'unds

Reserved

Unreserved, reported in

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Debt Service Funds

Total all other govermental funds

g 22,615,112 $ 22,006,223 s 24,352,498 $ 33,206,482

$ 18,451,669 $ 17,111,431 s 20,909,673 S 32,786,952

14,015,070

4,428,124

11,376,328

3,692,856

6,384,419

6,575,540

10,169,249

3,408,693

(6,859)

$ 36,894,863 $ 32,180,615 $ 33,869,632 $ 45,758,035

Years Drior to implementation of GASB 34 are not provided
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2006

g 3,625,662

29,714,629

2005

$ 1,393,308

29,277,422

2004 2003 2002

412,991

20,209,794
$ 1,900,846

27,616,366
$ 498,263

24,247,157
$

s 33,340,291 $ 30,670,730 s 29,517,212 $ 24,745,414 $ 20,622,785

$ 15,608,994 S 17,114,176 S 11,597,027 $ 11,433,598 $ 12,160,398

8,598,211

4,752,174

(76,s2e)

7,315,779

9,00 l,7l 5

(263,135)

9,409,609

13,089,282

(387,s00)

9,867,477

7,002,694

9,932,707

6,808,553

(396,214)(273,602)

$ 28,882,850 $ 33,167,935 S 32,707,418 $ 28,030,167 $ 28,505,444
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CITY OF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS.
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2010

108,786,155

4,594,725

62,059,049

t6,744,'t84
1,647,241

431,036
1,557 ,877

107,955,95 I

3,483,059

60,433,907

t4,385,440

1,788,890

232,371
2.415.r29

2008

$ 109,7s2,r02

4,147,741

52,145,651

12,988,688

1,884,847

2,89s,335
2.83 1.758

2009

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

lntergovemmental

Charges for services

Fines

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govemment

Public safety

Streets, alleys and bridges

Community development

Sanitation and sewers

Culture and recreation

Public health and welfare

Debt service:

Principal paymonts

Interest and fiscal cbarges

Capital outlay:

General government

Public safety

Streets, alleys and bridges

Community deyelopment

Sanitation and sewers

Culture and recreation

Public health and welfare

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Refunding bonds issued

Pa),ment to escrow agent

Issuance of general obligatíon bonds

Issuance ofpromissory term note

Discount on issue ofgeneral obligation bonds

Premium on issue ofgeneral obligation bonds

Transfers in

Transfers out

$ $

t95,820,867 r90.694.747 186_646.122

12,905,125

84,569,192

t5,361,827

13,603,906

7,081,234

6,551,920

21,2s7,86r

9,4t6,768
4,283,764

650,4't2

14,655,878

31,626

58,388

27s.660

14,043,280

83,776,249

14,007,048

17,74t,099

7 ,561,459
8,571, I 87

19,488,307

9,t13,764

4,725,156

288,374

2t,641,741

14,547,784

85,764,726

16,367,446

t3,926,337

7,569,703

t7,124,098

t5,732,201

I 1,1 10,852

5,498,601

t,426,569
|s,6s8,632

44,331

516,677

239,927

3,890,876

147,661

703.621 20t,7t4,268 208.809.8 l7

5,117,246 (1 1.019.521) (22.163.695)

205,89 I

12,329,937
(12.329.93't)

t7,325,000
(16,754,9 l0)

4,300,000

2,000,000
(83,761)

t97,902
l7,304,330

(17,304,330)

1,300,000

(3,6e2)

13,'765,252

i3.640.252)

Total othe¡ ftnancing sources (uses) 205,891

Net change in fund balances 5,323,137

Debt service as a

percentage of noncapítal

expenditures 7.8Vo

Years Drior to implementation of GASB 34 are not provided

6.984.229 r.42t.308

(4,03s,292) (20,742,387)
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$ 10r,801,972

5,057,545

53,566,172

13,627,94f
t,924,864
4,1 15,605
2.658.405

2006

89,388,504

5,203,117

s4,8s8,358

t2,786,424

1,89t,646
2,856,189
3.4s1.023

83,796,845

5,3 14,798

48,245,126

12,88 1,071

1,911,259

1,398,874
3.537.361

2004

80,793,ss8

4,605,22f
44,806,597

13,32r,08'l
1,797,905

t,54t,137
2,522,495

s 73,304,614

4,332,276

44,t'tg,064
9,550,358

1,741,662

759,962
4.63 l.086

138.499.022

2002

67,399,558

4,859,644

41,204,s84

8,624,259

1,747,876

2,602,619
s.431.480

2007 2005 2003

$ $ $ $

182.752.506 t70.435.261 157 149,388,002 13 1.870.020

13,818,411

82,646,9'77

t4,684,144
14,098,653

7,696,669

t9,75r,044
14,880,152

10,293,026

5,454,720

21,102

t,223,848
9,089,592

12,88 1,005

76,643,710

9,427,135

12,855,383

7,786,710

6,829,540

t6,l't4,189

8,845,284

4,844,s38

1,097,418

828,826

15,711,225

12,802,668

72,060,99',7

9,218,492

13,855,963

7,1t4,598
6,843,800

14,289,739

7,880,000

4,395,004

I 1,238,905

66,605,r99

8,046, I 83

tt,978,122
7,r34,786
8,249,9t7

10,370,029

7,520,039

4, I 86,878

1,046,169

970,125

l 9,098,487

1,401,033

9,659,056

62,427,635

8,582,025

9,243,483

6,901,965

5,668,082

12,329,817

6,952,532

3,990,435

2,072,685

I 53,908

1s,390,9s4

832,954

1,572,203

10,900,334

62,873,892

31,579,429

9,495,404

8,002,666

7,395,603

10,387,8 l2

I 1,485,099

4,247,3t8

2,802,296

406,116

69,494

448,406

215.016

554,991

1,s29]20
l 8,388,101

4,'t94,032
t49,997

436,688

66.5 t0
330,479
290 398

194,133,948 174.588.385 174.38 1.300 749 145,7',t7,734 159.169.853

(1 1.381.442) (4.1s3.124)

6,865,000
(6,770,67e)

28,250,000

(r7.295.966) (9,078,747) (7.278.7t2)- (z'.t_299.833)

Q1e,103)

2,500,000

(20,000)

19,061,648

I 19.004.048)

530,000
(107,622)

I 8,770,000

(140,01 l)

t4,tt't,564
r14.2s9.930\

7,535,000
(7,387,358)

18,260,000

(r27,446)

13,18 1,9 l0
02,934.310\

4,490,000
(4,490,000)

8,200,000

('17,s67)

703,710
(70s,000)

14,699,815

10,907,508

fl 1.000.708)
17,868,899

(r7,8r1,299)
t2,882,634

(12,807,384)

28.122.8t8 2.s37.600 910.001 18,527,796 8.197.683 14.605.325

16,741,376 (r,61s,s24) r,614,035 9,449,049 918,97r (12,694,s08)

8.6% 8.tVo 8.3%

F7

8.'7"/o 8.1Yr l0.|Yo



CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN LEVYYEARS

(000's Omitted)

Tax
Lew Year

Residential
Propertv

Commercial
Prooertv

Industrial
Prooertv

Other
Property

Less

Tax Exempt
Property

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

Estimated
Actual

Taxable
Value

Estimated
Actual
Value

Total Taxable
Assessed

Value

2001

2002
2003

2004
2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

455,832

472,251

482,742

433,802

453,997

475,345

519,3 l8
539,365

534,784

512,763

201,051

207,064
t97,658
172,428

170,34t
174,070

t93,768
199,570

201,3 8 I
194,628

1,733

I,816
1,901

1,504

t,487
1,5 13

2,077

2,555

2,624

3,01l

1,559,522

1,626,592

t,696,447

1,7t7,738
I,818,983

t,92s,661
2,032,642

2,1 00,1 8 1

2,082,800

2,008,995

2.47240

2.45880

2.49750

2.60t90
2.62220

2.56830

2.51730

2.53180

2.56060

2.71590

1,074,584

1,135,218

1,218,259

1,383,621

1,479,310

1,575,881

1,644,576

1,722,354

t,743,140
1,6ó5,05 I

173,678

189,757

204,113

273,617

286,152
301,148

327,097

363,663

398,s2s

366,4s8

s,199,601

s,449,048

5,701,680

5,974,065

6,315,406

6,681,095

7,079,925

7,392,271

7,444,719

7,127,072

33.33%
33.33%
33.33%
33.33%
33.33%
33.33%
33.33%
3333%
3333%
3333%

NOTE: (1) Assessed valuations are provided by OfTìce of Winnebago County Clerk. Property is reassessed each year at 337o of actual value.
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
DIRECT AI\D OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RA,TES,
LAST TEN LEVY YEARS
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, TLLTNOTS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2010 2001

Percentage

of Total
Equalized Equalized

Value Rank ValueTaxDayer
Equalized

Value Rank

Percentage

ofTotal
Equalized

Value

Lowes Home Centers INC.

Greater Rockford Airport Authority
rù/al-Mart Stores Inc.

Simon Realty Group

Swedish American Hospital/Realty

MB Rockford State LLC.

WPHRockford LLC.

Fairhaven Christian Home

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation

Rock River Valley Industrial Park

Sunil Puri

United Parcel Service Inc.

Schnucks Markets, Inc.

Fridh Corporation

Total

Source: Winnebago County Collector's office.

$ 15,786,032

12,508,009

10,434,333

8,550,595

6,538,983

4,678,630

4,342,156

4,135,078

3,995,803

3,933,688

3

9

I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

0.79vo

0.62%

o.52yo

0.43%

0.33"/o

0.23o/o

0.22yo

0.27o/o

0.20%

0.20Yo

$

6,977,888 2

6,359,130

4,28s,839

0.45Yo

0.41Y"

0.27Yo

033%
0.46%

0.39%

0.3s%

032Yo

0.28%

0.27%

5,170,'104

7,139,641

6,149,7',|7

5,453,248

5,008,188

4,324,521

4,241,682

$ s5,110,618

6

I
4

5

7

8

l0

$ 74,903,307 3.75% 3.s3%
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crrY oF RocKFoRD, TLLINOTS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS,
LAST TEN LEVY YEARS

Tax
Levy Year

Tax
Levy fl) Collections 12)

Percent of
Tax Levy
Extension
Collected

Delinquent
Tax

Collections (3)
Total Tax
Collections

Total
Collections

as Percent of
Current Tax

Levv Extensions

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

38,559, I 7 I
39,978,160
42,344,826

44,595,473

47,672,363

50,305,082

51,167,696

53,172,394

53,332,168

54,562,306

38,133,728

39,841,304

42,272,749

44,388,203

47,433,307

50,112,235

50,940,582

52,827,215

53,011,644

9890%
99.66Vo

99.83%

99.54Vo

99j0%
99.62%

9956%
9935Yo

99.40Ya

16,717

63,949

95,968

768,025

33,119

48,057

20,447

18,291

38,149,845

39,905,253

42,368,',n1

44,556,228

47,466,426

50,760,292

50,961,029

52,845,506

53,0t1,644

98.94%

99.82%
r00.06%
99.91%

99.57%

99Jlvo
99.60%

99.39%

99.40%

NOTES: (1) The tax levy extensions do not include tax increment furancing districts or special service tax areas.

Ø Current collections as shown above represent those collections made by Winnebago County on the

curent levy up to the date of tax sale (the date such taxes are determined to be delinquent). The current
tax collection period normally is the calendar year immediately subsequent to the tax year, but may be

extended beyond December 31, depending on the date of the tax sale.

(3) DeHnquent property taxes collected by the County Treasurer are distributed to the taxing units by use of
the current tax rate and cannot be applied to specific levy years. Thus, delinquent taxes collected during
the year are applied to the year preceding the tax levy for which current taxes are being collected.

(4) The 2009 levy will be collected in 2010.

Ft2



crrY oF RocK['oRD, TILINOTS
RATIO OF OUTSTAIIDING DEBT BY TYPE,
LÄST TEN F'ISCÀL YEARS

of
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Per
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CTTY OF' ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONIIED DEBT,
L.A.ST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Yenr Pooulation lI)

Fl5



crTY oF ROCKF'ORn, ILTNOIS
DIRECT AI\[D OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

As of December 31, 2010

Name of Governmental Unit
Total Debt

Outstandins

Percentage
Applicable
To City of
Rockford

Cify of
Rockford's

Share of
Debt

Direct:
Cþ of Rockford, Illinois (l)

Overlapping:
Schools:

Other Units:

NOTES

School Dishict #205

School District #122

School District #321

School District #323

Community College #51I

Winnebago County

Winnebago County Forest Preserve

Rock River Water Reclamation District

Greater Rockford Airport Authority

Rockford Township

Cherry Valley Township

Owen Township

Rockford Park District

Rockford City Library District

$ 97,545,000 100.0% $ 97.545.000

150,738,084

69,474,936

36,930,'125

3,417,423

40,000

40,875,000

72.6%

2.\yo

85Y"

4.8o/"

61.4o/o

43.5o/"

43.5o/"

62.3%

56.9%

75.ÙYo

42.gYo

23.9o/"

75.ÙYo

71.3o/o

50,438,804

1,034,060

290,481

1,920

097

862515

7,364,300 4,190,287

28,768,390 19,275,016

96,137,531Total Overlapping Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

179,506,474

s 277,051,474 $ 193,682,531

(l) Total debt outstærding for the City ofRockford does not include general obligation bonds and water

revenue bonds being funded by the Water Utility Fund.

Source: Information on overlapping debt obtained from \ùinnebago County.

3,074,090

I 8,330,000

1,337,229

13,747,500
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2010
Assessed value
Debt limit - State (8.6250lo of assessed value)
Debt Limit - City (80% of the State limit)
Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds
Debt certiflrcates
General obligation promissory note
Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit

Legal debt margin

$ 2,008,995,393
173,275,853
738,620,682

26,380,000
14,000,000
17.300.000
57,680,000
80,940,682

20082010 2009 2007

Debt limit

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

$ 138,620,682

57,680,000

s t43,7t3,t77

63,735,000

144,912,521

63,600,000

140,252,295

53,665,000

$

$ 80,940,682 $ 79,978,177 s 81,312,521 86,587,295

41.61% 44.35% 43.89% 38.26%
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
PLED GED.REVENUE COVERAGE,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year

\Yater
Service

Charqes

Less:

Operating
Expenses

Net Revenue

Available
for Debt
Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

Water

Utility
Fund (1)

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

3,717,300

3,495,000

3,715,ooo

3,695,000

3,690,000

3,36o,ooo

3,105,000

2,905,000

3,105,000

2,965,000

l,5ol,2gg
I ,33 I,841

1,179,547

1,092,494

971,322

l,33g,4gg
1,3 gg,g l o

1,710,304

1,605,924

1,615,853

5,2l g,5gg

4,926,941

4,994,547

4,787,484

4,661,322

4,69g,4gg

4,494,810

4,615,304

4,710,824

4,580,953

16,151,821

17,062,256

76,465,260

76,353,453

18,510,339

20,730,357

21,991,102

22,528,255

21,552,933

22,715,297

11,494,239

12,252,983

12,832,977

12,967,309

13,618,993

14,027,767

14,95 5,551

15,829,874

16,718,002

18,013,327

4,657,582

4,809,273

3,632,283

3,396,144

4,897,346

6,108,590

7,035,551

6,698,44t
4,934,931

4,701,970

0.89%
|.00o/o

0.74o/o

0.71o/o

L05o/o

130%
7.57o/o

1.45o/o

l.03Yo

L03o/o

NOTES: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Operating
expenses do not include interest or amortization expenses,
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, TLLINOTS
DEMOGRAPHTC AND ECONOMIC STATTSTTCS,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year Population (1)
(Thousands

ofdollars) (3)
School

Enrollment (4)
Unemployment

Rate 15)

Personal
lncome

Per
Capita

Personal
lncome 12)

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

20t0

150,1 15

150,1 15

150,1 l5

150,1 15

150,1 15

150,1 15

150,115

150,1 l5

150,115

150,1 15

3,990,807

4,045,899

4,134,317

4,122,308

4,253,509

4,479,432

4,949,714

4,945,389

4,923,345

N/A

26,585

26,952

27,547

27,461

28,335

29,840

32,300

32,944

32,131

N/A

27,704

28,362

28,685

28,887

29,145

29,601

29,637

28,844

28,9'10

29,920

6.50o/o

7.80o/o

8.30%

6.50%

6.40%

5.30o/o

6.30o/o

9.70%

15.t0%

1530%

NOTES: (l) u.s. Department of commerce, Bureau of statestics and Rockford council of 100

(2) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Statistics, the amount presented is for the Rockford MSA.

(3) Per Capita Personal Income multiplied by the population.

(4) Annual sohool census by Rockford Board of Education. Students in community colleges are not included.

(5) Figures are provided by the State of Illinois Department of Employment security
The rate presented is the average unemployment for the year, Rockford MSA.
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crTY oF ROCKFORn, [LrNOrS
PRTNCTPAL EMPLOYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2010 2001

T¡xpayer Emolovees 11) Rank

Percentage

of Total City
Emplovment Employees Rank

Percentage

of Total City
Employment

Rockford School District No. 205

Swedish American Health Systems (2)

Chrysler, LLC

Rockford Health Systems

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation

OSF St. Anthony's Medical Center (3)

United Parcel Service

County of Winnebago

'Woodward Govenor Company

City of Rockford

Textron

Total 22.637

Total employment in the Rockford MSA 144,956

(l) Based on March 2008 telephone canvass ofemployers
(2) Full-time equivalents
(3) Includes part-time employees

4,800

2,600

2,600

2,500

2,200

2,000

2,000

t,602

1,200

I,135

4,105

2,600

1,950

2,800

2,700

I,800

2,200

I

4

7

2

3

I
6

I

2

3

4

5

6

'l

I
9

l0

3.3lyo

1.79%

l.79Yo

1.720/o

1.52o/o

1.38%

l38Yo

t.lt%
0.83%

0.78o/"

1,100

1,220

2,200

2.24yo

7.42o/"

1.06Vo

l53%
l.47Yo

098%
l.20Yo

0.00%

0.60%

0.67%

l.20Yo

l0
9

5

t5,62vo 22,675 't238%

183,100
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crTY oF ROCKFORD, ILLTNOTS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2010 2009
Full-time Equivalcnt Employees

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

6.5
4.5
16

39.5
28

2003 2002 2001
FunctionlProgram

General government:
Mayo¡'s office
Legal department
Finance office
Information Services
Personnel department

Public safety
Police department

Officers
Civilians

Fire department
##

Public wo¡ks - traffic
Building department

Streets, alleys and bridges
Administration
Engineering
Capital Prolects
Street and sewer maintenance
Property and equipment

Community development
Administration
Development
Planning
Code enforcement

Sanitation and sewers
Public works - sewers

Culture and recreation
Library

Public health and welfare

Pækine

Water

Total

Source: City Finance Office

2
t7
l5
13

2
l8
12

2
l9
t2

2
l8
t2

2
18
l4

2
18

16

2
t7
l5

6
t7
31

6
6

8

20
33
10
7

8

t9
33
l0
7

8

17
33
l0

7

8

l7
34
l0
7

7
l8
3'l

8

7

7
18

36
9
7

282 0
3ó.0

282 0
53.0
130
18.0

29s
28

282
53
13

25

305
JJ

282
53
l8
l9

305
33

282
53
18
2t

305
33

280
6t
18

20

299
33

282
61

l8
20

299
33

277
61
l8
20

300
JJ

277
6l
18
20

301
33

277
6l
t9
21

296
32

268
6l
t9
2l

40
7.5

172
38.0
27.0

6
5

l3
40
28

6

5

l3
4l
26

8

20
32

8

7

6

5

l3
49
24

6
5

13

49
24

6
16
34

8

7

6
16

JJ
9
7

6
5

l3
41

4.5
10.0

16

40.0
27

lr5

91.0

9

75

l, 187

3

109

92.5

9

76

1,207

6
5

l6
40
24

7
5

16

40
28 28

1.5
7.0
5.3

12.2

2
8

6
l3

2
9

ll
l3

82.0

97.9

85

77.0

l,13s.0

r03

93

9

75

1,215

102

96

9

76

1,201

33

98 97

92 93

99

75 76

I,191 1,182

104

92

9

76

1.189

108

105

9

74

1,221

3 J 3 3 3

108

108

9

74

1,207
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CITY OF ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Yea¡

FunctionlProgram

Police department

Total calls for servec

Total parÎ 1 crimes

Nmber of alams

Anests

Clerance Rate

Iire department

Total call for service

Number of fi re investigations

Total number offire calls

Total number of mbulance runs

9 I I Center

Total non-emergency calls

Total emergency calls

Total police dispatches

Total fire despatches

Building departnrent

Residential pemits
Comercial permits

Plan reviews

Total inspections

Project over $lmillion/total value

Plming and zoning

Zoning Clermces
Demolitions

Total acres mexed
Assessed valuation in mexed reas

Hman seryices

Households receiving mergy assistmce

Head Start program enrollment

Homeless prevention clients serued

Sumer Food program

Clients receiving weatberization assistance

Sanitation Division

Regular tonnage

Composting tomage
Recycling tonnage

Public'üy'orks

Nmber of egineering plans reviewed

Nmber of pemits issued

Plowing/spreadin g occmences

Street sweeping cycles

Pothole patching (tons used)

Tree kims

Tree plmtings

Pæking division

Total prking spaces

Nmber of tickets issued

Water divìsion

Number of users

Annual water production (billion gallons)

Souce: Cþ finmce department

1,47 |
44s

874
t7,780

29192.4M

1,288

401

t,015
19,112

l9l$129,5M

22,839
216
s64

11,958

22,864
355

781

17,372

19,498

373
715

15,281

2010

167,304

23,169
5,559

I 3,s36

33 40%

112,076

t19,200
167,305

23,s39

2009

177,688

24,663
5,422

15,286

32.88%

23,663
268
688

18,391

119,097

120,247

1s9,703

24,425

1,s81

339
472

10,485

I 6/50M

2008

184,824

27,590
6,21s

1 5,864

f3.70%

23,629
312
702

18,243

130,481

137,536

174,122

27,643

9,900

6s3

1,900

3,000

r55

55,41 9

14,624

6928

113

1,584

3l
4

2,762

2,890
N/A

4,504
24,023

2007

r 88,840

28,44t
5,802

16,320

36.38%

2006

200,874
12,41s
5,696

17,247

23.33%

2005

190,747

t1,394
6,1 55

16,497

2400%

2004

190,097

12,190

s,980

16,545

24 00%

1,729

12'7

3

97,819

1,730

t2s
JI

r 25,000

125,202

I 53,ss9
192,399

21,669

N/A
N/A

848

5,800,000

9,906
669

1,870

2,500

N/A

57,340
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